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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Turnover

Retail

Other businesses

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable
to owners of the Company
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Earnings per share — Basic and diluted

FRRER®
S
TE

HAb %5

RRBERABIEFR
Rl (&E)
RIERERD

BREFN - EXREE

MBERE

2022
HK$’000
FTExT

2021
HK$'000
TAT

19,751,940 19,921,938
804,576 2,065,621

20,556,516 21,987,559

486,365 743,868
(34,039) (100,611)
452,326 643,257

For profit for the year F A5 A 66.8 cents {li  95.0 cents
For profit from continuing operations FERE X RN 71.8 cents il 109.8 cents fllI
Dividend per share BREE
— Interim — 1 Ef 15.0 cents il  14.0 cents 1l
— Final — RHA 15.0 cents fli  28.0 cents I
Total dividend per share for the year > FEERR L5 30.0 cents fli  42.0 cents fllI
Dividend payout ratio RELEZE 45% 44%
Equity attributable to owners of the AREEE AELER
Company 11,890,543 12,753,120
Equity per share SRER $17.6 T $18.8 7T
Turnover - Continuing operations
Year BER - REKEXER
Fn 19,752 805 Ret "
2022 | 20,557 eturn on equity
% [B
2021 19,922 2,066 21,988 %
2020 13,098 1,900| 14,998
2019 16,258 1454/ 17,712
2018 17,130 16421 18,772
0 6,000 12,000 18,000 24,000
HK$'M
’ M Retail T Other businesses Efth %7 ‘ BEBT

Profit attributable to owners of the Company - Continuing operations

AATBEEANELRERT - SELCEEYR
Year
FH
2022 — 486
2021 | 744
2020 | 639
2019 | 1,000
2018 | 972
0 200 400 600 800 1,000 1,200
HK$'M
BEBT
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

In 2022 the Group's operations was heavily impacted by the pandemic.
At the same time, the fall in the exchange rate of Renminbi and the
swings of the price of gold joined force with the drop in business to
bring the Group's profit down 30% from the prior year to HK$452
million.

Nevertheless, it appears that we are finally able to leave behind the
nightmare of the pandemic. Over the lunar new year holidays in January
2023, business on the Mainland, Macau and Hong Kong as well, was
very encouraging. And beginning with March, travel has resumed,
streets are crowded, and eateries are bustling. Life is getting back to
normalcy.

But the fading of the threat of covid-19 only puts into even starker
contrast the spectre of geopolitical conflicts. At the same time, the
major economies of the world are showing worrying signs of weakness.
It is not inconceivable that trade issues could become catalysts for
military actions. The world is fraught with uncertainty.

Closer to home, post pandemic we face challenges such as labour
shortage, climbing interest rates, fast-changing consumer tastes and, no
less, climate change. We shall press on with our efforts in digitisation
and automation as means to enhance employees’ job satisfaction, to
make our management structure more agile and effective, and to enable
us to press on to our sustainability goals.

| thank our staff, our shareholders, our suppliers and other stakeholders
for their unflinching support and trust.

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun, MB, BS, DMRT, aged 89, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He has been with the Group for over 45 years. Dr. CHAN
is a medical doctor in private practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing, SBS, BBS, MBE, JP, aged 76, is an
Executive Director of the Company, the Chairman of the Board, the
Group General Manager and a director of a number of subsidiaries
within the Group. Mr. CHOW is the cousin of Dr. Gerald CHOW King
Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and the father of Ms. Genevieve
CHOW Karwing. He is a director of Everwin Company Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. CHOW has been with
the Group for over 40 years, having been the Group General Manager
and the Chairman since 1998 and 2013 respectively. He was the
Chairman of the Home Affairs Bureau to its Advisory Committee on Arts
Development, and is currently a member of the Culture Commission
and a member of the Board of Governors of City University of Hong
Kong Foundation. Mr. CHOW was made an Honorary Fellow of the
Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts; and he serves as a Director of
the Board of The Hong Kong International Film Festival Society Limited,
which is a not-for-profit organisation. He is a member of the Board of
Governors and a member of the College Council of the UOW College
Hong Kong.

Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, aged 66, is an Executive Director of
the Company. He is a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company and a director of a number of subsidiaries within the Group.
He has joined the Group for over 35 years. Dr. CHOW is the elder
brother of Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, a cousin of Mr. Vincent
CHOW Wing Shing and an uncle of Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing. He
is a director of Speed Star Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder
of the Company. For community services in Hong Kong, Dr. CHOW is
an expert member of the “Managing World Cities” Programme of the
Faculty of Social Sciences, The University of Hong Kong. He was a panel
member of the Public Affairs Forum under the Home Affairs Bureau,
HKSAR until its cessation of operation in 2018, a former member of
the Central Policy Unit of the Hong Kong Government (2009-2011)
and a former council member of The Better Hong Kong Foundation
(2007-2015). Dr. CHOW also served in the Central and Western District
Fight Crime Committee (2009-2011). He is an honorary member of
the Hong Kong Fire Services Officers’ Mess and the founding President
of the Central and Western District Fire Safety Ambassador Honorary
Presidents’ Association of the Hong Kong Fire Services Department.
Dr. CHOW has been a voting member of the Po Leung Kuk Advisory
Board since 1997. He is also a member of the Bauhinia Foundation
Research Centre and the Hong Kong Strategy.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising),
ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 69, was an Independent Non-executive
Director and the Secretary of the Company until September 2004. He
was re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company on
28 September 2004. Mr. TING is a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
He is an independent non-executive director of seven other listed
companies in Hong Kong, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd.,
Tongda Group Holdings Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited,
Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited, Texhong International
Group Limited (formerly known as Texhong Textile Group Limited),
Dongyue Group Limited and China SCE Group Holdings Limited.
Mr. TING is an accountant in public practice and has more than 40 years
of experience in this field. Currently, he is a partner of Ting Ho Kwan &
Chan, Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam, GBS, OBE, JP, LL.B (Lond.) (Hons), aged 82, is
a Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 26 June 1995 and re-designated as a
Non-executive Director in September 2004. Mr. CHUNG is a solicitor
in practice. Apart from being a China-appointed Attesting Officer and
a Hong Kong Notary Public, he is also an independent non-executive
director of two other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely S E A
Holdings Limited and Datronix Holdings Limited.

Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, aged 65, is an Executive Director
of the Company, the Group Deputy General Manager and a director
of a number of subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. CHOW has been
with the Group since 1984 (except 1988 to 1992) and has become the
Group Deputy General Manager since 1995. Mr. CHOW is the younger
brother of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, a cousin of Mr. Vincent CHOW
Wing Shing and an uncle of Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing. He has
experience in real estate in Canada. Mr. CHOW's key responsibilities
include the product development and staff learning and development
of the Group’s jewellery business in Greater China. He is the Chairman
of Jewellery Advisory Committee and a member of Product Promotion
Programme Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council,
a Vice-chairman of the Quality Tourism Services Association and a
member of the Jewellery Industry Training Advisory Committee under
the Qualifications Framework of the Education Bureau.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEESBEBEBRARRASA

5

TRES%4%E  MH: FCCA * FCPA (Practising) -
ACA * CTA(HK) * FHKIoD " 69 5% » & A&
AZBYFHATEERAAWE £HF
200459 A 1 7200499 A28 H # T
BADNBZIENITES - TREBALXD
REZEZES FHMEESRIRREET
KB MAEMEREBLMARZEY
ERTEZ DRALRACEREEE
BHBRAR - BEEEIERERAAE
MSEXIRERAF  BERGEEESR
NE RUBEBEBEAER A AGE
AIHHBEEBERAR) REEHE
BRARRTHREBERERAR - TEAE
BHESTR - EETABBRAI0FLER -
BATHERSHEITAEA -

885 M % &£ GBS OBE - K F # £ -
LL.B (Lond.) (Hons) * 82 5% * ANA &2 FE#TT
B2 ERZEe FHZEERREERZE
BeRE - N 199566 A26 HEZRTA
RABZBIUIENITES » WH 200459 A
AETBERTES - EBLRERNEEM
BrATFEAESELTAEARBBHBEAQ
FEANI BHRBEMRMRES LTARZ
BUFNTES DR AMEZERERAD
B NEEREIERER AR

BAREE 655 ARBZHITES -
AEBEBLERAEERZRIB AR
BlcEE A EB1984F (1988 4F
E19NFHRIN R AEE - B1995F
BREAAEEBLE - BLE R
FHKEE RS AXKREEZERR
EZEFET L2 B BB INEANEHESE -
FrEEEREAERRARKPEREEN
CEMABERBIERIE - BARE
BHRRRAUBXEFZAZTESETHERYE
EMRTEZESKE BERERBW
CEEERHNERERRBE THREET
EBJFERNEEEEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022 F %



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Ka Lun, FCCA, aged 67, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, and the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 28 September 2004. Mr. LEE is an accountant by
profession and has over 25 years of experience in banking and auditing.
He was the Regional Deputy Chief Executive of Lloyds TSB Bank plc and
Regional Director — Finance and Operation of Lloyds TSB's operations
in Asia for over 15 years and has extensive experience in corporate
banking, private banking, treasury, operations, IT developments and
general management. He serves as an independent non-executive
director of three other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely Yuexiu
Property Company Limited, Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited and
Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited. Mr. LEE served as an independent non-
executive director of Medicskin Holdings Limited until 15 November
2022. Mr. LEE continues to serve as an independent non-executive
director of Chong Hing Bank Limited (“Chong Hing”) after its listing
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited was withdrawn on 30
September 2021. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited, a holding company of Chong Hing.

Dr. LO King Man, SBS, BBS, MBE, JP, FRSA, FHKU, UFHKPU, FHKAPA,
DocHKAPA, Cavaliere (Order of Merit, Italy), Chevalier (Order of Arts
and Letters, France), aged 85, is an Independent Non-executive Director,
a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 28 September
2004. Following a career in higher education management, Dr. LO held
appointments as Director of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing
Arts during 1993 to 2004 and as Principal of the Canton International
Summer Music Academy established by the Guangdong Government
during 2004 to 2009. His public service included vice-chairmanship of
the former Urban Council and membership of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Basic Law Consultative Committee, Examination
Authority, Broadcasting Authority, Vocational Training Council and Arts
Development Council. He has served on governing boards of numerous
educational and cultural organisations. Dr. LO is the Chairman of the
Hong Kong Arts Festival Programme Committee and the Vice Chairman
of the Hong Kong Arts Festival Executive Committee. Dr. LO is also the
Director-general of Musica Viva Limited. He is an independent non-
executive director of another listed company in Hong Kong - Sing Lee
Software (Group) Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung, OBE, JP, aged 77, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 17 December 2012. Mr. LAU is a qualified
electrical engineer, and a member of The Institution of Engineering
and Technology, United Kingdom, and with a postgraduate degree of
Master of Science from the University of Surrey, England. He has more
than 30 years of management and marketing experience, particularly in
the textile and apparel field. Mr. LAU is the managing director of The
Polyfabrics (Hong Kong) Limited. He was appointed as a member to
vice-chairman of the Urban Council from 1978 to 1995. Mr. LAU was
also appointed as a member of various committees, boards, and panels,
namely the Textiles Advisory Board, the Trade and Industry Advisory
Board, the Administrative Appeals Board, the Air Transport Licensing
Authority, the Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning), the Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance), the Broadcasting Authority, etc. He also
served as a Council Member of The University of Hong Kong from 1985
to 1997. Mr. LAU is active in several charitable organisations and in
Chiu Chow community associations.

Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing, aged 38, is an Executive Director of
the Company since 1 November 2021. She joined the Group in 2010
and is the Group's General Manager of Omni-channel Development.
Ms. CHOW is a daughter of Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing and a
niece to both Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing. She is a director of Everwin Company Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Ms. CHOW leads the Group’s e-Commerce
business and is responsible for the development of strategic initiatives
to better position the Group to deliver a holistic omni-channel shopping
experience. Since 2018, Ms. CHOW has also been the Brand Director
of EMPHASIS and PROMESSA, overseeing the branding, business
development and product management. Ms. CHOW holds a dual
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Science of Earth Systems and Economics from
Cornell University. She is a GIA Applied Jewellery Professional (A.J.P.)
and GIA Diamonds Graduate. She is an Executive Committee member of
The Hong Kong Retail Management Association.

Mr. Morison CHAN Chi Kong, FCPA, FCCA, HKFCG, FCG, CFA, MBA,
aged 55, is the Company Secretary of the Company, the Group’s Chief
Financial Officer and a director of certain subsidiaries within the Group.
Mr. CHAN joined the Group in February 2020 and has over 30 years of
experience in accounting, auditing, corporate finance and management.
Mr. CHAN is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
("ACCA"), the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and the
Chartered Governance Institute, and a Chartered Financial Analyst. He
is the past Chairman of ACCA Hong Kong. Mr. CHAN is currently a
member of the Professional Development Sub-committee of ACCA Hong
Kong. He is also a member of the Executive Committee of The Jewellers’
and Goldsmiths" Association of Hong Kong Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAU Hak Bun, aged 70, is the Group’s General Manager — Retail
Operations (Greater China) and a director of a subsidiary within the
Group. Mr. LAU has been with the Group for over 50 years. He is well-
experienced in sales management. Apart from managing the retail
operations in Hong Kong and Macau, Mr. LAU is also responsible for
the development of operational strategies in Greater China. He also
serves as the Vice-chairman of The Hong Kong Jewellers” & Goldsmiths'’
Association Ltd. and the Chairman of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious
Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association. Mr. LAU
is a founder member of The Jewellers' and Goldsmiths’ Association of
Hong Kong Limited. He also serves as Honorary President, President or
Consultant of various organisations in the industry.

Ms. Cecilia YIM Sze Nga, aged 47, is the Group’s Chief Market
Strategy Officer. Ms. YIM joined the Group in December 2013 and has
over 25 years of experience in marketing communication and brand
management. Ms. YIM is responsible for the multi-brand development
strategy, brand experience and marketing communication in the Group.
Ms. YIM's experience covered a variety of industries including digital
advertising strategy and creative services with one of the world'’s
top three marketing communication groups, as well as the Regional
Marketing Director of one of the top three wine and spirit companies in
Asia Pacific. Ms. YIM holds a Bachelor of Social Science Degree in digital
graphic communication from School of Communication of Hong Kong
Baptist University.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

It was a rollercoaster ride. In the beginning of 2022, just before the
Chinese New Year, retail sales on the Mainland started an uptake which
was soon wiped out by a new wave of the pandemic. Many parts of the
Mainland were then subjected to large-scale crowd control measures
that precluded any public activities for weeks on end. A respite came
around June, and jewellery and watch sales started to pick up through
the third quarter. However, in the fourth quarter, widespread infections
shut down cities again. Quite a significant number of our stores had
to suspend business because of the lack of uninfected staff, if not the
enforced closures.

In 2022 then, the loss of business due to the pandemic, partially
offset by sales generated at new stores but compounded by the fall in
Renminbi, led to a 4% year-on-year decline in jewellery and watch sales
on the Mainland. Gold was very much at the centre stage: in Renminbi
terms, gold jewellery sales in Mainland China actually increased by 3%
year-on-year, while gem-set jewellery sales recorded a decrease of 16%.
Watch sales went up 10%.

In Hong Kong, although the first quarter sales were decimated by the
pandemic, from April onward sales rebounded sharply, buoyed no doubt
by the consumption vouchers. Growth in sales were recorded for most
of the remaining months of the year. In 2022, Hong Kong and Macau
gold jewellery sales grew by 15%, gem-set jewellery up 7% but watch
sales decreased by 13%, and thus the combined jewellery and watch
sales increased 8% year-on-year.

All territories combined, jewellery and watch sales decreased by 1%
year-on-year.

The Group's consolidated turnover from continuing operations
decreased by 7% to HK$20,557 million in 2022. The overall gross
margin from continuing operations stood at 26.3% (2021: 25.3%).
Depreciation of Renminbi and rebound in international gold price during
the fourth quarter caused significant exchange loss and unrealised
net fair value loss on bullion loans in 2022. The Group's profit before
tax from continuing operations decreased by 41% to HK$593 million
in 2022. In terms of combined segment contributions and taking out
the material exceptional effects, total segment results from continuing
operations decreased by 15% to HK$829 million.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by 30% to
HK$452 million. Profit attributable to owners of the Company from
continuing operations decreased by 35% to HK$486 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Analysis by Geographical Area
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Retail of Jewellery and Watches

KREREKTE

Retail Turnover

B EZH

The first half of 2022 was seriously affected by the pandemic, especially
in Eastern China. Rebound in sales in the second half of the year and
sales from new stores could not offset the impact of the pandemic and
the fall in Renminbi. Total 2022 sales decreased by 1% (in Renminbi)
and 4% (in Hong Kong dollar) year-on-year, while same-store-sales
decreased by 5% year-on-year. Segment results were down 31% as a
result of higher gold sales mix and operating deleveraging.
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Segment revenue Segment results
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2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
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(Restated)
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13,697,207 14,315,010 -4% 531,803 767,867 -31%
5,823,648 5,416,999 +8% 320,006 209,293 +53%
231,085 189,929 +22% 19,794 10,102 +96%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEBNWR DN

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

BKERERTE(HE)
Analysis by Geographical Area (continued) B ESH (&)
Mainland China (continued) H B A BE (4

Mainland China Sales Mix
FEAEHEAS

2021 2022 Products =

Gold jewellery and products 4 & 52 M
B Gem-set jewellery SEH 3T
Platinum/Karat gold jewellery $A% /K& #fim

- Watches 8k

71% 74%

2022 1Hvs 2021 1H

2022 2H vs 2021 2H

2022 FY vs 2021 FY
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SSSG [FE HE & 2021 FHFE 201F 45 202152 F
Gold jewellery and =& H#R K

products Em -4% +4% -1%
Gem-set jewellery ERUE -17% -26% 21%
Watches iR -24% +47% +5%
Overall = -9% 0% -5%
e With our major markets in Fastern and Southern China impacted o HMREMUNRERNMEZZTED
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by the pandemic, overall contraction in SSSG expanded from
-6% in the first quarter to -14% in the second quarter. Following
the easing of pandemic in the third quarter, SSSG rebounded to
+10%. However, SSSG fell sharply to -9% in the fourth quarter
due to pandemic resurgence.

e While gold jewellery sales were hit by the pandemic during the *
traditional festival peak season in the first half of the year, sales
returned to growth track in the second half of the year, partly
driven by the fall in international gold price.

o The gem-set jewellery market continued to be weak, especially for *
high unit price diamond jewellery, resulted in -21% SSSG for gem-
set jewellery in 2022.

o Watch supply was delayed by the pandemic in the first half of the *
year. SSSG of watches rebounded rapidly in the second half of the

year. 5 o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

REREZRTE(H)

Analysis by Geographical Area (continued)

Hong Kong and Macau

Hong Kong and Macau operations were hit hard by the pandemic after
Chinese New Year in 2022, with low customer traffic and intermittent
closure of stores. Since April, the gradual relaxation of social distancing
measures, the distribution of consumption vouchers as well as the fall in
international gold price had stimulated retail spending. Turnover in 2022

increased by 8% year-on-year while segment results were up 53%.
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Hong Kong and Macau Sales Mix
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2021

62% ' 66%

2022 1Hvs 2021 1H

2022 Products &

Mo EEE EF53%

Gold jewellery and products &4 &5 & & &

Gem-set jewellery SEfRIKE

Platinum/Karat gold jewellery $A4 /K &idn

Watches $88%

2022 2H vs 2021 2H

2022 FY vs 2021 FY

2022 FH¥EFE 2022¢T¥¢F 202225
Lt 3| b ¥
SSSG 5 HE LR 2021F FHFE 2021¢T#¢F 202152 F
Gold jewellery and =efmMk
products Em -3% +30% +15%

Gem-set jewellery ERUE +14% +2% +8%

Watches i 21% +2% 1%

Overall et ] -5% +20% +8%

o Overall SSSG recovered rapidly from -27% in the first quarter s EBRAEHERERNRE-—ZTE
to +19% in the second quarter, and subsequently to +38% in B-27% MR MENE=-FE R
the third quarter owing to the continued growth momentum. +19% @ REBRIBLEEZE=F
However, SSSG fell back to +2% in the fourth quarter due to SH)+38% © (BRI FER BN A
an increase in number of local infections towards the end of the REANEEN - ARBEERRNEE
year and an outflow of local spending following cross-border AR B RHBEING - EWF
prevention measures adjustment. BEREHEERBEE+2% °

e The gradual relaxation of social distancing measures and the o 2002FAMRERERESINE
increase in wedding and gifting activities in 2022 led to an IR AQEEIEm - S8 THE
increase in sales of gold and gem-set jewellery. T R BRKEHEER o \

e The “Infini Love Diamond” collection marketing campaign o [2FEIZRIIMERSERMKR M
achieved good results, but sales of high unit price diamond THFEREEEAMHmASON -
jewellery softened in the second half of the year, stifling gem-set ERT T HEEERAENREHE
jewellery SSSG in the second half of the year. B B

e Watch sales in the first half of the year were affected by the o HEFEMNERHEXIZIEMMRE
pandemic disruptions and supply shortage. The sales normalised in RROTE - TYFENHESRE
the second half of the year. EEKE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAWMROM

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

REREZRTE(H)

Analysis by Geographical Area (continued)

Taiwan

Taiwan business has enjoyed healthy growth over the past few
years. Supported by an orderly store expansion strategy and SSSG
improvement, 2022 sales and segment results grew by 22% and 96%
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respectively. JEHERRNE -
Store Network DIEHE
/ As at As at
31.12.2021 31.12.2022
Region 12021 F Opening Closure Net change | 12022 ¥
HE 12A31H HE 3 FE 12A31H
Chow Sang Sang | A%£4 635 +94 -32 +62 697
[AEE BEEE 55 +20 -6 +14 69
HE 0 ETF HE o ETF
(Qasis by Chow
Sang Sang)
Mainland China | Rolex/Tudor Bht /w5 13 +1 0 +1 14
REARE &
MINTYGREEN MINTYGREEN 34 +20 -4 +16 50
EMPHASIS EMPHASIS 19 +4 -4 0 19
PROMESSA PROMESSA 18 +7 -1 +6 24
MARCO BICEGO | MARCO BICEGO 1 0 0 0 1
Sub-total: /)\st : 775 +146 -47 +99 874
Chow Sang Sang | A%% 44 +2 -1 +1 45
Hong Kong Rolex/Tudor “ht/wh 1 0 1 1 10
B EMPHASS EMPHASS 5 0 1 | 4
PROMESSA PROMESSA 1 +1 0 +1 2
Sub-total: /]\at - 61 +3 3 0 61
Macau BiED 2 5 +3 0 +3 8
BF
Sub-total: 7)\st : 5 +3 0 +3 8
i S LR 27 +3 0 +3 30
Aig PROMESSA PROMESSA 4 0 0 0 4
Sub-total: /)\st : 31 +3 0 +3 34
Total: 43t : 872 +155 -50 +105 977/
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Store Network (continued)

Chow Sang Sang / ZfE/Z

o During the year, out of the 94 newly opened Chow Sang Sang
stores in Mainland China, 72 of which were located in shopping
malls. We aimed to expand store sales and increase market share
by adding PROMESSA and/or culture-themed design sales space in

EEEAWMROM

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

REREZRTE(H)

and around high customer traffic Chow Sang Sang stores.

o 4 A e JE F (Oasis by Chow Sang Sang) continues to be an
important part of the expansion of our store network in Mainland
China. The total number of stores increased from 55 at the end of

2021 to 69 at the end of 2022.

o In Hong Kong, we added 2 new stores in Tsim Sha Tsui and closed
the Chow Sang Sang store in Canton Road. One of the new stores
is in K11 MUSEA: V&A Chow Sang Sang which is our first store-
collaboration with Victoria and Albert Museum in London. The
other store, in Harbour City, has an eye-catching fitting out with

allusions to oceans.

. In Macau, we increased the number of B5#5 5, stores from 5 to
8 stores at the end of 2022. One of the new stores is the V&A

Chow Sang Sang jewellery concept store at The Londoner.

o In Taiwan, we added 3 Zif5 5, stores in Hsinchu, Kaohsiung and

Tainan as part of our retail network expansion programme.

PROMESSA

o PROMESSA stores strive to present customers with a personalised

and ceremonial shopping experience.

o The store network has been steadily expanded in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Taiwan. With net increase of 6 new stores in the
Mainland and one in Hong Kong, the total number of PROMESSA

stores reached 30 by the end of 2022.

MINTYGREEN

o MINTYGREEN is an affordable daily wear brand in the Mainland

that caters to the younger generation.

o In 2022, MINTYGREEN started to develop its own exclusive
products, and further integrated online and offline operations.

Store number increased by 16 to 50 in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

REREZRTE(H)

Store Network (continued)

EMPHASIS
o EMPHASIS aims to give a new definition to daily-wear jewellery.

. By the end of 2022, there were 19 stores in Mainland China and 4
stores in Hong Kong.

MARCO BICEGO

o MARCO BICEGO is an ltalian jewellery brand featuring artisanal
craftsmanship and contemporary designs. Aside from offering
products of the brand at our Chow Sang Sang store, we maintain
a brand store in Beijing.

Rolex/Tudor

. During the year, we added 1 store in The Mixc, Shenzhen, and
closed 1 store in Tuen Mun, Hong Kong.

° By the end of 2022, we maintained 24 Rolex/Tudor stores in
Mainland China and Hong Kong.

Chow Sang Sang Omni-Channel Retailing

DIERE(E)

EMPHASIS
e EMPHASISE BT & HFME K
=

o 2NFR EHREAKEREED
ESRAI9RRAR »

MARCO BICEGO

e MARCO BICEGO B—{EIAfEEF T
BRERRGESARFENERFK
EME - BRTERMNAEE DGR
HZmENERIN - BPERF 1R
PRI E R

Eht HH

o FRHEBIRUAFRINERELE
A1RUREBLNDIE

o MNFEGHEMERRRERE
B 2ARE DL/ HRDIE

BELELRETE

On-line Sales RLEHE
2022 2021

On-line Sales EH5EDH HK$'M HK$'M Change

by Market %o?d:ﬁﬁ% HEET BEET &
Mainland China i BB 2,666 2,194 +22%
Hong Kong, Taiwan BB HE

and Others K EH A 228 130 +75%
o Despite a decline in physical store sales in Mainland China due to s BEPHEAKEEREHERERBY

the pandemic, online sales continued to grow at a fast pace and
accounted for approximately 19% of Mainland China sales (2021:
15%). We have applied ourselves assiduously to live streaming
using both home-grown and external talents in over 19,000 (2021:
7,900) hours of shows, achieving satisfactory results on the Douyin
platform and elsewhere.

o Online sales in Hong Kong and other regions maintained its
strong growth in 2022. Remarkable growth was recorded in Chow
Sang Sang official website and across all major Hong Kong and
international platforms. Our Hong Kong online shop now features
Tudor watches as well as gold bars.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

REREZRTE(H)

Chow Sang Sang Omni-Channel Retailing (continued)

Omni-Remote Sales

Omni-Remote Sales include sales generated from e-commerce
platforms, Star Concierge Service and other remote sales
concluded out of in-person branch environment or with remote
inventory. The percentage of sales in 2022 to total sales in
Mainland China slightly increased to 34% (2021: 33%).

Percentage of Omni-Remote Sales was stable. Online 7x24 sales
and in-store sales complemented one another especially during the
pandemic period.

Product and Marketing

On the product front, gold jewellery sales demonstrated great
resilience. Our "Culture Blessings” collection of gold ornaments
remained the preferred choice of customers. Our newly introduced
collections, “Mirror Gold” and “Diamond Symphony”, have been
well-received by customers. In terms of market, affordable luxury
daily wear jewellery in Mainland China still recorded a slight
increase in 2022.

In 2022, the pandemic particularly affected high unit price gem-
set jewellery. While the Personalised Jewellery Service relied more
on larger-carat diamond sales, total sales were down 23% vyear-
on-year. Sales from this service accounted for 30% (2021: 37%)
of our diamond jewellery sales. However, with the increasing
popularity of online channels, 2022 online Personalised Jewellery
Service sales in Mainland China and Hong Kong increased by
101% and 32% respectively year-on-year.

The covid-19 epidemic situation remained volatile throughout
2022. It was not conducive to physical marketing campaigns,
but we still managed to launch a number of eye-catching events
timely, including the “Infini Love Diamond Kaleidoscope Tunnel
Exhibition”, "PROMESSA Interactive Roadshow”, culture-themed
gold jewellery exhibition and new product salon, etc. The Group
participated in a total of 12 (2021: 27) wedding expos in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Taiwan in 2022.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEE&EBERERAA

BELERETE(H)

PREEEHE

PREEDHERE HETHET
5 EEERBELNHEE  URE
BREOERBENIINSEREEFRE
TRERAERHEE 2022 FHIHE
EHRBEAREBHENBILMAZE
34% (20214 :33%) °

2REEDHEGLET - HRIRE
BEM S F7x4REEEDER
EHEEELTRER -

EmRREREHER

16

EmAE EtfiniEsBrtEx
BN o [XERE IR R & 8R 1D
RERANESHMER - MELNE
mEN=ES (SR 08 |
EXEANED - EmigHE - PEK
PEEEREMEBHKER 2022 F ik
BEMFIE -

R2022F AREBELEFYESEE
BRHKE  MEBZREERER
ARNEMHMEE - AL BHEER
FTE23%  WBERBHHE S HE
HRFIHE A E30% (20214
37%) c KR EREFHER -
BKRERE R EEBRRISHE
BEDSH EF101% K 32% o
202F B BMARE - THRREST
ERMSHERETE  ARMDERE
HZESATEES  BEE2EE
ERETLEABERE ] - [PROMESSA
BEKE] BHESHimRLI M
DWEEE  KEBR2022FEF
BAKE - EBERAEXZ2MT 125
(20214 : 2735 ) IEES -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022

P
TR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Wholesale of Precious Metals

EemitH

The pandemic and ongoing cross-border restrictions brought precious
metal trading and sourcing activities to a halt. Turnover in 2022
decreased by 62% year-on-year to HK$766 million.

E-commerce Platform

BIHETA

We operate an e-commerce platform for the sale of jewellery that are
set with laboratory-grown diamond under the business name “The
Future Rocks”. In 2022, The Future Rocks continued to add laboratory-
grown diamond jewellery brands worldwide to its platform. The Future
Rocks also launched on China online platforms TMall International,
Xiaohongshu and WeChat mini programme in May, followed by Douyin
in June. Media events and collaborations with KOLs have also been held
in Mainland China, Japan and France.

EEENMRDN

RIEMFENERERHSIBECENES
MEBEDEEAGRE - 2022 F 2 XERF
THK62% E766 BEETT ©

H LA The Future Rocks] AELLTEE
BREEENHREENEFAHETES  The
Future RocksR2022 F 4 & 5| At R &
M H) S B AR R R MR © The Future
Rocks M5 AEFRBIMGR EFAaRME
B NIERMBE N EFRRELEE
BEEROAERSHRARTHLEHEE I
ERBEARE - BA  EEBTTHETH
R EAEZ AT (KOL) B 1E ©

Securities and Futures Broking - the Discontinued Operation
EBERPERL - RUEREXEY

The Securities and Futures Broking business has since early May 2021
ceased operation. We have been processing unclaimed assets. Under
the Order of the Court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong
("High Court”) dated 29 March 2022, some of the unclaimed assets
were paid into court on 15 July 2022. Other unclaimed assets belonging
to several deceased customers will be released to the estates or paid
into court, pending the outcome of the relevant grant applications.
Complete shutdown will occur when all such assets are returned or
placed into court custody.

Since the commencement of legal actions against the customers
who defaulted on the repayment of margin loans, the payment of
commission fees and margin facility interests, and their respective
guarantors in the High Court in February 2021, the Group has obtained
judgments in certain actions and is now in the process of enforcing the
judgments and petitioning bankruptcy of certain individuals based on
the relevant judgment debts as appropriate.

Provisions for impairment losses on margin loans totalling HK$31 million
and HK$93 million were made for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, respectively. Provisions were made with reference to the
aggregate market value of the underlying collaterals at closing market
prices quoted on the Stock Exchange as at the respective financial year
end dates. As at 31 December 2022, total loans due from the customers
in default, net of total credit loss allowance, amounted to HK$124
million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Investments

Investment Properties

The Group holds various properties with a total carrying value of
HK$508 million for rental purpose as at 31 December 2022. Rental
income for 2022 from investment properties amounted to HK$12
million.

Shares in HKEC

The Group's investment in 3,326,800 shares or 0.26% of HKEC is of
strategic nature and is the remaining part of the distribution received
from the reorganisation of the then exchanges in the year 2000. Such
investment was carried at fair value of HK$1,122 million as at 31
December 2022, representing 6% of the Group's total assets. During the
year, the Group received dividends in the amount of HK$25 million and
recorded a loss of HK$393 million recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of fair value change of the Group’s financial assets
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Capital Expenditure

The Group incurred capital expenditure of HK$395 million of which
HK$314 million was spent on new openings and refitting of stores.

Finance

Financial Position and Liquidity

The Group generates strong recurring cashflow from its retailing
business and continues to enjoy a solid cash position. As at 31
December 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$749
million (2021: HK$672 million). Cash is mostly held in Renminbi or Hong
Kong dollar and deposited in leading banks with maturity dates falling
within one year.

The Group was well supported by over HK$8,772 million in banking
facilities including bank borrowings and bullion loans, out of which
HK$1,096 million are committed facilities. As at 31 December 2022, the
total unutilised banking facilities amounted to HK$3,879 million (2021:
HK$3,038 million).

As at 31 December 2022, total bank borrowings and bullion loans
amounted to HK$1,567 million and HK$3,073 million respectively, which
were unsecured in accordance with the Group’s policy. The weighted
average tenure of bank borrowings is around three years. The gearing
ratio was 39%, based on total bank borrowings and bullion loans of
HK$4,640 million as a percentage of equity attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$11,891 million. The current ratio of the Group was
2.7.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance (continued)

Financial Position and Liquidity (continued)

The Group manages risk of credit cost and availability by several
means: cultivating relationship with a large number of lending banks;
diversifying the funding sources by engaging a number of local
and overseas banks; putting some loans on a term basis; and fixing
interest costs on loans as appropriate. The Group had 25% of its bank
borrowings at fixed rates as at 31 December 2022, increased from 23%
as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, outstanding derivatives on the books were
mainly bullion contracts for hedging the bullion price exposure.
Management monitors the hedging policy closely and the hedging level
of the Group is approximately 40% of the total gold inventories.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses are mostly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and US dollar. As such,
the risk is easily manageable and slight. Simultaneously, the Group
maintains an appropriate level of foreign currency borrowings for natural
hedge, foreign currency forward contracts and cross currency swaps,
to mitigate foreign exchange exposure. As at 31 December 2022, the
bank borrowings denominated in US dollar, Renminbi and New Taiwan
dollar amounted to US$9 million, RMB60 million and NT$175 million
respectively.

Charge on Assets, Lease Liabilities and Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there was no asset pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had lease liabilities of HK$983
million (2021: HK$907 million) and had no material contingent liabilities.

Human Resources

The Group maintains its long-established performance-based
remuneration policies with a discretionary annual performance bonus.
Training has been provided to new and existing staff at a pace
commensurate with the expansion of the networks in all territories.

A share option scheme is in place to provide incentives or rewards to
eligible participants for their contribution to the Group and enabling the
Group to attract and retain valuable employees. Details of the scheme
are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Human Resources (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of employees of the Group
was 11,673, of whom 9,989 in Mainland China, 1,456 in Hong Kong
and Macau, and 228 in Taiwan. During the year ended 31 December
2022, total staff costs amounted to HK$1,935 million.

Outlook

As of the first quarter of 2023 the worst of the covid-19 impact looks
to be behind us. This puts our jewellery and watch retail on a strong
recovery footing. Sales in Hong Kong and Macau, and Mainland China
for the period from 1 January to 15 March 2023 were up approximately
89% and 26% year-on-year respectively.

We remain committed to our long-established business strategy, which
includes (1) steady expansion of jewellery and watch store network; (2)
Chow Sang Sang Omni-Channel Retailing; and (3) continuous product
innovation and robust customer communication.

We continue to steadily expand the number of our jewellery and watch
stores, utilising multi-brand strategy and different decorating styles to
enhance shopping experience and strengthen brand positioning. We
expect the number of net store additions for the Group will be around
100 in 2023. Within the Chow Sang Sang Omni-Channel Retailing
ecosystem, customers enjoy all-round jewellery shopping “anytime”,
“anywhere” and “at any time"”. Greater emphasis is put on developing
live-streaming marketing and sales platforms, and realising new retail
strategy and online and offline marketing through short videos and
new media channels. We are making use of advanced technology to
optimise demand forecast, logistics and distributions as well as customer
relationship management. We leverage design digitalisation and further
production automation to build a more agile and customer-focused
supply chain.

Grave geopolitical tensions and worrisome economic indicators
notwithstanding, we have faith in riding on the growth trends with
our compact but effective self-owned retail network, our disciplined
inventory mechanisms and our commitment to digitisation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are active in the field of the manufacture and retail of
jewellery, distribution of watches, the wholesale of precious metals
and e-commerce platform operation. Details of the principal activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
Group's financial position as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 79 to 198.

An interim dividend of HK15.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on 23
September 2022. The Board has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK15.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 8 June 2023.

Business Review

A fair review and the outlook of the Group’s business are provided in
the Chairman’s Message on page 3 and the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 9 to 20 of this annual report. Details of the significant
event of the Group after reporting period are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements. Certain financial key performance
indicators are provided in the Financial Highlights on page 2.

An account of the Group’s key relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers as well as the principal risks and uncertainties
of the Group are shown in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
56 to 70.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations are

included in the ESG Report on pages 31 to 55.

The above review constitutes part of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited consolidated financial statements and reclassified as
appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

LERBER

TXEIASRBBEREMBRFELER
hEE BE AENMERESZHER
(RSB EERGAM BRI REES
REHNE) - WHBY TEREELESR
IigERER 2 — 87 -

Results E7
Year ended 31 December
BZNA3MALEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT TET TAR TET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BELSEEY
Turnover EER
Retail TE 19,751,940 19,921,938 13,097,720 16,258,416 17,130,414
Other businesses eSS 804,576 2,065,621 1,899,821 1,453,697 1,641,415
20,556,516 21,987,559 14,997,541 17,712,113 18,771,829
Operating profit gyl 592,764 1,005,711 943,749 1,312,255 1,276,594
Share of profits of RERBE R
associates, net wHRE - - - _ 245
Profit before tax Iyl 592,764 1,005,711 943,749 1,312,255 1,276,839
Income tax ity (117,003) (265,331) (304,611) (312,564) (304,907)
Profit for the year SELEEKL
from continuing ERREH
operations 475,761 740,380 639,138 999,691 971,932
DISCONTINUED OPERATION KPR
Profit/(loss) for the year from RIEREEB R
discontinued operation WA/ (EE) (34,039) (100,611) (94,674) (356,158) 40,325
Profit for the year EREF 441,722 639,769 544,464 643,533 1,012,257
Profit/(loss) for the year EEERER/ (BB) -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ARAEBA 452,326 643,257 544,464 643,533 1,012,257
Non-controlling interests IR (10,604) (3,488) - - -
441,722 639,769 544,464 643,533 1,012,257
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Five-year Financial Summary (continued)

Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling interests

IEMBERE(E)
BE RERIEREZ

As at 31 December

R12A318

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TAT FET TET AT

Total assets BEE 18,650,857 18,088,758 16,826,467 16,236,438 13,838,036
Total liabilities BaRE (6,780,629)  (5.345,297)  (4,807,353)  (5,604,053)  (3,419,099)
Non-controlling interests Fludiiy ey 20,315 9,659 - - -
11,890,543 12,753,120 12,019,114 10,632,385 10,418,937

Charitable Contributions BEBRR
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling FAREE 2 BEHBH 375,000 7T °

HK$375,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively. Further
details of the Group’s properties are set out on pages 199 to 202 of this
annual report.

Share Capital

There was no movement in the Company’s share capital during the year.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

Share Option Scheme

A summary of the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 11 June
2020 (“Share Option Scheme”) is set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements. No share option was granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Emolument Policy

The long-established performance-based emolument policy for
the employees of the Group operates on the basis of rewarding
performance, with appropriate consideration on experience and
prevailing industry practices.

The Company determines the emoluments of the Directors on the
basis of the comparable companies, time commitment, responsibilities,
employment conditions, the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
employees of the Group are set out in notes 9 and 11 respectively to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out the guideline on declaring and recommending the
payment of dividends.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into account,
inter alia, the following factors:

o financial results;

o cash flow situation;

. business conditions and strategies;

o future operations and earnings;

o capital requirements and expenditure plans;

o interests of shareholders;

o any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

o any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The Company intends to distribute between 30% to 40% of the
Group's annual consolidated net profits as dividends to its shareholders.
The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to
time.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, amounted to HK$1,382,639,000 of which
HK$101,615,000 has been proposed as final dividend for the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 75% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 45%.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest suppliers.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing
Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun

Mr. LEE Ka Lun

Dr. LO King Man

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung

Each of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, Mr. LEE Ka Lun and Dr. LO King
Man shall retire by rotation as Directors at the 2023 annual general
meeting (the “2023 AGM") pursuant to bye-law 99(B) of the Company's
bye-laws. All retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the 2023 AGM.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2023 AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management up to the
date of this report are set out on pages 4 to 8 of this annual report.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts

Save as detailed in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or his connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of
the year.

Management Contracts

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts relating to the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or in existence during
the year.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company's bye-laws and subject to the provisions of the
statutes, every Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2022 which is still in force.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the Directors in the issued
share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as
follows:

Long positions:

EEnkOzER

R2022F 128318 SEFRARAI
HigHzB(TE A(BHFRBER)E
XVEB)EBTRAS  (BHLBEK
)8 352 AR RIA T IRTF 2 B RETEE
8 IBRBEETRINAERARE RBER
FTEm EEMT

#

iny

Number of shares held

BRYE

Approximate
Personal Family ~ Corporate Trustee percentage of
interest interest interest interest Total  shareholding
RRERS
Name of Directors Esps BAER FEER AAER  ERAER ait Rl
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing B2k 54 - - - 136,271,595 136,271,595 20.12
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing RAHRBE 960,000 70,3987 74,995,996” - 76,026,394 11.22
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing A %4 28,681,104 52,8007 14,244316”  32,616,000% 75,594,220 11.16
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun RRBEE 1,320,000 - - - 1,320,000 0.19

Note: Wiz

M Pplease refer to the notes in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’

and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS BEEERE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares FTERRREMAITRBROREBERAEZ
and Underlying Shares R

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of those persons in the issued N2022F 128310 BIKEARAE
share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of interests GEBINE 3361 - ARABTRELEES
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO MacsEANEERRBCBITRAAL 24

were as follows: Fas (BN
Long positions: #E
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity shares held shareholding
£ &% ER¥E Bkl
Everwin Company Limited Beneficial Owner 120,000,000" 17.71
EERAA
Speed Star Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner and Interest of
Controlled Corporation 74,995,996% 11.07
EalE ARREHIRA 2 #R
Schroders plc Investment Manager 54,021,447% 7.97
REEBA
Happy Family Limited Beneficial Owner 53,909,932% 7.96
RERERR DA EnFFAA
Pandanus Associates Inc. Interest of Controlled Corporation 34,009,000 5.02
REHAR] R
Pandanus Partners L.P. Interest of Controlled Corporation 34,009,000 5.02
REHAR] R
FIL Limited Interest of Controlled Corporation 34,009,000 5.02

RSN R 2
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes:

M

136,271,595 shares in the Company were held by a discretionary trust of
which Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing was the beneficiary. The trustee
of the trust was Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited, which held the
interests in the Company through the following companies:

Name of companies
RE] 5

Everwin Company Limited
Golden Court Limited

Accordingly, Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited was deemed to have
interests in the 136,271,595 shares. Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing was
deemed to have interests in the 136,271,595 shares in the Company.

70,398 shares and 52,800 shares in the Company were held by the
respective spouse of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing.

60,751,680 shares in the Company were held by Speed Star Holdings
Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
and his spouse.

14,244,316 shares in the Company were held by Eimoling Company
Limited, in which Speed Star Holdings Limited and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing owned 44.5% of the equity interest respectively.

32,616,000 shares in the Company were held by CWS Holdings Limited,
a company beneficially owned by a discretionary trust of which
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing was the founder and one of the
beneficiaries. The trustee of the trust was UBS TC (Jersey) Ltd. and,
accordingly, it was deemed to have interests in the 32,616,000 shares in
the Company.

Accordingly, Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and his spouse were deemed
to have interests in the 75,066,394 shares and 75,955,996 shares in the
Company respectively. Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and his spouse were
deemed to have interests in the 46,913,116 shares and 75,541,420 shares
in the Company respectively.

Schroders plc through its subsidiaries, namely Schroder Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited, Schroder Investment Management
Limited, Schroder Investment Management North America Limited,
Schroder Investment Management (Singapore) Ltd. and Schroder &
Co. Limited, held 28,158,447 shares, 155,000 shares, 42,000 shares,
25,447,000 shares and 219,000 shares in the Company respectively, and
was accordingly deemed to be interested in the respective shares held by
the aforesaid companies.

53,909,932 shares in the Company were held by Happy Family Limited, in
which the late Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling had a 20% equity interest.
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TEREREMATARGREERD Z
Rz ()
Wit -
(1) —THAZREETHELRRA 136,271,595 K
B AXKAEABZETLZIRA M

Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited
REZGETZIETA  HBERTIARES

/NG 5
No. of shares held
FHREA
120,000,000
16,271,595

Iit,  Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman)
Limited#% 18 /& % £ 136,271,595 & &
Mgz FXRKEEWE RBEERRA
136,271,595 [ {7 #E 25

Q2 RPuXBEREAKLESEZEEDR
BAARRE 70,398 8% M 52,800 fx k(s °

Speed Star Holdings Limited #7871
60,751,680 (MR 10 + 22 7] f AR B &
RERBERES -

Eimoling Company Limited$5 58 A& 2 7]
14,244,316 &% {7 * Speed Star Holdings
Limited R AR EED R EAZ D A
44.5% 2 [N RS ©

CWS Holdings Limited# & & 2 &
32,616,000 % f&fn * Z AR —BEEE
ERERER  AAKAERZETIR
TAREFR—HZamA o UBS TC (Jersey)
Ltd. BEZEFE2EEA  AWRAES
ANA 732,616,000 AP 7 #E A o

A AR EERERBDAEEA
A RN 7) 75,066,394 1% K 75,955,996
Bl hERZ  AAKEERERBS
AR AR A D E46,913,116 % K
75,541,420 & IR (R i 5 o

(3)  Schroders plciE i@ H [ff B 2 & Schroder
Investment Management (Hong Kong)
Limited ~Schroder Investment Management
Limited ~Schroder Investment Management
North America Limited ~ Schroder
Investment Management (Singapore) Ltd.
% Schroder & Co. Limited 2 Bl A AR E]
28,158,447 1% ~ 155,000 f% + 42,000 f% -
25,447,000 % % 219,000 A% A £ - FH L4
BRER FRRRSERA R -

4 MELREEBBRL2AFLAELRDQF
53,909,932k fh - MEMAE S KL
BHEE20% IRAER o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(5)  Pandanus Partners L.P. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pandanus
Associates Inc., and Pandanus Partners L.P. holds 38.71% shareholding
of FIL Limited. Pandanus Associates Inc., Pandanus Partners L.P. and FIL
Limited are therefore deemed to be interested in the 34,009,000 shares of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person, other
than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section headed
"Directors’ Interests in Shares” above, had registered an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group did not have any connected transactions
which were subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the year and
up to the date of this report.

Events after the Reporting Period

Save as disclosed in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements,
there were no other significant events occurred after the reporting
period and up to the date of this annual report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire, and being
eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the 2023 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
23 March 2023
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group complies with the HKEx ESG Guide. The primary purpose
of this report is to disclose the Group’s current management approach
and performance in social and environmental responsibility as well as its
vision for sustainable development strategies.

This report covers our performance for the year ended 31 December
2022. Unless specified otherwise, all policies and management systems
described in this report refer to our manufacturing and retailing of
jewellery and distribution of watches in Greater China. ESG performance
indicators presented in this report cover main operations in Hong Kong
and Mainland China unless stated otherwise. Revenue contribution
and the associated ESG impacts are the primary factors in defining the
reporting boundary. The operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China
contributed to the majority of our total revenue. As our operations have
continued to expand, the number of retail stores included in this report
has also increased.

In preparing this report, the Group has fully considered the four
Reporting Principles in the HKEx ESG Guide, namely materiality,
quantitative, consistency and balance. This report prioritises and details
the issues deemed important from the perspectives of our stakeholders
and business. In addition to policy and programme descriptions, we
also provide performance data of the current and previous years
and corresponding narratives to reflect our ESG management more
comprehensively. Unless otherwise specified, we adopt the same
methodologies to derive the disclosed data.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Statement

The Board oversees the Group's ESG strategy, material ESG-related risks
including climate-related risks and the effectiveness of our ESG risk
management and internal control systems. The Board is also responsible
for overseeing the establishment of environmental targets and the
associated reporting disclosures, while our management is responsible
for implementing ESG management and objectives.

By taking part in stakeholder engagement and endorsing materiality
analysis, the Board provides oversight of the evaluation and prioritisation
of ESG-related issues. The Group's risk management framework and
ESG-related risks, such as climate-related risks, are under the Board’s
supervision. The Board is committed to taking actions to identify,
mitigate and adapt to the ESG-related risks of our company.

The Group has established an ESG Working Group to raise the
environmental protection, social responsibility and corporate governance
awareness of our employees and drive group-wide contribution to
environmental protection. The Board has assigned the ESG Working
Group, which reports to the Board, to be in charge of monitoring
important ESG trends, targets, and associated risks and opportunities,
as well as assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's ESG-
related implementations and reviewing ESG policies when necessary. The
Group has also established an Environmental Sustainability Department
to support the formulation and implementation of the Group's
carbon neutral and sustainable environmental development strategy.
The Environmental Sustainability Department also coordinates and
cooperates with external agencies on carbon neutrality related projects,
and reports to the Chief Scientific and Sustainability Officer, a member
of the ESG Working Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT RIE HERERKRSE

Risk Management LB B 1R
A robust risk management approach is essential for the Group to REMEREEAZEAEERIRE 1
minimise ESG-related risks. Relevant policies and procedures are ehEREHRRERERELHEE - 17

implemented for managing ESG-related risks of the Group. We have BHRRENMEFCEMRNEBAREBIRE
clearly delegated role and responsibility to all relevant parties as e hEREERR - TR - B

presented in the table below. ERBEREARARZRTHABREBESA -
Role Responsibility
B BfiE
The Board - Oversee ESG-related risk management
EES EERE HekEnBBRRER

- Review the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems by
which ESG-related risks are monitored and mitigated
RECERNEREERABEZRGENEZELRERE e LERERER
oy idia

- Oversee the establishment of environmental targets and the associated reporting
disclosures
EEHTREAGRIEERERE

Audit Committee - Oversee ESG-related risk management procedures
ENLZEE® EERE  dekErnBERRERREF

- Review the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems

e L B TR e PO RBAR 6 R AR A R

Senior Management - Identify, analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risk, including ESG-
BREEE related risks associated with any activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority
Bl A BTG BY  BEREREERR BREASERERSEANIME

B BRI ABNERE e kEnElER
- Develop action plans to address potential ESG-related risks and contingency plans
for possible loss scenarios

REHEERE e RERRBRRKAELRBRNERDHFETHIRR

SRR
Internal Audit - Conduct review of different aspects of the operations, including ESG-related issues
N EBE % HEENTREBETR - BRERR HekEAEEEE

- Report findings to Audit Committee
MEZZEGREASHER

Risk assessment is carried out with ESG issues taken into consideration. ETEBIEREZERE  HERER
ESG-related risks involving loss will be investigated and properly EH - SREANRR HEREREH
documented as part of the effort to manage risks. REREEERAASTELZSEH - ER

Rk EE TEN—#D -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Analysis

BROENSERBERUDN

To understand our stakeholders’ perspectives and expectations on the
Group's ESG issues, the Group has maintained close communication
with internal and external stakeholders comprising employees,
customers, shareholders and investors, suppliers, community and
charitable organisations. There are various channels of communication
with these stakeholders including company website, meetings, online
communications, questionnaires, interviews, and on-site research and
investigation. The Group reviews the feedback from stakeholders
periodically to evaluate the materiality of the ESG topics in an ongoing
manner.

During the year, we made reference to the result of an independent
stakeholder engagement exercise conducted and the latest requirements
from the HKEx ESG Guide, combining with the results of latest industry
development trend captured by a peer benchmarking exercise for
deriving a materiality assessment matrix shown as below.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HEOGENEENY

Importance to Stakeholder

While we are striving for an overall balance in the disclosure of the
Group's ESG initiatives and performance, emphasis will be placed on

5.2

4.7

4.2

3.7

3.2

Service and product quality

R RERER

Occupational safety and health
BEz2MREE

Employee development and training
I8 & %R M5

Anti-corruption

RES

Customer privacy protection
EFLERE

Intellectual property rights

A ERE

Energy management

RRER

Employee remuneration

Diversity and equal opportunities
SR TFERS

Service and
) product quality
tlo::lltshafety BERERES

R e R Employee development
and training

ERERE KA

4.5 5 5.5
Importance to Business
HEBNEEM
Topics
L

10 Supply chain management
HEsE e

» Child and forced labour
BEIR®HSET

12 Responsible marketing
BEEEH

13 Packaging materials consumption
BEMHEER

14 Non-hazardous and hazardous waste management
BEENRERERNER
Water management

5 kapEm
Air emissions management

16 masmEse

17 Contribution to community development
HHEERNAR

18 Climate change management
RIRE (L EE

19 Wastewater management
FEKERE

issues which are considered more material to our business.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices

The Group is committed to ensuring that its products are of premium
quality, obtained through verified and ethical sources and that processes
are well controlled to prevent the occurrences of corrupt practice. We
were not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group, concerning
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress during the year.

Product Responsibility and Service Quality

The Group has systems in place to ensure that all products marketed are
monitored for (a) the fineness and veracity of materials; (b) the presence
of toxic elements as prescribed by national standards that we operate
in; and (c) conformance with our defined levels of workmanship.

Management protocols in place define the testing methods and
sampling procedures for different products and materials. Tests using
both surface spectrometric and destructive methods are done by
the Group's externally-accredited laboratories located in Hong Kong
and Shunde. Among them, Hong Kong Gemological Research and
Authentication Centre Company Limited, our wholly owned subsidiary,
was accredited as a “Designated Local Research Institution” in the
qualified R&D activities launched by the Hong Kong Innovation and
Technology Commission. Besides, workmanship inspection is conducted
at several stages on all products along the supply chain. All our products
are required to undergo quality assessment according to China national
standards such as GB/T 16554 at National Gemstone Testing Center for
high quality assurance. With the stringent quality assurance process,
there were no records of products sold or shipped subject to recall for
safety and health reasons during the year (2021: Nil).

In case of defective or unqualified products identified, the Group
will evaluate the associated risks and scope of the issue and initiate
appropriate recall procedures. When potential safety and health risks are
observed, the Group would promptly notify the relevant parties. Once
the affected products are identified, we will develop an action plan
and a timeframe for recalling the distributed products. We will further
request to submit a final incident report that analyses the reasons for
recall with necessary corrective measures to prevent future recurrence.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT BE HERERRE

Operating Practices (continued) EETRI(E)

Product Responsibility and Service Quality (continued) EREXRBEEE(E)

Management has established policies to ensure that the advertising and EEEHFTBRRNBRERES MEET
labelling of our products are in line with applicable laws and regulations. BEAEERERN - 1o AFEKREE

Moreover, in conformance with the Group’s Code of Conduct, H1{TASE EEELEAHERENER
management has systems in place to ensure that intellectual property ARPAEELEMETHABERSE
rights, both our own and of other parties, are observed and respected in BIMEBEE . AEEARA REMKRAE
our business dealings. The Group protects its own intellectual property EANEIRIEREEMARERENH#E
rights by undertaking relevant registration in Hong Kong and overseas HE o

for its own created brands and designs.

Should there be any enquiries or complaints, the Group has a dedicated WU R M E R eF - AEERAEMN
team of customer relations personnel for quick response. Customers can HNEFEBEEAEBN - o AR {EH L JE -

reach the team via various channels, including: REAEAZEREMRSE B

e service hotlines; o IRFGEGE

e LIVE CHAT; and o ERRE: K

e social media platforms including Facebook, Weibo, WeChat and o HREET A(EFEFacebook *
Instagram. 18« #{= & Instagram) °

In addition, all store staff are trained to handle queries on products, WoN TAES RELHESEBEHE

maintenance and repair. All customer correspondence through the m RERGEERENE) - IEREA

proper channels is logged and documented. In 2022, 38 product-and AEHERBESERENGRIEFE -

service-related complaints were received as compared to 75 in 2021. 202F B ESTEERREREE
MR - 2021 FRIFT5R -

’//// N .
Recognitions on Quality Services - awarded by ﬁ
Hong Kong Retail Management Association ey

ERBERBNRY - HEESEEEHEREE TLI=

2022 Quality Service Retailer of the Year of Retail Excellence Award (Gold)
Chain Stores - Silver Award | BERBRBRE (£58)

2022 REBBRETEAE—EHE - R

[

2022 Top 10 020 Retail Brand j" Outstanding Flagship Service Brand

2022 T K020 TERE | BEEEERB R /

In recent years, the Group has been implementing an effective online- RER AEE-BERTERNELET
to-offline (“020") strategy to provide a more multifaceted and BE([020))%EE - AERREEZ LI
seamless shopping experience for customers. The Group had been REGEENER  AEE-—BEBNIRSE
working on improving its information technology infrastructure to HEARSERES  UBERERBAR -
scale development. The Group was awarded Digital Transformation of AEER2022FBFEMEZTEES FREF
the Year at Alibaba Cloud Summit Hong Kong 2022, The Pioneer of BHTERE - N 2022 F2KEEAIH
Digital Intelligence Enterprise award at 2022 Global Business Innovation ARELREEECERBE  URCSE
Conference, and 2022 Digital Innovation Leadership Award at the 11th +— R CIE G L’ 2022 BT LRIFTSIE
China Finance Summit. 5o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices (continued)

Product Responsibility and Service Quality (continued)

The Group won two awards (Best Retail Innovation Grand Award -
Use of Technology, and Best Retail Innovation Grand Award — Market
Potential & Performance) in Hong Kong Retail Innovation Award 2022
organised by the Hong Kong Retail Technology Industry Association.
One of the awards was in recognition of Chow Sang Sang’s innovative
technology application and unique customer experience at the "V&A
Museum in conjunction with Chow Sang Sang Concept Store” at K11
MUSEA, Hong Kong.

Customer Data Protection

The Group maintains a customer database. We have policies and
procedures in place to ensure compliance with the relevant local laws
and regulations, General Data Protection Regulation of the European
Union and Personal Information Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China, which govern the collection, use, retention and protection
of the customers’ personal data. We collect and maintain only the
minimum personal data of our customers in our database. The database
is well protected both in policy and technological terms. Customer data
are released strictly on a need-to-know basis and will not be released
to external parties or even to units within the Group that are not the
original data collectors without prior consent. Relevant details of our
Privacy Policy are available on our company website.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has comprehensive procurement and supply chain
management policies which are benchmarked against the best industry
practice principles. During the supplier selection process, the Group
conducts background checks and gives preference to suppliers currently
working towards responsible and sustainable operation. Besides, we
not only consider the infrastructure, production capacity and market
reputation of the potential suppliers, but also their commitment to
comply with legal, ethical and social aspects.

Diamond suppliers are required to provide documented proof of the
ethical provenance of their raw materials. All materials and finished
goods are monitored as stated under the paragraph “Product
Responsibility and Service Quality” and only those that passed the
tests are accepted. Through prioritising suppliers with demonstrated
management and high performance on ESG aspects, relevant social
and environmental risks arisen from the supply chain are mitigated and
managed. All new suppliers are required to complete a checklist with
ESG associated elements for understanding their environmental and
social risks performance and they will be randomly assessed annually.
We strive to work out a solution with suppliers once substandard goods
and materials are identified. These suppliers are subject to a system
of warnings, temporary or even permanent blocking of orders if no
improvements have been made thereafter.
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Operating Practices (continued)

Supply Chain Management (continued)

Where possible, the Group maintains relationships with multiple
suppliers to prevent the risks inherent in over-reliance on suppliers.
The Group also supports fair competition when selecting potential
suppliers by observing relevant laws and regulations. This commitment
is communicated with the procurement staff in the procurement and
supply chain management policies.

ZETR(E)

REREE (&)
ERATHRR T AREES EHREDE
BRERHER  UMELBEEREZR
b - ARBEEEREEETHBAER
RO A RFHTF o thkaa ARE
FHEREERREERRBEERE -

No. of Suppliers by Geographical Region
RiES D HNHERHE

fB

7
2022 2021

Anti-corruption

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations, our employees are
required to comply with the rules stipulated in our Employee Handbook
and Anti-Corruption Policy, which provide definitions of permissible and
impermissible giving and receiving of advantages and gifts. Employees
are required to report receipts and subsequent disposal of gifts. Our
employees are also required to follow the Group's Code of Conduct,
which defines appropriate methods in handling conflict of interests.
Additionally, the Group has implemented the Prevention of Money
Laundering Policy, which spells out the principles, work and reporting
mechanism relating to criminal activities.

The management has arranged online trainings for employees on their
expected conduct upon the identification of potential incidents of
corruption or bribery within the workplace. Relevant anti-corruption
trainings are provided and directors and all staff are informed
periodically of the latest requirement regarding anti-corruption practices.
Under the whistleblowing policy, employees are protected if they submit
signed reports on suspicious activities. During the year, there were
no reported cases of corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering (2021: Nil).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices

Training and development programmes, employee welfare and relationship

B dHERERHE
ERREIER
BIlkER;E BERMMEIRER

building initiatives have always been particularly important to our GREBHAEBEBLAEE - AEEE
business. The Group proactively adopts best practices in human resource BERAANNBERERNZEEE - DER
management to cope with the ever-changing business environment. REBENMERSE -
a . : w7
Recognitions on Employment Best Practices
ARERREERNREY
2022 Top Human Resources Management Award Jointly announced by Foshan Shunde District
awarded by 51job Federation of Trade Unions, Foshan Shunde
ERREEEE (2022 AHEREBETE] Federation of Industry and Commerce, Foshan
Shunde Civil Affairs and Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau as 2022 Shunde District “Advanced
Enterprise Caring for Employees”
HEELTEEEATE - RLUTIEERIEXEAE - |
HLTIEERRBMANERELERERMAENS |
2022 FEIERE [HEETRELR] )
Employment 4
The Group observes relevant employment laws and regulations. Being AEBETHBRERFEELEEIBEH - EAF

an equal opportunities employer, the Group and its management
embrace diversity in its workforce and ensure that the employees are
not discriminated against in recruitment and promotion because of their
ethnicity, age, gender, marital status, physical or mental health status,
family status, sexual orientation, religion or belief.

Complying with relevant laws and regulations, the Group strictly
prohibits child and forced labour in all business operations. In the
recruitment process, the Human Resources Department implements
appropriate procedures to ensure that all job applicants reach the
legal working age through checking their valid identification at the
recruitment stage to verify their age. Employment contracts are entered
on the principle of equality and voluntarism including the right to
terminate employment and the right to provide adequate protection
in respect of minimum wages, working hours and annual leave. Our
suppliers are also required to confirm that their employment does not
involve child and forced labour. In 2022, there was no identified case
regarding child and forced labour.

On the other hand, the Group requires employees to comply with its
Code of Conduct, which stipulates the Group’s value and expectations
on employees to uphold high standard of ethics and integrity. The
document/handbook containing the Code of Conduct is available on the
Group's intranet.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has employed a total of
11,673 employees, of which 11,319 employees work in Hong Kong
and Mainland China. The relevant total number of employees by
geographical region, employment category, gender and age group as at
31 December 2021 and 2022 are as follows:
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Breakdown of Employee Statistics

BTG

Total Workforce by Geographical Region

BH (% &) 77 1 8 B 4B 2L

Mainland China
NG

9,989
9,382

1,330

1,303
Hong Kong

Eit

Total Workforce by Employment Category
R IEIF A5 &) 77 i 1E 5 4B 2L

General Staff 7,080
—KRET
Middle Management 3.016
TEEEAR
some
Upper Management 589
SEERAR
W 2022
Employee Turnover Rate
by Gender
L FIE| 7 aE 8 w56 F
% 37.9
347
30.4
27.0
Male Female <30
3

W 2022
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Employee Turnover Rate
by Age Group

BFGALFIE 7 1B R AR F

Total Workforce by Gender
"L FE) 7 0918 S 482

% 9,189
= 8,625

Female
&
(% 2,130
° 2,060
Male
B2

Total Workforce by Age Group
IRFBEAFIE 5 0 1E S 4820

A o
5P —
K

30-50
>50

2,668
2,830

8,280
7,520

[ 2021

Employee Turnover Rate by
Geographical Region

BABEAOEDTSEE

%
39.6
31.4
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[ 2021
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
2022 & i



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Employee Welfare

Beyond the requirements stipulated in the applicable laws and
regulations, the Group maintains an open and standardised framework
for employment, salary review and promotion. Apart from basic salary,
employees are rewarded with performance-based bonuses. Benefits such
as paid vacation leave and insurance are commensurate with, or better
than local practices and legal requirements. Relevant policies are fully
communicated through the Handbook for staff reference.

We enhance the overall communication across various departments and
ranks within the Group through the platform WeCom. WeCom allows
the employees to access the latest corporate and training information,
as well as personal exchanges more efficiently and conveniently.

The management level of the Group regularly reviews employees’ goal
alignment, job performance and working conditions to ensure that the
employees’ personal development and job performance improvement
are in alignment with business priorities. Grievance procedures are in
place for the protection of employees. Personal details of employees are
strictly protected.

Work Safety and Health

The Group adheres to the principle of “safety and prevention first”
to create an accident-free working environment for the employees.
As such, the Group has various committees established to ensure that
the employees have a safe and healthy working environment and to
further strengthen the implementation of relevant initiatives at divisional
level. Safety risks in various facilities have been identified, assessed and
managed with corresponding preventive measures. Committee meetings
are held to monitor our occupational health and safety performance
and regular safety inspections are conducted. Safety- and health-related
awareness building trainings are conducted for the benefit of all staff.

We complied with all the relevant laws and regulations related to
providing safe environment at all locations of operations and protecting
employees from potential occupational hazards. We had zero work-
related fatality in the last three years and 1,308 lost days due to work-
related injury in 2022 (2021: 1,362.5). Follow-up work had been carried
out immediately to reduce the likelihood of similar incidents in the
future.
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Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Work Safety and Health (continued)

In response to the ongoing outbreak of covid-19, we have continued to
implement flexible working hours and working from home arrangements
as well as several precautionary and safety measures to protect our
employees, including:

e setting up temperature checkpoints at store and office entrances;

o placing of disinfected carpets at office entrances;
o distributing alcohol wipes for sanitising office or store supplies;

o distributing surgical masks and gloves;

o staggering lunch hour to reduce physical contact; and

o enhancing usage of video conferencing system to minimise face-
to-face meetings.

Development and Training

To cope with the development of the Group’s omni-channel and multi-
brand strategy, the Group and its management oversee the design and
execution of various onboarding and on-the-job training programmes
for new and current employees, which cover topics such as product
knowledge, customer service, consultative selling skill, store marketing
and team management, property security and risk management, and
occupational safety. All these programmes are designed to support and
upskill all employees of different ranks and responsibilities. To promote
continuing education of employees, the Group has set up its own online
training platform, Channel T, to provide interactive communication
between trainers and employees on all business-related aspects.

To nurture high potential talents for the Group, a Management Trainee
Programme has been rolled out in Mainland China since 2020. To
align with the Group’s omni-channel retailing strategy, we provided
trainees with well-rounded development experience and exposure
through orientation sessions, store attachments and back-office project
management and execution.

In addition to utilising internal training resources, the Group subsidises
employees who require professional qualifications or advanced studies
for specific positions and caters to their specific training needs by
third-party professional trainings. The Group and its management are
dedicated to the continuous development of our employees' capabilities
and we value the personal and professional growth of our employees.
By fostering a culture of continuous learning, we seek to cultivate and
retain our best talents and maintain our competitive positioning in the
market.
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Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Development and Training (continued)

As the pandemic continued, the implementation of social distancing
measures drove us to keep on conducting virtual trainings via video
conferencing platforms such as Zoom, WeCom and Channel T. In 2022,
the percentages of employees trained and average training hours per
employee by gender and employment category are as follows:

EBREEIESR(E)

BERIE(E)

RNEBRE At RIBBEENERRFER
134 %“é’LﬂZoom B EMIE R Channel T
ERFERTAETRLE - 20225
RHRREEERESNZIEER DL
kBEARETKZIOFHRENT

Percentage of Employees ) Percentage of Employees Trained by O —
Trained by Gender Employment Category ([(—_]
JIE=TVaN Pal —_— HE B2 4y = 2 AN O O O
HHSIRI5 0 EHINER A AERITRIEIS 1S ED I 9 0 O
2022 13.1% 86.9% 2022 62.3% 33.8% 3.9%
2021 12.9% 87.1% 2021 65.5% 30.4% 4.1%
Male Female General Staff Middle Management  Upper Management
E Z —RET HEEEAER SEEEAS
Average Training Hours Completed m Average Training Hours Completed m
Per Employee by Gender O O Per Employee by Employment Category O 0O O
’ILEIE 7 - FE 18 S Tk X ley P05 2 ) RIERIEFIE S - 58S Tl I T2
hour /N hour /M
2022 24.5 50.9 2022 61.4 22.5 134
2021 23.5 51.4 2021 57.0 25.4 19.7
Male Female General Staff Middle Management Upper Management
£ L8 —RET HEEEAB BEEEAE
Environment RIR

The Group has made an internal environmental protection pledge
for environmental sustainability, where the Group values its role as a
responsible corporate citizen. For example, the Group bans shark fins,
humphead wrasse and other endangered species from the menu at
corporate functions. To reduce the generation of plastic and paper
waste, wherever feasible, reusable cups are provided for drinking.
Employees are encouraged to follow suit in their private life.

In 2022, we enriched the content of our Group Environmental Policy
to explicitly outlining our climate change and resources management
strategies. All business partners are expected to adhere to the policy.
The Group has also formulated Guidelines for Handling and Discharging
Effluent and Flue Gas, which delineates the proper disposal and
monitoring procedures for hazardous waste. The commitment to the
environment is further communicated to the employees through the
Group’s Code of Conduct.
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Environment (continued) RIE(E)

To demonstrate our commitment in combating climate change BTRBARMPEEYRIES(LERDRE
and reducing our environmental footprint, we set up the following EIRER D BAFERTE T AT 2030FRE
environmental targets for 2030. The Board will keep track on the BEE-E2o T REAEEAERR
Group's progress made against the environmental targets on a regular BEEHEAFENER -

basis.

2030 Targets
2030 F B &

Electricity consumption and electricity-led Water consumption and intensity*
greenhouse gas emissions intensity* HEKERTE"
ERRNENEHMAEREHNEE"

’ 7% at jewellery manufacturing factories
’ 7% at jewellery manufacturing factories RELEHE Y R R 7%
REUERE ZHER D 7%

=Tk

e
e-receipt

Paper Waste Reduction

AR

To increase the use of e-receipt for the
transaction records issued to customers with the
paper waste reduction programme to 70% by 2030
BB F PR AT B 2030 307 A E T Uk
EBREEFHRHEFTFOELRESZET0%

*  per product manufactured, compared to the Group’s average performance in GRS BIREE2016-2019 FHFH
2016-2019 EBEH B

Apart from the targets above, the Group has also developed a roadmap Bt BAES - AREE T T RS
towards decarbonisation. In medium term, we strive to enhance cHHEIME  BRFIEE IR EZE R
our disclosure on emission reduction, including targets set on each B BRRTRBEIREBE - R
environmental aspect and steps taken in achieving them. In the long BEREAENTH - REMES  RABBE
run, we aim to reach decarbonisation with a systematic approach based BERMESR WRIEBEZITERGS AN
on our targets set and by going beyond regulatory requirements. BRI ©

The Group has been advocating sustainable development business AEE-BEEHEEANRRRENER
model through various management approaches and strategies within W RBAREBEEEAREMER  EBEAHF
the dimensions of social responsibilities and environmental protection. BRREMEKEN - 2022F  AEEKA
In 2022, the Group is one of the first corporate clients to open a BEUREA—FRANERITHUAFERE
sustainable account with a renowned bank in Hong Kong. Through the FPONDMERPRP 7 — o FiBZR1T B
bank, we can indirectly support various sustainability projects. EMEE TSR ENSERRER -
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Environment (continued)

We operate in accordance with the local environmental laws and
regulations, and are not aware of any material environmental non-
compliance that would have a significant impact on the environment
or on the Group. We have summarised our efforts in managing climate
risks, energy and resource use, effluent, waste and emissions of air in
the paragraphs below.

Energy and Resources Management

We proactively adopt measures to minimise the environmental impacts
caused by our business operation. The management observes and seizes
opportunities for overall reduction in energy use across the Group.
We have signed up as participants to the Charter on External Lighting
organised by the Hong Kong Government, thereby committing to
switching off store lightings at the preset time. We may even switch
off store lightings earlier than the committed preset time after taking
into account of the operation hours and marketing needs of different
stores. To foster our employees’ awareness, tips and information on
carbon reduction and energy conservation are also disseminated on our
intranet.

During the year, we continued to carry out multiple energy and water
efficiency measures including:

o installing energy efficient lightings such as LED lights in our
standardised offices, factories and stores when feasible;

e controlling billboard and exterior lighting at street level stores with
timer; and

o maintaining indoor temperature at an optimal, comfortable level
to conserve energy.

Energy efficiency, water conservation, waste reduction and other
environmental impact mitigation have all been carefully considered
by the management as part of the design specifications in the
erection of the Shunde factory. Based on the experience gained in the
construction of the Shunde factory, we would also take these factors
into consideration in future building construction. Savings on air-
conditioning are achieved by taking measures to mitigate the heating
effect of the sun, to reduce heat generation by eliminating excess
lighting, and to place furnaces and other heat and emission dissipating
in isolated equipment room wherever feasible. Solar panels are installed
to generate electricity for our staff quarters and canteen. We have
adopted a centralised control system since 2020 to intelligently manage
the air conditioning system such as chilled water flow and temperature
of air handling unit.
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Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management (continued)

At the same time, various enhancement works have also been
implemented or planned. Our Xian factory established charters to avoid
energy- and water-wasting behaviour, as well as added an inverter
and repurposed used water in our manufacturing process to save the
resources. We aim to reduce water consumption and intensity by 7% at
jewellery manufacturing factories by 2030. We are gradually upgrading
the air conditioners to Grade 1 at Hong Kong factory.

B5 (&)

BEFEREFEE (&

A RMACKETLFIAZHERET
B RMNAZBERBNE  NEER
BRERAKNTTA  WREEREF BN
—AEEBRURERKULEER o FM
#) B AR 2N 2030 F 3 2 BTG SUEIRE 2 R
FRFRKEREERD 7% - RIFEERSR
BERE AR REERBGENESR o

/ Intensity
(Gigajoule (GJ) or Tonnes/
HKD million Turnover)
zE
Total Consumption® (FHEESME,
mERe" BEEBBTERT)
Type of Resource Unit
BRER B 2022 2021 2022 2021
Energy Indirect Energy | Megawatt Hour (MWh) 28,452 27,636 N/A N/A
BER Consumption | JKF B iR TEE
— Purchased
electricity | Gigajoule (GJ) 102,426 99,491 5.3 5.1
REaERE FIEE
-BEE
Direct Energy Gigajoule (GJ) 1,296 1,481
Consumption | FIKEE
~ Fuel'
B
- R
Water Freshwater Tonnes 109,041 114,665 5.5 5.8
K oK 7 -

*  figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

- Energy conversion factors used are referenced from the Accounting Methods
and Reporting Guidelines for Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Enterprises in
Other Industries by National Development and Reform Commission and The
Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited (“HK & China Gas”).

Fuel used in the operations includes natural gas, towngas, liquefied
petroleum gas and naphtha.
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Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management (continued)

We will keep track of our energy and water consumption and regularly
review the effectiveness of our current initiatives to further improve
our performance in energy and water use as well as greenhouse gas

B5 (&)

BEFEREFEE (&

RIH =B BRI RAKERH
oY ERREAMBABENFRL
DA — 25 20 & AR BE TR MK B R {2 A DA

Direct greenhouse gas emissions are emissions from sources that are owned
or controlled by us (Scope 1), including use of fuel for stationary combustion.
The data were calculated based on Guidelines to Account for and Report
on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial,
Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong and the World Resources
Institute’s Greenhouse Gas Accounting Tool for Chinese Cities (Pilot Version
1.0).

Indirect greenhouse gas emissions are emissions that are consequences of
the activities of our operations, but occur at sources owned or controlled
by other entities (Scope 2), including purchased electricity. The data were
calculated based on the default factors provided by electricity providers in
Hong Kong, such as Power Assets Holdings Limited, CLP Holdings Limited
and HK & China Gas. The emissions by electricity purchased in China were
calculated based on the FY2022 China’s Regional Grid Average CO, Emission
Factors.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESESEBRBEER QA

48

emissions. KRERBHRAENRE
/ Intensity
(Tonnes of Carbon Dioxide
Equivalent (tCO,e)/
HKD million Turnover)
BE
Total Emission” (A —FE(tREE
Scope of Greenhouse BYEBE" BHREBTEXH)
Gas Emissions Unit
BERBHNEE By 2022 2021 2022 2021
Scope 1 - Direct Tonnes of Carbon 80 82 0.8 0.8
Greenhouse Gas Dioxide Equivalent
Emissions (tCO,e)
gE1-EHE& NSl EE
BERE
g
Scope 2 - Indirect Tonnes of Carbon 15,670 16,060
Greenhouse Gas Dioxide Equivalent
Emissions (tCO,e)
CER AW REE
RERE
HE -
figures are rounded to the nearest whole number * BFEEIRIELEEH

B ERBEH BRI R G A LB A
B RIFHE R (FEE 1) - B EER RS
W ZEFHFORB(EEZEY (BE £
THRRSGE ) A0 E R R %
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R IHAFiHE - FIEEFEE A
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Climate Change Management

Climate change brings about potential risks and disturbances to
business operations. Consistent with our risk management policies,
our management is delegated to identify, analyse, evaluate, respond,
monitor and communicate risks related to climate change. To
understand and mitigate accordingly the significant climate-related
issues that would affect our business, we have commissioned a third-
party consultant to conduct a formal climate change impact assessment.

The assessment focused on the physical, transition and supply chain risks
posed by climate change in the Group's jewellery manufacturing and
retail operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The assessment
was performed by reviewing the Group’s business model, conducting
desktop research on the likelihood and impact of climate-related risks,
and engaging internal stakeholders on the mitigation measures to
address the impacts of climate change.

Physical risks

Operations located in Mainland China and Hong Kong are identified
with physical risks such as extreme wind or cyclone, flooding and
water stress. These extreme weather events would pose threats on our
business and the safety of our employees, such as property damages,
disturbance to daily operations, as well as disruption to the supply
chain of the Group. The impact of climate change has been mitigated
by various measures. Business contingency plans for our manufacturing
and retail operations are in place. Emergency response preparation
against flood is regularly reviewed. Employees are also guided with
corresponding work arrangements and safety precautions. To prevent
impact from flooding, all production equipment is placed above the
ground floor. The Group has also set water and energy consumption
reduction targets for our factories, and closely monitor the consumption
to enhance climate resilience. We will also monitor weather conditions
during severe weather events to prevent property harm, employee
injury, and disruptions.

Physical risk is well observed throughout the Group's supply chain, such
as the sourcing of pearls, where the production of oysters and mussels
are prone to environmental stress under climate change. The Group
has taken supply stability and product pricing into its current business
consideration, and incorporated sustainability as key priority in supplier
screening and assessment.

The Group believes that with our ongoing climate change adaptation,
mitigation and emergency response, physical risks would have minimal
impact on our business. We will continue to monitor the situation and
update our management approach to climate change.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Climate Change Management (continued)

Transition risks

Decarbonisation is one of the key national sustainability trends related
to climate change. To achieve the country’s 2060 carbon neutrality
goal, more preparatory initiatives shall be established for the Group.
The Group's operation may be affected by regulatory policies and legal
risk may arise from Mainland China’'s emissions trading scheme, and
voluntary agreements such as the green energy certificate programme.
We monitor energy efficiency performance and strive to reduce our
environmental impact and stay abreast of relevant laws to better prepare
the Group for adaptation measures.

A shift in market preference from consumer expectations to
sustainability commitment could harm the Group's reputation if we fail
to meet these expectations. Market risk from increasing environmental
and social awareness of customers is also identified with relevance.
We closely monitor our ESG performance and strategies to ensure our
performance is in line with the customers’ expectations.

The sourcing of gold and platinum is also subject to transition risks due
to urgent diversion of investment for climate risk mitigation and demand
from low-carbon technologies. In response, the Group maintains close
partnership with suppliers and secures the supplies of conventional
materials from multi-sourcing.

Wastewater Management

The Group’s major use of water occurs at its factories in the course
of manufacturing jewellery. The wastewater may contain acids, alkali,
various chemicals and heavy metals. At the factories in Shunde and
Hong Kong, there is an onsite facility for neutralisation, deionisation and
sedimentation of the wastewater. The treated water is certified safe to
discharge into the municipal network, and the slag is properly handled
by licensed operators. At the smaller factories, wastewater is put in safe
storage for removal by licensed operators at regular intervals.

BE HERERKRE
RiE (&)
RIZEILEHE(E
BRER

AT BREE BN ERRRFE
BREBE 22— BEHBER 2060 FixH M
B AEBEBHTELEHERE - A&
BB IEEBRNTZE MR
BABERBERR S5t 8l kB iR (W4 e
BERFEERTE) A REE £ AR o B
ERERASRE  BORLHERENY
2 YREZESVNEBEE  BEE
B SR i P T 24 o

HEBENMSRFOAEEREERA
BRRAG MAMTENEELHE
RHEREAKENEE - XFAZRSM
REMHEEATROMISER T EIEE
e BMZIEERMANRRE HekE
BRBRRE - AEREMORBATEE

RHHIE -

BB A 2R A R R L R B AR B g
MBERRESNASHRBEXERR
e Al AEBEAREERSETAE
BE YWRBZHRBUERERREN
HIE o

BKEHE
ARETERREREREREANRK -
BKAgEEER B SELEmhED
B EIREREENRERE Y REKE
TR - BBEFRUBRA RN © BKER
BRANZEHBRETAEEBE B
HEaBEREEZERE - £/ ERBE
A BPEEKZERT - ARBEFER
fEBEHRE -

-

Total Volume of Effluent Discharged”

BkgHBE
Type of Emission Unit
BERCE R B 2022 2021
Wastewater from Jewellery Manufacturing Tonnes 25,722 33,285
RERUEEL 2K W //

*  figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

Compared with 2021, the Group discharged less wastewater with effort
of improving efficient water use during the year. We will continue to
monitor the volume and quality of the effluent to ensure it is discharged
appropriately and responsibly.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management

Another area of focus in the Group’s environmental management
policies is waste reduction at source. The Group has placed much
emphasis on the reusability in the packaging of its products by making
use of recyclable, reusable, and biodegradable packaging materials
whenever possible. Customers will find our boxes useful for storing
other items if not used for their jewellery. It is ingrained into our
culture to reuse suitable containers and boxes for transportation. As
a recognition of our continuous effort in waste reduction, the offices,
factories and laboratory of the Group were bestowed the Wastewi$e
Certificate (Excellence Level) by Hong Kong Green Organisation
Certification. Compared with 2021, an increase of packaging materials
were used and distributed this year. The Group will continue to study
possible ways to avoid undue and unnecessary use of packaging materials
and recycle whenever appropriate.

Packaging Materials Used (Tonnes)*
FTABEYL ()

*  figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

There are other measures for further savings but heightened awareness:

e to cut down the use of disposable cups, all staff members are
encouraged to use glass and cups; and wherever feasible guests are
served with those as well;

e to reuse printed paper before recycling; and

e to promote paperless office by using electronic communications.

Recycling bins are generally available and employees are encouraged to
make use of them. We have participated in the Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence for many years and recycled resources used
in our operations wherever possible. All recyclables are collected and
handled by recognised recycling organisations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management (continued)

Where options of recycling and reuse have been fully considered, the
Group engages authorised or licensed contractors in the disposal of
general waste and hazardous waste generated at our manufacturing
factories or at our offices.

The Group endeavours to reduce use of hazardous materials wherever
feasible. For example, the factory in Hong Kong has changed its
electroforming processes to use non-cyanide chemicals. Overall,
hazardous waste has always been handled by qualified contractors in
compliance with applicable local laws.

The following figures outline waste generated and recycled in our
operations:

B ()

BERWEE (&)
ERDEERURERMRER  ~&HE
ERERERA CABRR  BRETLE
BEIRRAEMELN—REEVLEE
BEY -

AEBRNEATHERATHIEREEY
Boflm EEBRFECREREERET
Fr o BRASERL MM LR mETT - BEEM
T AEREVUERBAEBAMNEMN
NaEHARNARE -

THEFHRAAEERBEAMES R EK
ZREEY

Hazardous Waste Generated

FTELHBEEEREY
Highly Acidic Waste Others (e.g. waste with inorganic cyanide,
S REEY) organic solvent)
HippgEzY) (Flansmsscy -
BRI BREEERY))
Tonnes Tonnes
WA 158
7 7
6 6.0 6 ]
5 5 5. 4.8
4.1
4 4
3 3
2 2
1 1
AN AN
2022 2021 2022 2021

Non-Hazardous Waste Generated*

FTELRBEZEFEEY"
Paper Waste General Waste
Tonnes ,%EE %ﬁ@ﬁ% Tonnes —ﬂﬁﬁﬁ?fﬂ
7] 7]
70 70
62
60 > 60
50 51 3 50
40 W 34
30 30
20 20 20
10 7 10
0 BN
2022 2021 2022 2021
B Generated 4 Recycled 11

*  figures are rounded to the nearest whole number
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management (continued)

Due to the resumption of most of our operations this year, an increased
amount of hazardous and non-hazardous waste has been recorded by
the Group compared to previous year. We will continue to promote
waste reduction measures, such as reuse and recycling, in our operations
to improve resource effectiveness.

Air Emissions Management’

Jewellery manufacturing generates air emissions that may contain acids,
alkali, other chemicals or traces of metals and dust. Our workplaces are
equipped, depending on the scale of the operation and the nature of
the processes employed, with equipment ranging from fume cupboards
and filters to full-scale scrubber networks to render the air clean for
discharge into the atmosphere as per the requirement of local regulatory
authorities. In particular, the scrubber system in Shunde factory has
airflow control to keep noxious emissions out of the working area.

Community Involvement

The Group believes that its involvement in the community can foster
social harmony and development and is simply good corporate
citizenship.

Promotion of Arts and Cultural Development

The Group is keen to foster the growth and development of Hong
Kong's arts and cultural landscape, and we believe this encourages
positive societal values for the expression of thoughts and feelings
through design and innovation. For example, we have been a corporate
partner with Hong Kong Sinfonietta and Maestro Circle member of the
Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra for many years. The Hong Kong
Repertory Theatre has likewise been receiving programme sponsorship.

The Group also collaborated with Victoria and Albert Museum (V&A)
in London on the creation of an innovative shopping adventure, which
integrates an interactive museum experience into a jewellery store, by
launching two V&A Chow Sang Sang jewellery concept stores in Hong
Kong and Macau respectively. To promote arts and culture, the stores
provide guests an interactive and ambient experience that transcends
time and place by combining traditional and classical art with brand-
new digital technology.

Air emissions are not material to the Group’s jewellery manufacturing and
retail businesses. The types of emissions and respective emissions data of
HKEx ESG Guide are therefore not reported.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Community Involvement (continued)

Community Development

The Group has contributed to various charitable themes such as youth
education, social service, community care, child and elderly care, care
for special needs and groups on raising environmental awareness.
During the year, we have supported many charitable organisations
through monetary and in-kind donations and through participation in
their charitable events. The Group donated to a number of organisations
including The Salvation Army, St. James’ Settlement People’s Food Bank
and Yan Chai Hospital.

Recognising the importance of quality education for young people,
the Group provides scholarship funds to The Hong Kong Academy
for Performing Arts, and the City University of Hong Kong and has
subsidised the "Sustained Vitality, Ever Rejuvenated Education aid
fund” (£ETBELBEES ) run by Shanghai Education Foundation
of Huangpu District. Apart from offering scholarship, the Group also
participates in the promotion of STEM education in Hong Kong. With
our long history and expertise in precious metal testing, we hope to
transfer our talent and science knowledge to our next generations in
Hong Kong. Our STEAM workshop EE & XTI {Eth (with the element
of "Arts” incorporated into STEM) has been implemented for providing
opportunity to students to learn scientific knowledge and gain wider
exposure. The workshops covered interesting topics like gold panning,
alchemy and silverware restoration. Over 500 participants from 10
secondary schools and a social service organisation joined our workshops
in 2022.

Light Be (25 ) is Hong Kong's first social realty company aiming to
help “temporarily impoverished households” who are capable to escape
poverty and continue independently to move upwards upon receipt of
short period of assistance via its housing schemes such as Light Homes.
Light Be looks for landlords which care about our society and are willing
to lease residential units at a lower price to it for development as Light
Homes. As Light Be's belief conforms with our corporate philosophy
“Sustained Vitality, Ever Rejuvenated”, meaning the continual
improvement and pursuit of sustainability, the Group is delighted to
participate in its housing schemes.

The Group has been collaborating with The Salvation Army in organising
charity events. A workshop named "Ef44 x Ittt ELF TIEH"
was held in some of our stores, providing an opportunity for the
rehabilitated persons to interact with the community and supporting a
charity sale of exquisite products made by the rehabilitated persons. The
event received an overwhelming support.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Community Involvement (continued)

Community Development (continued)

The Group not only supports Hong Kong community but also extends
the support to Mainland China, Macau, and Taiwan. Our offices in all
regions are encouraged to initiate or participate in charitable events
targeted to serve local community associations and organisations for
youngsters, elderly, and the environmental protection. To encourage
participation by our staff, the Group sponsors the activities and
encourages interested employees to become volunteers. Employees
are eligible to apply for volunteer leave, which further encourages the
participation of meaningful charitable work.

Our event "EA 4 Az # " has entered its third year since 2020 and has
received tremendous support from our staff. With the “green energy
points” accumulated over these years, Ant Forest has committed to
plant a total of 153 real trees in Northwest China.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group as a whole strives to adhere to the highest standards of
transparency, accountability and corporate governance, balancing and
protecting the interests of shareholders, employees, customers and
suppliers. The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31
December 2022 with the applicable code provisions as set out in Part 2
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code") contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules, except for the deviations from code provisions
C.2.1 and C.5.1 which are explained in the relevant paragraphs of this
report. The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the operations and growth of the business of
the Group.

The Board

Board composition

The Board comprises ten Directors, of whom four Executive Directors
("EDs"), two Non-executive Directors (“NEDs”) and four Independent
Non-executive Directors (“INEDs"). In addition, a list containing the
names of the Directors and their roles and functions is available on the
websites of the Company and HKEC.

Chairman and Group General Manager

Code provision C.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing holds both positions of the Chairman
and the Group General Manager of the Company. The Board is of the
opinion that the present board structure provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies.

Independence of Directors

Save for the relationships disclosed in the biographical details set out
on pages 4 to 8 of this annual report, the Directors do not have family,
material financial, business or other relationships with one another.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs written annual
confirmation of his independence as required under the Listing Rules
and therefore the Board considers all INEDs to be independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board (continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

NEDs (including INEDs) are appointed for a specific term of not more
than three years pursuant to the then Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. There will be no fixed term of their appointment, subject to the
re-election after the expiry of their then current term. All Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
re-election in annual general meetings of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws.

Securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Directors are
reminded on a reqular basis of their obligations under the Model Code.

All Directors have written to confirm, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year.

Employees who have access to inside information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with written internal guidelines (the “Written
Internal Guidelines”) that follow the Model Code.

Directors’ continuous professional development

Directors have continuously been updated on major developments of
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board (continued)

Directors’ continuous professional development (continued)
During the year, the Directors participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided their records of training to the Company. Details are as
follows:

>
e
mR
o
ey
off

Esg(8)

EFCHAZERR(E)
FRNEF2ARBBIXER UBRKE
RSz Bk WERARRRM
WE2ELE - ST

Training "
Name of Directors BExng gy
Executive Directors: HITES !
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing A e v
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing Bkt v/
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing B EE v
Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing B2 e v
Non-executive Directors: FHITES:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERE 4
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam ML A v
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYEHTES :
Mr. LEE Ka Lun FREEAE 4
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun PRIFENE £ v
Dr. LO King Man ERNEL v
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung BINEESRE v
Note: Wizt -
The mode of trainings includes but not limited to attending briefing, conference, BIFAEATRRENGHE 2% A

online trainings and seminars, and/or reading materials on relevant topics.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Group. It determines the overall strategic direction and management
objectives, oversees significant operational and financial matters and
ensures a framework of risk controls is in place. The Board is also
responsible for nurturing the Company’s culture, which aligns with the
purpose, values and strategy of the Company, and promoting it to all
staff and embedding the same in the business decisions and operations.

The Company has provided to each Director a Directors’ Manual, which
includes the statutory obligations, duties and responsibilities for being a
director. The Directors’ Manual is updated from time to time to reflect
the latest developments in those areas.

Internal guidelines with continuing updates in areas on the Company’s
and the Directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, and the latest
developments or material changes on ordinances, rules or regulations
are provided to Directors from time to time.
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Roles and Responsibilities of the Board (continued)

The Board has delegated day-to-day operations to management, who
is responsible for implementing the Group’s business strategies and
managing the daily business operations under the leadership of the
Chairman/Group General Manager and the Group Deputy General
Manager, both of whom are EDs.

Management support

All Directors were provided with monthly updates on the Group’'s
business, operations, and financial matters as well as timely information
that may have affected the Group's businesses. Comprehensive Board
papers are prepared and distributed quarterly to Directors to keep them
informed.

Directors have free access to management for additional information, as
and when required and may solicit independent professional advice at
the Company's expenses.

Attendance Records of Directors

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the annual general meeting held in 2022 are
set out as follows:

>
e
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EXeRERER(E)

EXERAREFRETERERR &
BECHRVITEFZLERSIR KE
BRENEERREEREET  BERT
ARBEZEBRELEEAERBER -

EEEXE
FEESEHRGERAREER 2EK
WBEEZBARMEN  URAREFE
AEBEXBZEREH -EREETH/
ARMEERUEFARCETEX  £IK
LRESHEMEH -

EETBEREREEEARGRIEH
MEFERTASKBELEXER  BF
RNV

EENHELE

SEEHER2002FRNBINESTENE
EZEeeR  URBRERAFAENLE
BT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

ERLERY/BIRY
Annual
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General
Board Committee ~ Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Directors BEpg Exg ERZEE  §MzEe REZEE  RRBAFAE
Executive Directors: BTES:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing BKpcEE 33 - - - "N
Chairman and Group General Manager FEFREEGLE
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing B EE 3/3 - - n "N
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing ARKEE 33 - - - 7
Group Deputy General Manager £E5EeE
Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing FAEsEtt 33 - - - 11
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERE 313 212 n n n
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam EMmLE 3/3 212 n n n
Independent Non-executive Directors: ~ BYF#HTEE:
Mr. LEE Ka Lun FRBRL 33 22 "N 0 1
Chairman of the three Committees HZEEB21E
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun RmEE £ 33 22 11 i i
Dr. LO King Man ESXiEL 3B 0 1/1 1 1
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung ErsE 33 22 17 171 17
- The Director is not a member - EFUHAE
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Attendance Records of Directors (continued)

Code provision C.5.1 of the Code stipulates that regular board meetings
should be held at least four times a year. During the year, due to the
fifth wave of covid-19, the Company had only held three regular board
meetings.

During the year, the Chairman also held a meeting with the INEDs
without the presence of other Directors.

Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or material
interests in proposed transactions or contemplated issues are required to
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

Board Independence

The Company recognises that board independence is crucial in good
corporate governance and board effectiveness. A board independence
evaluation mechanism (the “Mechanism”) was established during the
year to ensure a strong independent element on the Board, which
allows the Board effectively exercises independent judgment to better
safeguard shareholders’ interests.

The governance framework and the Mechanisms are as follows:

e four out of the ten Directors are INEDs, which meets the
requirements of the Listing Rules that the Board must have at least
three INEDs and must appoint INEDs representing at least one-
third of the Board.

. the Nomination Committee is established with clear terms of
reference to identify suitable candidates, including INEDs, for
appointment as Directors.

. a director nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) is in place
with details of the process and criteria of identifying, selecting,
recommending, cultivating and integrating new directorship.

. the Nomination Committee will assess annually the independence
of all INEDs and to affirm if each of them still satisfies the criteria
of independence as set out in the Listing Rules and is free from
any relationships and circumstances which are likely to affect, or
could appear to affect, their independent judgement.
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Board Independence (continued)

o any Director may seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company's expense, upon prior
reasonable request being made to the Board.

J a dedicated meeting with the Chairman annually will provide
the INEDs an opportunity and channel to express their views in a
confidential manner.

. Directors are encouraged to access and consult with the
Company'’s senior management independently, if necessary.

The Board reviewed and considered that the Mechanism is effective.

Board Committees

The Board is supported by three committees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, whose respective
terms of reference are available on the websites of the Company and
HKEC.

Composition of each of the three committees is shown in the section
headed “Attendance Records of Directors” above.

Audit Committee

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to monitor the
integrity of the Group's consolidated financial statements, oversee
the Group’s financial reporting systems, internal control and risk
management procedures and the relationship with the external auditor.
Members possess appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the Group's accounting
principles and practices, development in accounting standards and
associated impacts on the Group, risk management issues, audit
findings, compliance, strategy summary and financial reporting matters,
and the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems. The Committee discussed the above matters, where
appropriate, with management and external auditor.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure
for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy, determining, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual EDs and senior management, and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of NEDs.

The remuneration of Directors consists of a basic annual fee with
additional payments for serving on Committees. It is not set individually.
EDs receive additional pay packages by virtue of their positions in
management.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the remuneration packages
and bonus payment of individual EDs and senior management and
reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on Directors’ fees.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessing the
independence of INEDs, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and determining the policy
for nomination of Directors.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board. It also assessed and confirmed the
independence of the INEDs, and made recommendation to the Board
on the nomination of Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, Mr. Stephen TING
Leung Huel, Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung and Ms. Genevieve CHOW
Karwing, the retiring directors, for re-election as Directors by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
27 May 2022.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Group's corporate strategy. All Board appointments are based on
meritocracy, and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regards for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

In determining the Board composition, the Committee considers a
number of aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry and regional
experience and other qualities.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of one female
and nine male Directors with different professional background and
industry experience. The Company is committed to expanding the
gender diversity as and when new appointment of director is to be
made. The Board considered that the Company has achieved the
objective of board diversity during the year.

The Group has also taken, and continues to take, steps to promote
diversity at all levels of its workforce. Opportunities for employment,
training and career development are equally opened to all eligible
employees without discrimination. Currently, the male to female
ratio in the workforce of the Group including senior management is
approximately 1:4. Taking into the account that our customer base is
mostly female and our female staff could better cater for their needs,
the Board considers that the gender diversity in workforce is currently
balanced.

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which sets out the
selection criteria and process in relation to nomination and appointment
of directors of the Company and aims to ensure the continuity of the
Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

o character and integrity;

o qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the business and
corporate strategy of the Group;

. the Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted
by the Committee for achieving diversity on the Board,;

. requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and assessment of the
independence of the candidates; and

° commitment to understanding the Company and its industry,
willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Upon receipt of a proposal on appointment of new director, the
Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate based on
the criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship. If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Committee and/or the Board should rank them
by order of preference based on the needs of the Group and the
Committee should then make recommendation to the Board. For
any person nominated by shareholder(s) for election as a director
at the general meeting of the Company, the Committee and/or the
Board should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out
above to determine the eligibility of such candidate, and thus make
recommendation to the shareholders on the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.

For re-election of director at the general meeting, the Committee and/
or the Board should review the overall contribution and service made
by the retiring director to the Group, and consider whether the retiring
director’s level of participation and performance on the Board meet the
criteria as set out above. The Committee and/or the Board should then
make recommendation to the shareholders on the proposed re-election
of director at the general meeting.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has undertaken to perform the corporate governance
functions and is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and keeping up to date with the latest
requirements of the Code and the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board reviewed the Company's corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the Written
Internal Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the Code and
the disclosure in this report.
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Financial Reporting

Directors’ responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the Group's
state of affairs, results and cash flows in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

External auditor

The reporting responsibilities of the Group’s independent external
auditor, Ernst & Young, on the Group's consolidated financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 71
to 78 of this annual report.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended its re-appointment as the
Company's external auditor at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The services provided by Ernst & Young and the associated fees thereof
paid/payable for 2022 were as follows:

Audit i
Taxation 7%
Others Hif

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for ensuring that adequate risk
management and internal controls are in place to safequard the Group's
assets and manage risks (including ESG risks). The Board reviews the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis. Policies and procedures are designed for providing
reasonable assurance against material misstatement or loss and
managing risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the
Group’s objectives.

Risk Management

Management is delegated to identify, analyse, evaluate, respond,
monitor and communicate risks associated with any activity, function or
process within its scope of responsibility and authority. For risk control
and monitoring, it involves making decisions regarding which risks
are acceptable and how to address those that are not. Management
develops action plans to address potential risks and contingency plans
for possible loss scenarios. Accidents and other situations involving loss
or near-loss will be investigated and properly documented as part of the
effort to manage risks. Risk assessment is carried out biannually. Key
risks and action plans are identified by management and reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Risk Management (continued)
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Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out as
follows:

AEEEL L BEE R TEEAFWT -

o Retail market and supply chain suffer from disruptions caused
by covid-19 and the uncertainties in the global economic and
political environment and the weakened consumer demand.
We see opportunities to grow by adopting omni-channel
retailing and increase customer loyalty via product and brand
differentiation.

o The Group’s operations will be affected by multiple risk
factors related to the manufacture and retail of jewellery and
distribution of watches, the wholesale of precious metals and
e-commerce platform operation. Policies and procedures are
designed to minimise the risks.

. Adverse effects which may arise from changes in laws and
regulations affecting our businesses. Legal and regulatory
compliance policies are in place to mitigate against the risks.

J Details of financial risk management objectives and policies are
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Internal Control

The purpose of internal control is to reasonably provide the assurance
for the compliance of its operation and management with regulations
and laws, assets security, and authenticity and integrity of financial
report and related information, improve the efficiency and effectiveness
of operating activities and promote the realisation of development
strategy of the Group.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Internal Control (continued)
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Major internal controls currently in place within the Group included
the following:

PEEHE L BABERERUTERE

o An Internal Audit team conducts regular audits of different
aspects of the operations and reports any findings to the Audit
Committee.

J Business plans are prepared annually. Income and expenditure
are subject to regular budgetary review.

. Policies are set to cover the integrity of trading practices,
safekeeping of customer assets, and credit control for jewellery
and watch store operations and the wholesale of precious
metals.

J All inventory movements are properly recorded and reconciled,
and verification and cross-checking with source documents
procedures are in place. Inventory level is under continuous
review and adjusted regularly taking into account of prevailing
market conditions.

. Major or material connected transactions require pre-approval of
INEDs and all continuing connected transactions are reviewed on
a reqgular basis.

. Information access is managed on a need-to-know basis.
Guidelines and procedures are in place to protect personal data
and to ensure the integrity of communication systems.

. The Group strictly prohibits unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information. Disclosure of inside information guide has
been established and only the authorised staff are allowed to
communicate with parties outside the Group.
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The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Group's risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2022, with reference to the risk management and internal
audit reports and the representations made by management and
concluded that adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are being maintained. The annual review
also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, and their training programmes and budget as well as those
relating to the Company’s ESG performance and reporting. There were
no significant areas of concern identified during the year.
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Constitutional Documents

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s memorandum
of association and bye-laws. A copy of the latest consolidated version
of the memorandum of association and bye-laws is available on the
websites of the Company and HKEC. Resolution for amendments to the
Company's bye-laws will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. For more details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 23 March 2023.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that human capital is a key asset to sustainable
business growth. The objective of the Group’s human resources
management is to reward and recognise performing staff by providing
a competitive remuneration package and implementing a performance
appraisal system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career
development and progression by appropriate training and providing
opportunities within the Group for career advancement. We believe
these measures could further enhance employee involvement and
engagement as part of a team.

The Group is committed to providing high-quality products and services
to its customers. Apart from our professional sale representatives in
stores, we also have a dedicated team of customer relations personnel
for quick response to enquiries and complaints. We believe that
customer satisfaction is the key to our long-term success.

The Group values mutually beneficial long-term relationships with
its suppliers. Steady supply of high-quality raw materials is crucial
for us. The Group is committed to developing stable and sustainable
partnership among its suppliers.

Corporate Communication

Shareholder communication

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
the Company’s shareholders and other stakeholders. A shareholders’
communication policy (the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) with
the objectives of ensuring a transparent and timely communication
with shareholders and other stakeholders via various means has been
established.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Communication (continued)

Shareholder communication (continued)

Our company website (www.chowsangsang.com) is one of the principal
channels of communication with the shareholders, investors and
consumers alike where a wealth of information about the Company can
be found. All corporate communications of the Company, including but
not limited to annual and interim reports, announcements, circulars,
terms of reference of the committees and other corporate information
are available on this website.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The chairman
of the Board as well as the chairman of the three Committees and other
members of the respective committees are available to answer questions
at the general meetings.

To solicit and get feedback from the shareholders, the following
channels are available to shareholders to express their views on matters
affecting the Company:

1. the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar for enquiries on
shareholdings;

2. the company secretary of the Company for enquiries about
corporate governance or other matters; and

3. whistleblowing mechanism.

Taking into account of the existing communication channels, the Board
considered that the Shareholders’ Communication Policy has been
properly implemented during the year and is effective.

Investor communication

Management also attends meetings with financial analysts and fund
managers from time to time. These meetings allow management to
maintain close contact with investors which facilitate their understanding
of the Group's strategies and operations.

Internal communication

The Group's staff members are linked by the Group's intranet for
prompt sharing of information. Regular meetings of staff members from
Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan are held to share and discuss
issues on achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, actual operational
practices, local rules and regulations and compliance practices.

Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM") of the Company. Shareholders holding
in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of
the Company may send a written request to the Board to request for an
SGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company's registered office for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with
the requirements under section 74 of the Companies Act once a valid
requisition is received. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the shareholders concerned or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the shareholders concerned as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company:

(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the
requisition; or

(b)

not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company's registered office for the attention of the Company
Secretary. The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the
Company, please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose
a Person for Election as a Director” available on the website of the
Company.

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing through the Company Secretary at 27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (email: ir@chowsangsang.com).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

e
EY:

To the shareholders of
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chow
Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 198, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Qur responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEBEBRAERAF

72

BYLHEMERS

HRETER
ARET T RERERMIEXHE - &

REARGANBRRZBIARRBERL
FH GLERRAHGAMBHRRER
ETBAUTKERNER TETRE
B ZMTHELERIFHEBLER -
RAE T E—FRER P EMAEY
BB BE R

RMERBITARE KB F ot i &I
HEAECEF|BOBLZEE  BREE
ELHREFZREMB AT - HEL
R ET TEBERITRABRYE KRS MG
REREANEFERMRIEF - HPIT
BRF2&ER  BREEYTABEREN
FEMATZEF  REAMBEHRRER
BRETBRRMTERM -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022 F #y



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYLHEMERS

Key audit matters

BREEHTSER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ZERAEET P RUMAEHK

Net realisable value of inventories

FEZTE%FHE

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of
inventories (net of inventory provision), mainly comprised
of gold, platinum, diamond products and watches,
amounted to HK$12,112,349,000. Significant judgement
was required to assess the appropriate level of inventory
provision for slow-moving or obsolete products which
might be sold below cost. The assessment took into
account factors that included, but were not limited to,
economic outlook, sales forecasts and the forecast market
value for the inventory items.

The write-down of inventories to net realisable value
during the current year amounted to HK$6,149,000.

Further details about the Group’s inventory provision
are included in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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We obtained an understanding of management’s
processes for the initial identification of slow-moving or
obsolete products. We reviewed the bases adopted by
the Group for its inventory provision policy with reference
to historical inventory losses, and evaluated whether
the inventory provision was made in accordance with
the policy. We also assessed the inventory provision by
comparing the selling prices of the inventory items to their
costs.

In addition to the above, independent gemologists
were engaged by the Group to assess the net realisable
values of certain jewellery items held by the Group
as at 31 December 2022. We reviewed the sampling
approach adopted by the gemologists, which was based
on a mix of material and random items. For diamond
products assessed by the independent gemologists, we
also evaluated the net realisable value with reference
to independently published sales prices. In addition, we
evaluated the objectivity, independence and competency
of the independent gemologists.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYLHEMERS

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BRETEE ZERAEETPRUNMESRN
Valuation of investment properties
REYFEE

The Group owned a portfolio of investment properties in
Hong Kong and outside of Hong Kong, which was valued
at HK$508,335,000 as at 31 December 2022.

Significant estimation was required to determine the
fair value of the investment properties, which reflected
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.
Management engaged an independent professionally
qualified valuer to estimate the value of investment
properties at the end of the reporting period.

Further details about the Group's investment properties
are included in notes 3 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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We evaluated the objectivity, independence and
competency of the valuer. We also involved our internal
valuation specialists to assist us in reviewing the bases
and assumptions adopted in the valuation for estimating
the fair value of the investment properties and performed
the benchmarking of the value of investment properties
held by the Group to other comparable properties. We
also compared property-related data used as key input
for the valuation with underlying documents, such as
lease agreements. In addition, we assessed the related
disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Other information included in the Annual Report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Leung Chi Ying.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

23 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2022

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Turnover

Retail

Other businesses

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains, net
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Foreign exchange differences, net
Finance income

Finance costs

Profit before tax from continuing
operations

Income tax

Profit for the year from continuing
operations

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
Loss for the year from discontinued operation

Profit for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable
to owners of the Company:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

RERER

HE2022F12A31BILEE

2022 2021
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt s FExT FET
(Restated)
(&51)
BEREEK
EER 5
TE 19,751,940 19,921,938
Hin %% 804,576 2,065,621
20,556,516 21,987,559
SHE R (15,140,010) (16,431,474)
EF 5,416,506 5,556,085
Hip A Rz o FE 6 37,513 35,818
HENMDHEEA (3,847,602) (3,754,696)
THE R (862,228) (816,432)
M=% FE (82,905) 31,816
BRI 8 13,340 13,606
B E 8 (81,860) (60,486)
BFELEEE
KRB AR R 7 592,764 1,005,711
FTis®i 12 (117,003) (265,331)
BECEER
FERRA 475,761 740,380
KPR 13
BRI ET 7 FNER (34,039) (100,611)
FEREF 441,722 639,769
EiEER
=H(EE)
RARHER A 452,326 643,257
e S (10,604) (3,488)
441,722 639,769
RABREEABEER
=F(BE)
BEGEEK 486,365 743,868
BRI EER (34,039) (100,611)
452,326 643,257
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
Year ended 31 December 2022

Note
i aE
Earnings per share attributable to EREHEEAERL
owners of the Company BRER 15
Basic and diluted ERR#E
~ For profit for the year - FREM

— For profit from continuing operations - BEREERER

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LMITED / 80

REBEER
HE2022F12A31BILEE

2022
HK$’000
TER

66.8 cents

2021
HK$’'000
FET
(Restated)
(251)

95.0 cents 1l

71.8 cents 1l

109.8 cents 1]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REZHEHBREEX

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F12A31BILEE
2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt =E FHx FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 441,722 639,769

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Htp2mEmis/ (5iE)

Item that may be reclassified subsequently BETEEHRIEE

to profit or loss: BiE%x2HEE
Exchange differences on translation M5 =5 (651,647) 250,127
Items that will not be reclassified AETEENIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BRR2EE
Changes in fair value of financial assets EERBRRAFEE
designated at fair value through other STAEM 2 E
comprehensive income NI BEEZ AT
BES (392,633) 105,366
Revaluation upon transfer of buildings to BFERTRENE
investment properties RFEfh 16 20,622 107,968
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will HETesHnESR
not be reclassified subsequently to BakzHMEE
profit or loss ez (E18) (372,011) 213,334
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMZEKE
for the year (F58E) (1,023,658) 463,461

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FR2EKE(BR)
FOR THE YEAR e (581,936) 1,103,230

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the EHFEREM

year attributable to: Wz (F58) 858
Owners of the Company KARIEEA (571,280) 1,106,724
Non-controlling interests g (10,656) (3,494)
(581,936) 1,103,230
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the A THEEABEER
year attributable to owners of the 2EkE(BE)
Company: e
Continuing operations SIB IR (537,241) 1,207,335
Discontinued operation IR HSE ST (34,039) (100,611)
(571,280) 1,106,724
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2022

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Right-of-use assets

Other assets

Financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities
and futures broking

Prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Tax recoverable

Cash held on behalf of clients

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities
and futures broking

Other payables and accruals

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Bullion loans

Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

REeMBRR R

72022%F12A31H

Note
B &
ERBEE
ER Y] 16
REME 17
EREEE 18(a)
Hih & 20

HERRAFEERAR
EEPRENTHEE 21

EXERHIBEE 34
BIERBEE
RBEE
FE 22
JE U BR 7R 23
BERBERLESE
ZTEMBR X 24
TBRFIE - HtERERR
REMEE 25
BATFEEABZER

M EE 26
MEemIE 31
A E R
REFEKEERS 27
RekERBRE 27
BEREEE
PN
FEFTBR 3R 28
BERMEERELZ
FEfTBR X 29
Hip R K EFEE 30
MEemIE 31
SHRRITER 32
E4BIEE 33
HEEE 18(b)
A
BEREEE
RBEEFE
BEERRDERS

2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx TET
1,085,850 1,117,179
508,335 472,897
964,050 831,916
205,021 225,234
1,158,816 1,551,449
68,244 71,209
3,990,316 4,269,884
12,112,349 11,343,277
818,472 804,334
123,642 154,922
815,415 822,905
14,334 10,204
10,008 -
15,623 7,799
2,070 3,885
748,628 671,548
14,660,541 13,818,874
130,442 181,304
2,070 3,885
609,147 591,375
12,371 12,117
1,026,163 813,689
3,073,102 2,029,588
466,241 483,735
37,274 66,366
5,356,810 4,182,059
9,303,731 9,636,815
13,294,047 13,906,699
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2022

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Issued capital
Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Director

&
s

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDIN

FRBEE

ATRIRITER

ELEREAE

BIFRBAE

EEFRE

B

ZNGIE 2PNy $

BEITHAR
G

ey o

BmER

Winston CHOW Wun Sing
Director

&= E

GS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

AR ARRQA

REMBERRE
72022%F12A31H

2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
it & TER TAET
32 540,761 372,019
18(b) 516,744 423,485
34 366,314 367,734
1,423,819 1,163,238
11,870,228 12,743,461
35 169,359 169,359
37 11,721,184 12,583,761
11,890,543 12,753,120
(20,315) (9,659)
11,870,228 12,743,461
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December 2022

At 1 January 2021

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year:
Changes in fair value of financial assets
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation
Revaluation upon transfer of buildings
to investment properties

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer from retained profits
Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary
Dividends declared and paid during

the year

At 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2022
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year:

Changes in fair value of financial assets
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation

Revaluation upon transfer of buildings
to investment properties

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Transfer from retained profits
Dividends declared and paid during
the year

At 31 December 2022

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

R®2021F1A1R

FRER
FREMPENE :
HERRDTFEERA
Hit2EEENTH
BEZATEER
EXER
BTFEREREANERER

FRZENGERE

BZeRAEN
HE—RHB AR 2B
FASREAMNRS

R2021%F12 318

®2022F1A1R8

F R
FREMEERE/(BE)
EERERRTEBEA
Hit2EEENOTH
BEINTEEE

EXER
BTFERERANERER

FRZEBREER
BFERAEN
FRNERRAMRE

72022512 A31H

Attributable to owners of the Company

Buildings

Issued Share revaluation

capital premium reserve

EF

ERITRE R EE EfhfRE

Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bzt TR TR TR
169,359 1,060,356 343,946

16 - - 107,968
- - 107,968

14 - - -
169,359 1,060,356* 451,914*

169,359 1,060,356 451,914

16 - - 20,622
- - 20,622

14 = = =
169,359 1,060,356* 472,536*

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$11,721,184,000 (2021: HK$12,583,761,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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REERBEHX
BHZE202F12A31BILEE

UNGIE 2PN T
Fair value
reserve of
financial assets Difference
designated at arising from
fair value acquisition
through other of non- Exchange Non-
comprehensive controlling fluctuation Reserve Retained controlling Total
income interests reserve funds profits Total interests equity
EERRAY
BEFARMY
2EKREN s
BHEEZ FRRER SHE
ATEERE BEZER 2BHE REE REEH CHS FERESR fad
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
(Note 37)
(F¥&E37)
1,444,147 4,897 115,257 547,032 8,334,120 12,019,114 - 12,019,114
- - - - 643,257 643,257 (3,488) 639,769
105,366 - - - - 105,366 - 105,366
- = 250,133 = = 250,133 (6) 250,127
- - - - - 107,968 - 107,968
105,366 - 250,133 - 643,257 1,106,724 (3,494) 1,103,230
- = = 64,974 (64,974) = = =
- - ) - 6,716 6,645 (6,165) 480
- - - - (379,363) (379,363) - (379,363)
1,549,513* 4,897* 365,319* 612,006* 8,539,756* 12,753,120 (9,659) 12,743,461
1,549,513 4,897 365,319 612,006 8,539,756 12,753,120 (9,659) 12,743,461
- - - - 452,326 452,326 (10,604) 441,722
(392,633) - - - - (392,633) - (392,633)
- - (651,595) - - (651,595) (52) (651,647)
- - - - - 20,622 - 20,622
(392,633) - (651,595) - 452,326 (571,280) (10,656) (581,936)
- - - 11,092 (11,092) - - -
- - - - (291,297) (291,297) - (291,297)
1,156,880* 4,897* (286,276)* 623,098* 8,689,693* 11,890,543 (20,315) 11,870,228

* W EREREBARGAMEIMNER 2 EAHE11,721,184,00078 (20214 ¢ 12,583,761,000/87T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Interest received

Interest paid

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Mainland China tax paid

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Purchases of investment properties

Deposits paid for purchases of items of
property, plant and equipment

Additions to other assets

Refund of other assets

Dividends received from listed investments

Dividends received from unlisted investments

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

New bullion loans

Repayment of bullion loans

Principal portion of lease payments

Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash flows from financing activities

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

SEBEERER
HE2022F12A31BILEE

2022 2021
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt s FExT FET
REERCHERE
KEmE /(B 2BE% 38() 217,128 (405,569)
SIS, 13,006 24,862
EAHE (40,377) (44,738)
BENBEMER (2,641) (9,358)
BB ARERE (153,719) (290,359)
REERRE,/ (A2
BeRneFa 33,397 (725,162)
RETHZHEERE
BEYE  BEX
®HEEE (376,606) (394,631)
HEYE  #ER
RABETEB TS RUE 562 1,027
BEREYE (16,172) (21,286)
BEYE BEX
REBEEH 2 ENRE (2,522) (1,962)
NEHMEE (27,223) (51,712)
REHMEE 47,996 35,610
Bl EMRERE 25,888 30,889
BUSEETIRERE 637 888
REEBTAZ
BeRneFa (347,440) (401,177)
BEZBH HERE
HIIRITER 3,379,366 2,839,734
BERITER (2,991,887) (2,734,603)
MEECBIER 4,557,022 3,768,842
EEELEEE (3,653,071) (2,736,117)
HEFHEZREHD 38(c) (544,051) (606,738)
IR R TE
= 480
B E (38,101) (18,623)
BT A (291,297) (379,363)
BEEHEZ
BeRneF8 417,981 133,612

A £ 4

SEBEEBAERADR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2022

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity of less than three months when
acquired

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED / 87
F 4 + = 2| N

RAERSRAEZ
#m,/ (A )R8

RENRE RERARE

INEERESTE  FE

RELZREREFRE

RERSRRELEFDI

Re MRITES
FREEHA SR =18 A
Z EEE B

FE B EBAEREAD A

GELEIRER

HE2022F12A31BILEE

Note
By &E

27

27

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
103,938 (992,727)
671,548 1,653,767
(26,858) 10,508
748,628 671,548
727,174 671,548
21,454 -
748,628 671,548
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

activities:

manufacture and retail of jewellery and distribution of watches
wholesale of precious metals
e-commerce platform operation

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are detailed in note 48 to the

consolidated financial statements.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, customer gold deposits, bullion loans, derivative
financial instruments and certain financial assets which have been
measured at fair value as further explained in note 2.4 to the consolidated
financial statements. These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the

nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant

activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in
control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

() the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEBEBRAERAF

securities and futures broking (ceased operation since early May 2021)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

2.2

Basis of Preparation (continued)
Basis of Consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for
the current year’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds

before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
[llustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEEESEERARRDA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are applicable to
the Group are described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous Framework
for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements with a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
“Conceptual Framework”) issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3
an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities
that would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they
were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business combination,
an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at
the acquisition date. The Group has applied the amendments prospectively
to business combinations that occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As
there were no business combinations during the year, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling
any such items, and the cost of those items as determined by HKAS 2
Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made available
for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there was no sale of items
produced prior to the property, plant and equipment being available for
use, the amendments did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The Group has applied the amendments prospectively
to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1
January 2022 and no onerous contracts were identified. Therefore,
the amendments did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are applicable to the Group are
as follows:

. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.
The Group has applied the amendment prospectively from 1 January
2022. As there was no modification or exchange of the Group's
financial liabilities during the year, the amendment did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated financial

statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

1

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’
Insurance Contracts'
Insurance Contracts'’

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative Information®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”)**

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the 2022 Amendments”)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2020
Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was

revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS
4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply

HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the classification

overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial application of HKFRS 17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-lessee
uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback
transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of
the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and
shall be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered
into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019).
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current, in particular the determination over whether an entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the
2022 Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a liability
arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity must
comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of that
liability as current or non-current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments
require additional disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising
from loan arrangements as non-current when it has a right to defer
settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity complying
with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required
to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group
is currently assessing the impact of the amendments and whether existing
loan agreements may require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment,
the amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments
to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided
in the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group is
currently revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency
with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the
start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit
is available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
from these transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be
applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning obligations
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions
other than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process that

together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and

pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is

accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after

reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated retained profits

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard Accounting
goodwill arising on
acquisition was eliminated against consolidated retained profits in the
year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains
eliminated against consolidated retained profits and is not recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when all or part of the
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-

Practice 30 Business Combinations in 2001,

generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, customer gold deposits,
bullion loans, derivative financial instruments and certain financial assets
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising

the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, financial assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that

revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and

that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or of a parent of the Group;

or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the Group or
to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Buildings

Not depreciated

Over the shorter of the lease terms and
2.5%

Plant and machinery 10% to 30%

Leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles

20% to 33%
30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

The transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment have been adopted for property, plant and
equipment stated at valuation. As a result, those assets stated at revalued
amounts based on revaluations which were reflected in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 1993 have not been
revalued by class at the end of the reporting period. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the buildings revaluation reserve
realised in respect of the previous valuations is transferred to retained

profits as a movement in reserves.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings (including the leasehold
property held as a right-of-use asset which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties

are stated at fair value.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in

the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in

the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Right-of-use assets” for
property held as a right-of-use asset up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount and the fair
value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

The Group's intangible assets, representing eligibility rights to trade on
or through the Stock Exchange and the Futures Exchange, have indefinite
useful lives and are tested for impairment annually either individually or at
the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from

indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all
leases, except for short-term leases. The Group recognises lease liabilities
to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to

use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Where applicable, the cost of
a right-of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings

50 years
2 to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)
(¢)  Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of office properties, retail stores and factories
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease

or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in turnover in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are

recognised as turnover in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as

finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value designated through other

comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out

for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value designated through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value

through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity
under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net changes

in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments which
the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised
as other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the

amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed

from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the

contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing

of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information. The Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days

past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual

cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for accounts receivable which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss

allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs

ma

24

MBEHRME

TESHHEBE ()
MBEERE

AEEFAAYIERAFEE ABER
A EHTARIBAREEER(BARE
EBR]EE - BREEBRIENRE
ARENMA MRS RERAEERLRNK
XY 42 A B IR AR a5 R Z AR
BRENECHANERAE - BHRLR
ERBRUEMFERARESOGEIHRE
BHEMEEAEAENRESRE -

— %k
FEHEEBBRMIERBRER - SRR
REWEBREZENMHEERR - BHEE
BRELATENRRI2ZEAREAN
HHEERR)EERBOEHMELN
EEBBHREE - RN ERERBEE
NHNEERE  BMEEBRERBRRHE
HNHEBEEE  THRENER(2H
HHEERSR) -

RERERH  AEEFEEBTAMNE
ERBRESBIREREAERS © RE
HZEHEE - ARBERRRERHSRT
BEAMRAORRENERR ST
AELNBORERETLER  UEEHEE
ANETBERALE A ESEER
AR - BEBENAELEER - A&
ER5 EaNNTARBEB30RE
ERERBEEM -

AEBEBEONFTBIMORNTHEEE
BRAEEA) - AT RETERT » 2R
FH BB RBRARE T LEAEE R
BEMEERAZHATHARREERS
MR AEBETAERRSZABE
EEY - WEZSEERKEAHRER
B AIMEHM S EE -

RBERAAR M BEERE—RITA
BB K R AR AR SR B T SRR ) R E0R
o RERTERBEDBRARBHEEESRE

i -

FER - EERRANAERELEX
RIEMMERMIA - HEERE
BEREN2EARPEERS
BNEHETE

F2RE - FERRE NRHERE AL
MBS ELRMEEEEER
ENeRTE  EEERER
SREMEBEEHENSE

e

F3RER - RS AR HBREEREN
PHEE(BEBEREL 2
RIS ERE) - KR
FHERENHENEREBRY
THAE

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED <107  ANNUAL REPORT 2022
2022 4 3R

BEEESEERARA

Al



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings or payables, as

appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:

(a)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated

upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses
on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss does not include any

interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains
or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
except for the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit
risk which are presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on

these financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
(b)  Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

() Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial
assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as bullion contracts,
cross currency swaps and foreign currency forward contracts, to hedge
its bullion price risk and foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and
as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are
taken directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of production overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,

either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and

practices prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,

except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected

to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that

the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in

exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated

uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods represents the net invoiced value of
goods sold, after allowances for returns, trade discounts and value
added tax and is recognised at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
goods.

Some contracts for the sale of jewellery through e-shops provide
customers with a right of return.

The right of return gives rise to variable consideration.

(i)

(ii)

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine the
amount of variable consideration that can be included in the
transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned,
instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised. A right-
of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost
of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products
from a customer.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group's retail of jewellery and watches segment operated
a customer loyalty programme, which allowed customers to
accumulate award credits when they purchase products. The
award credits could be redeemed for discounts on products
in a limited period. Under HKFRS 15, the customer loyalty
programme gives rise to a separate performance obligation
because it provides a material right to the customer and
allocated a portion of the transaction price to the loyalty
credits awarded to customers based on the relative stand-
alone selling price. The Group’s customer loyalty programme
was ended during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b)  Commission on transactions completed on e-commerce platform

Revenue from the commission on transactions completed on the
e-commerce platform is recognised at the point in time when the

relevant transactions are completed.

() Commission on securities and futures broking

Revenue from the commission on securities and futures broking is
recognised at the point in time when the relevant contract notes
are executed. The operation of the securities and futures broking

business was ceased during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of

the dividend can be measured reliably.

Income from the sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised on the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are

executed.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers
the related goods and services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers

control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods
expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the
former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any expected
costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases in the value of the
returned goods. The Group updates the measurement of the asset for any
revisions to the expected level of returns and any additional decreases in

the value of the returned goods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of
the consideration received (or receivable) from a customer and is measured
at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to return to
the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and
the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each

reporting period.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services in exchange for equity instruments

("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer

using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit
expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and

end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are

also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised.
When awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service

conditions are satisfied.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share

dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the end
of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave

earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant income and are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently

administered fund.

The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group's employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in

accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China and Taiwan are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the respective local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentages of their payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable in

accordance with the rules of the respective central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are expensed in the

period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as liabilities when they are approved by the
shareholders in general meetings. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in

the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum of association and bye-laws grant the Directors
the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in
the consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries operating outside Hong
Kong are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end
of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that approximate
to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of subsidiaries operating outside Hong Kong are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside
Hong Kong which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

(@) Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group applied the following judgements that significantly
affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from
contracts with customers:

Determining the method to estimate variable consideration and
assessing the constraint for the retail of jewellery

Certain contracts for the retail of jewellery through e-shops
include a right of return that give rise to variable consideration.
In estimating the variable consideration, the Group is required to
exercise judgement to determine to use either the expected value
method or the most likely amount method based on which method
better predicts the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled.

The Group determined that the expected value method is the
appropriate method to use in estimating the variable consideration
for the sale of jewellery with rights of return, given the large
number of customer contracts that have similar characteristics.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the
transaction price, the Group considers whether the amount of
variable consideration is constrained. The Group determined that
the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained based on
its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic
conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration
will be resolved within a short time frame.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as
the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of
the property and the present value of the minimum lease payments
not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased out
and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate the
lease (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

(a)

(b)

Variable consideration for returns
The Group estimates variable consideration to be included in the
transaction price for the sale of jewellery with rights of return.

The Group has developed a statistical model for forecasting sales
returns. The model used the historical return data of each product
to come up with expected return percentages. These percentages
are applied to determine the expected value of the variable
consideration. Any significant changes in experience as compared to
historical return pattern will impact the expected return percentages
estimated by the Group.

The Group updates its assessment of expected returns half yearly
and the refund liabilities are adjusted accordingly. Estimates
of expected returns are sensitive to changes in circumstances
and the Group’s past experience regarding returns may not be
representative of customers’ actual returns in the future. As at 31
December 2022, the amount recognised as refund liabilities was
HK$1,832,000 (2021: HK$720,000) for the expected returns.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The Group’s unlisted equity investments have been valued using
the income capitalisation method and asset-based method. This
valuation requires the Group to make estimates about capitalisation
rates, and hence they are subject to uncertainty. The fair value
of the unlisted equity investments as at 31 December 2022 was
HK$37,019,000 (2021: HK$36,424,000). Further details are
included in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(©

(d)

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for accounts
receivable. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, product type and customer type and
rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the retail
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes
in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's accounts
receivable is disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on other financial assets

The measurement of expected losses on other financial assets
requires judgement including, in particular, the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values
when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a
number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the
expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition. The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis. The carrying
amounts of other financial assets at amortised cost are given in
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)

U]

(9)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and
is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further
details are contained in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets at the end
of each reporting period. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is based on its value in use. In assessing value-in-
use, management estimates the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and chooses a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets as at 31 December 2022 were HK$1,085,850,000 (2021:
HK$1,117,179,000) and HK$964,050,000 (2021: HK$831,916,000),
respectively. Further details are included in notes 16 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(h)

Measurement of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their fair value. The fair value was based on
valuation on these properties conducted by an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers using property valuation techniques
which involve making assumptions on certain market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions would
result in changes in the fair value of the Group's investment
properties and the corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December 2022
was HK$508,335,000 (2021: HK$472,897,000). Further details are
given in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimation costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates, based on the current market condition
and the historical experience in selling goods of a similar nature,
including but not limit to economic outlook, sales forecasts and the
forecast market value for the inventory items. They could change
significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. The Group
reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting period.
The carrying amount of inventories is given in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and the Group’s reportable operating
segments are as follows:

Continuing operations

J the retail of jewellery and watches segment produces and sells
jewellery products and distributes watches for the Group's retail
business and operates retail stores mainly in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan

. the wholesale of precious metals segment trades precious metals to
wholesale customers

o the e-commerce platform segment trades jewellery set with
laboratory-grown diamond

. the other businesses segment comprises, principally, the investment
in properties for their rental income and capital appreciation
potential, and other jewellery related businesses

Discontinued operation

J the securities and futures broking segment provides brokering and
dealing services for securities and futures

Management monitors the results of the Group’'s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax
from continuing operations. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Directors have reassessed the basis of adjusted profit before tax for
reportable operating segments from continuing operations and considered
that it is more appropriate to be measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax from continuing operations except that dividend income,
fair value gain or loss on investment properties, fair value gain or loss
on bullion loans designated as at fair value through profit or loss, fair
value gain or loss on derivative financial instruments — transactions not
qualifying as hedges, fair value gain or loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, finance income, finance costs and foreign exchange
differences, net are excluded from such measurement. The Directors
believe that the current presentation could provide better understanding
to the users of the financial statements to evaluate the Group's operating
performance. Accordingly, the comparative figures in segment results have
been restated.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.

ma

MBEHRME

@85 BEN

RERMT  ARENREESRBHE
DEBER - HARE, T 2FEEH
T

R R

. FERARTESUALEEIE
EEHWERUEREES RS B
i AT ERDEAR B
RFIRAEERTEE

o EBREHBOMARBEFLERER

B
s EFREYROHAEREERER
ERFEAZAREEMD

o  HEXBOBIRAREMEUR

BHESRAREREEESN AR
Hi A EREER

RIUIEERE

o BHRRIHMELLHBRHUESLE
B BEREERY

EEEDREEAEBREN I 2 EE
LMER BRI KRBT ZREK - D
KRB IEA 2R Ea A E T - B
ABBECEER CBRBATEF 25 E -
HZE2022F12831BEEE E5C
BN ERFECEER U ERDBIE
ABRBRBANES - YRAEERNEERFE
REEBBRANRFFTE 5 - R
BWA  BEMEZAFEEAKEZLE
B ETAEATEEICRELESE
EENATEERSNER TEERT
AZATEEKESHEE - TFHAERH
TEZRS  BATFEEFTABZNTS
BEZAFEEKESERS - BBERA
s BERREREZE FEHTBEET
ERN ESHERBHENN T A AERH
BREAERMHTRUTERERLE
%ﬁoﬁ%vﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂa%é
5l] o

NEHE R ERIRBHETE= &
BEABATE -

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 124 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

AEEESEBEBEERAQR

2022

F



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDI

=

4.  Operating Segment Information (continued) 4, RESBER(E)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BELEER RERERH
Retail Wholesale Total for Securities
of jewellery  of precious  E-commerce Other  continuing  and futures
and watches metals platform  businesses  operations broking Total
KER b3 B #ER
EHTE  EERME  E7HEYR R £ ) HEEL &t
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TR TR ThR AR ThR TR TR
Year ended BEANENANA
31 December 2022 LEE
Segment revenue Pk 6 5
Sales to external customers HETHREE 19,751,940 765,862 1,845 25033 20,544,680 - 20,544,680
Intersegment sales MEEE 29,320 618,982 - 528 648,830 - 648,830
Other revenue bz - - - 11,836 11,836 - 11,836
19,781,260 1,384,844 1,845 31,397 21,205,346 - 21,205,346
Reconciliation: E i
Elimination of intersegment sales ¥R #E (648,830) (648,830)
20,556,516 20,556,516
Segment results PRE 871,603 747 (55,051) 11,833 829,132 (34,042) 795,090
Reconcilation: E
Dividend income REMA 26,525 - 26,525
Net fair value gain/(loss) on: THEEz N TEE
Fhi/(B8) -
Investment properties RENE 28 - 28
Bullion loans designated as at EERREATEE
fair value through profit or loss ATREY
EEBRE (121,116) - (121,116)
Derivative financial instruments fiEemIA
- transactions not qualifyingas - AATA Y
hedges TELRS 9,284 - 9,284
Financial assets at fair value BATEEA
through profit or loss ERtiBEE 336 - 336
Finance income BBIA 13,340 3 13383
Finance costs BEEH (81,860) - (81,860)
Foreign exchange differences, net B 2% 3@ (82,905) - (82,905)
Profit before tax BHAER| 592,764 (34,039) 558,725
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

4.  Operating Segment Information (continued) 4., REITBERE)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
RREEEY RG]
Retail Wholesale Total for Securities
of jewellery  of precious  E-commerce Other  continuing  and futures
and watches metals platform  businesses  operations broking Total
KER i #ER
ERZE  HORME ETHEYA R EHakt HELg Chl

HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000
TiEn Tin TiEn TR TR TiEn TiEn

Year ended BZ22E128318
31 December 2022 LEE

Other segment information B3 H&H

Net loss on bullion loans designated %£E AR AT BEERE
as at fair value through profitor 7 B4 BEEEEE
loss 138,560 = - - 138,560 - 138,560

Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HEMESRTAEER/

derivative financial instruments % (13,274) 858 - - (12,416) - (12,416)
Net loss on disposal of items of & + KERREER

property, plant and equipment FEE 6,607 - - - 6,607 - 6,607
Depreciation of property, plantand %1% « BRRHEZ1TE

equipment 332,876 - 431 - 333,307 - 333,307
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FREEE 2 #E 535,966 - 1,304 - 537,270 - 537,210
Reversal of impairment of accounts  FEMERFERE - 5

receivable, net (38,655) - - - (38,655) - (38,655)
Impairment of receivables arising A REERLEL 7 BN

from securities and futures B

broking - - - - - 30,889 30,889
Write-down of inventories tonet ~ H#FEZA2RFE

realisable value 6,149 - - - 6,149 - 6,149
Capital expenditure BRBRER 378,414 - 154 16,172 394,740 - 394,740
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2021

Segment revenue

Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Other revenue

Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment sales

Segment results
Reconciliation:

Dividend income

Net fair value gain/(loss) on:

Investment properties
Bullion loans designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments
- transactions not qualifying as
hedges
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Finance income
Finance costs
Foreign exchange differences, net

Profit before tax

BZ221E12A318
LEE

Al
HETHREP
RBHE
Ao

-
HENDHE

P
-
REMA
Tils Rz AFEE
s/ (B
S
EERRATEE
Elbd 2y
BEBESR
fTEeMIA
- TR
REL5
BOFEERA
BEANHAE
BHRA
HHER
EXEE HE

BB ATER

REMBERME

4. REITBERE)

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation

HEREEH RIHEEEH

Retail Wholesale Total for Securities

of jewellery of precious  E-commerce Other continuing and futures
and watches metals platform businesses operations broking Total

%2R sEmE  BER |

EETE  BEEME ETHETA Rt SHai Heag At
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk T iR T Thn Tin TEn
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&) (E5) (E5) (&) (B51) (E51) (E5)
19,921,938 2,033,068 62 20,209 21,975,277 13,197 21,938 474
- 548,901 - 1,066 549,967 - 549,967
- - - 12,282 12,282 - 12,282
19,921,938 2,581,969 62 33,557 22,537,526 13,197 22,550,723
(549,967) (549,967)
21,987,559 22,000,756
987,262 16,818 (35432) 7,338 975,986 (108,462) 867,524
31,777 - 31,777
1,364 - 1,364
16,025 - 16,025
(4,947) = (4,947)
570 - 570
13,606 1,217 24,823
(60,486) (3,064) (63,550
31,816 - 31,816
1,005,711 (100,309) 905,402
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

4.  Operating Segment Information (continued) 4. REITBERE)

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
HEREET RIHEEST
Retail Wholesale Total for Securities
of jewellery of precious  E-commerce Other continuing and futures

and watches metals platform businesses operations broking Total

Wg& ?%?EF% BB \
EETE  BEEME ETHETA Efp %% ECH B At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THL Tién Thn Thn Thn T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(%51) (Z51) (51) (E31) (E31) (E5) (Z51)

Year ended BZ221E12A318
31 December 2021 LEE

Other segment information ~ H{t3 844
Net gain on bulion loans designated %7 ARA T EE:]ERE
as at fair value through profitor 2 ESBEEFUIE

loss (17,276) = = = (17,276) - (17,276)
Net lossf(gain) on disposal of HENEERTATEE/

derivative financial instruments (Megs) (21,124 7 - - (20,407) - (20,407)
Net loss on disposal of items o~ HEWE - KR RREER

property, plant and equipment  F#&ig 4,744 - - - 4,744 281 5,025
Depreciation of property, plantand 9% « BERFE7E

equipment 310,166 - 351 - 310,517 131 310,648
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FREEE & 502,469 - 1,093 - 503,562 1,926 505,488
Impairment of accounts receivable, FEMIER3TRl(E + %(E

net 60,726 - - - 60,726 - 60,726
Impairment of receivables arising ~ BHLBEMEELE 2l

from securities and futures BRE

broking - - - - - 92,907 92,907
Write-down of inventories tonet ~ MBHFEETERFE

realisable value 10,661 - - - 10,661 - 10,661
Capital expenditure BAMRT 396,514 - 306 21,286 418,106 - 418,106
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4,

Operating Segment Information (continued)

(a)

(b)

Geographical information

Revenue from external customers — Continuing operations

Mainland China el N
Hong Kong and Macau BAERRM
Taiwan =)
Other regions HAf

The revenue information of continuing operations above is based
on the locations of the customers.

Non-current assets

Mainland China B R BE
Hong Kong and Macau B RRM
Taiwan =0

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

The turnover from the Group's largest customer amounted to less
than 10% of the Group’s total turnover for the current and prior
years.

REMBERRME

4. REIBERE)

(a) HEEH
HETHIKEFZ Wit - HEEE

£
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET
13,700,246 14,316,314
6,625,123 7,481,254
231,085 189,929
62 62

20,556,516 21,987,559

LR EEEERT 2 NS ER TR

BEAEBRES -
HRBEE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR THET
1,422,359 1,465,415
1,303,660 1,142,136
37,237 39,675
2,763,256 2,647,226

LERBEEBH R EEME
WwEED - WABREEEARAF
BEFALBEARENIBEE
RERFIREE °

(b) EBREIEEFZEH

RAFER LFEREAEERA
REZERBIAREREREY
DPR10% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRME

5.  Turnover 5. #XE
Revenue from the following activities has been included in turnover REFELEEB 2 e EBOREUTES
from continuing operations: Z W
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEFE#ZWa 20,544,680 21,975,277
Revenue from other sources KER MR Z W
Gross rental income from investment properties REMFLEHEZBHSRA
operating leases:
Other lease payments, including fixed payments HiAEHRE - BFEENK 11,836 12,282
20,556,516 21,987,559
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEN NS
() Disaggregated revenue information () DY EH
Retail of Wholesale
jewellery of precious E-commerce Other
Segments 28 and watches metals platform businesses Total
%8R
BHIE ESBME  ETHEYR Hih%R &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEL FHT Thx FHT FHR
For the year ended HZ222%
31 December 2022 128310 LEE
Types of goods or services &RaHRKER
Sale of goods EmiHE 19,751,940 765,862 1,783 25,033 20,544,618
Commission on transactions REFHETFAMTK
completed on e-commerce X5 2HE
platform - - 62 - 62
Total revenue from contracts RERFAH 2 B4
with customers 19,751,940 765,862 1,845 25,033 20,544,680
Geographical areas WEm S
Mainland China PR A BE 13,697,207 - 1,783 - 13,698,990
Hong Kong and Macau BERRM 5,823,648 765,862 - 25,033 6,614,543
Taiwan e 231,085 - - - 231,085
Other regions it - - 62 - 62
Total revenue from contracts  REEFAH2 E%%
with customers 19,751,940 765,862 1,845 25,033 20,544,680
Timing of revenue KERAEY
recognition
Transferred at a point in time £ 8228 19,751,940 765,862 1,845 25,033 20,544,680
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DS

Turnover (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(1)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

Segments

For the year ended
31 December 2021

Types of goods or services

Sale of goods

Commission on transactions
completed on e-commerce

platform

Total revenue from contracts

with customers

Geographical areas
Mainland China

Hong Kong and Macau
Taiwan

Other regions

Total revenue from contracts

with customers

Timing of revenue
recognition

=
e
o

Bz E
12ANBLEE

EmaRHEY

EmiHE

REFHEFRMTRK
Q5%

REEPANZBNE

WENS
EARE
KA

Lk
B/S

At

REEFAN Bl

Le et

Transferred at a point in time E&EH

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDI

=

REMBERRME

5. BEHE(E
REFFERN 2 (H)
(i)  DEUZEH(E)

Retail of Wholesale
jewellery of precious E-commerce Other
and watches metals platform businesses Total
HER
BHETE ESEHE  ETHETR Bt At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THEx THL Tz TEx
19,921,938 2,033,068 - 20,209 21,975,215
- - 62 - 62
19,921,938 2,033,068 62 20,209 21,975,277
14,315,010 = — = 14,315,010
5,416,999 2,033,068 - 20,209 7,470,276
189,929 - - - 189,929
— = 62 = 62
19,921,938 2,033,068 62 20,209 21,975,277
19,921,938 2,033,068 62 20,209 21,975,277
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

5.  Turnover (continued) 5. EEHE(E
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REAEFEHZ Wz (E)
(i) Disaggreqgated revenue information (continued) ()  DEWm AR (E)
Set out below the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts to REEP &Kz W B BER
customers to the amounts disclosed in the segment information: BESEHENT
Retail of Wholesale
jewellery of precious E-commerce Other
Segments 28 and watches metals platform businesses Total
HER
BHRIE ELEHE  ETHETA A B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhEx TR Thx THT THR
For the year ended BZ202%
31 December 2022 12A31BLEE
Segment revenue 2 EWE 19,781,260 1,384,844 1,845 37,397 21,205,346
Other revenue Al - - - (11,836) (11,836)
Intersegment adjustments MR R
and eliminations (29,320) (618,982) - (528) (648,830)

Total revenue from contracts REZFAX)

with customers il 19,751,940 765,862 1,845 25,033 20,544,680
For the year ended HZ2021%

31 December 2021 12A31HLEE
Segment revenue porill 6 19,921,938 2,581,969 62 33,557 22,537,526
Other revenue Eflie - - - (12,282) (12,282)
Intersegment adjustments R EPsFE ¥4k

and eliminations - (548,901) - (1,066) (549,967)

Total revenue from contracts RKEXFA4]
with customers 2B 19,921,938 2,033,068 62 20,209 21,975,271
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Turnover (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was included in

contract liabilities at the beginning of B iR
the reporting period:
Sale of goods EmiHE

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods
and payment is mainly on cash and credit card settlement, except
for corporate clients and wholesale customers, where payment is
due within 60 days from delivery. Some contracts provide customers
with a right of return which give rise to variable consideration
subject to constraint.

Commission on transactions completed on e-commerce platform
The performance obligation is satisfied upon the completion of the
relevant transactions on e-commerce platform.

At the end of the reporting period, the amounts of transaction
prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are expected to be recognised
as revenue within one year from contract inception. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the Group has elected the practical expedient
of not disclosing the remaining performance obligations for these
types of contracts.

REMBERME

5. EEHE(E
RABFERN 2 Wz (&)

(1)

REEBOBIIAGHREZ

(i1)

DY s B (B
TRETNAREBHEABRZAR
gﬁiﬁ,ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁiﬁlJ)\m’J%1 Bz WS
4

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
84,040 108,941

BRIE I
REBRBRAEEZ HEZM R
T

ERHE
BHETIARNEREER @ B
%Eﬁ&m%@ﬁﬂﬂ“ﬁéw

WEERSN - HERAREE EAR S
P AREE - B AN AR
1LE% MItEASBNER 2T
HFRE -

REFEEFEAZEXR B
BHETREETEET A LK
HER ZEEK -

RBEBKR  DETRBROEML
(RRTTEBPABITINR S5 E
HIBHBERN A RAGRE - FRER
Al - RED BB RE2ERE
1SS AT ARBEEERT
BEFZ  TREMLESRNF S
BHEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

6.  Other Income and Gains, net 6. HttARKE  FE
An analysis of other income and gains, net from continuing operations is REFELLEE 7 AR R « F
as follows: BT :
2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FTET FET
Dividend income from listed investments ETREZBRBEMHA 25,888 30,889
Dividend income from unlisted investments 3£ E MR & 2 B B U A 637 888
Government grants* B F4Eas 45,635 21,937
Reversal of impairment/(impairment) MEWERFURERE,(RE) @ FE
of accounts receivable, net 23 38,655 (60,726)
Net fair value gain/(loss) on: TO&EZ A FEERFRE(BE)
Investment properties REME 17 28 1,364
Bullion loans designated at fair value BEREATEEITAE
through profit or loss ZESBEE (121,116) 16,025
Derivative financial instruments TESmMIA
— transactions not qualifying as hedges - THEHAERZR S 9,284 (4,947)
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEBEGFABRNIBEE
profit or loss 336 570
Others Hi 38,166 29,818
37,513 35,818
*  Government grants for the year mainly represent subsidies received from * FARMREEEZEREBEANTHERF
government grants in connection with the support from the Anti-epidemic Fund of RREESRENIFMERSZHA - )
the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and subsidies from T A B K B T R AT URCER 2 R B o R E—F
municipal governments in Mainland China. In prior year, government grants mainly & BURF#E 85 Z B4 o B A RE BT U ER
represented subsidies received from municipal governments in Mainland China. There A ZERMUTERER KEIIASE
are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these subsidies. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

7. Profit before Tax from Continuing Operations 7.

REREER 2 BRHRANET

The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived at REFREFBELEER 2BRBATEFE
after charging/(crediting): mer/(GEA)
2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FEx FET
(Restated)
(E73))
Cost of inventories sold SHE AR 15,001,337 16,458,496
Write-down of inventories to WEEEEAERFE'
net realisable value' 6,149 10,661
Depreciation of property, ME  BERREZIE
plant and equipment 333,307 310,517
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZINE 537,270 503,562
Auditor's remuneration ZER B & 4,315 3,591
Lease payments not included in the HENERERTESEERN
measurement of lease liabilities ZHEHAE
— Mainland China N 710,497 860,745
- Hong Kong and others - BB REAM 55,148 51,300
Covid-19-related rent concessions HHEALTE 2019 BARRESHE
from lessors ZHEER 18(b) (15,527) (14,901)
Gain on termination of leases BRIERE 2 e (3,905) (7,204)
Loss on remeasurement of leases BEFTEREZEHE 18(c) 526 -
Employee benefit expenses? (excluding EERAAZ (TREEZHE
Directors’ emoluments (note 9)): (Mtzx9)) :
Wages and salaries ITERF® 1,624,460 1,438,902
Pension scheme contributions RIREFEIHT 297,111 247,426
Less: Forfeited contributions o BIRURAE R (2) (280)
Net pension scheme contributions® BkEarEIHTFE’ 297,109 247,146
1,921,569 1,686,048
Direct operating expenses (including repairs ~ AJIES v REMEHERLLH X
and maintenance) arising on rental-earning  (BE£EBRRE)
investment properties 1,855 1,385
Net loss/(gain) on bullion loans designated as 35E A A FEBE EREZ
at fair value through profit or loss* ESBERFER (s’ 138,560 (17,276)
Net gain on disposal of derivative financial ~ HE/TASE T B F "
instruments* (12,416) (20,407)
Net loss on disposal of items of property, HEYE KRN REERFEE
plant and equipment 6,607 4,744
Design fee paid to a related party’ BN ST RG-S 65 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

7. Profit before Tax from Continuing Operations (continued) 7. BESEEBRIRBAREF(E)

' This balance is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated statement U hEREAERABRE FHEERA R -
of profit or loss.

’  The employee benefit expense included an amount of HK$2,807,000 (2021: ? EERNMBMYEEINTETEZEZ 4K
HK$4,183,000) paid to a family member of certain Directors as employee EREEREEMSE 2 €% 2,807,000% T
emoluments. (20214 : 4,183,000 7T) °

® At 31 December 2022, the Group had forfeited contributions available to reduce 3 R202F128318 AEETAURIE
its contributions to the pension schemes in future years of approximately HK$3,000 AREERKREGHEET 2B BRERLO A
(2021:HK$1,000). 3,00077T(20214 : 1,00057T) °

*  The net loss on bullion loans designated as at fair value through profit or loss of Y EEARATEEIEABZELBERTF
HK$138,560,000 (2021: net gain of HK$17,276,000) and the net gain on disposal /8 18 /5138,560,000 7% 7T (2021 F : FUx 25
of derivative financial instruments included a net gain on bullion contracts of 17,276,000 B7C) R B EEHENTEE®MT
HK$6,036,000 (2021: net gain of HK$23,573,000), which are included in “Cost of BBl ELBA 4 F W25 56,036,000
sales” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The purpose of 78 702021 ¢ F Y55 23,573,000/8 7€) -
the above bullion transactions entered into by the Group is to manage the Group's hESHERSERABREREIHEERK |
bullion price risk. Such loans and contracts did not meet the criteria for hedge FoARENVLNESBRIEHEERA
accounting. The net gain on disposal of derivative financial instruments also included EEVESEBRER - 2SEERAHY
a net gain on foreign currency forward contracts of HK$6,380,000 (2021: net loss on THAEHPEHEBZIGME - HETES
cross currency swaps of HK$3,166,000), which were included in “Other income and MITAZFWRZNEIFRAINES LF W
gains, net” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 6,380,000/ 7T (2021 4 : X X Gtz Hjdh

#E5183,166,00087T) - W2 EEEELS
Bk L[ HAR ARG  FE]T -

° This balance is included in "Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated statement S LM STERABER IEERA T -
of profit or loss. The design fee paid to a related party, who is the family member of MEEAT(AETESENREKE )N
certain Directors, was determined in the ordinary and usual course of business of the R BNAREERE R —REBBIEHETE -
Group.

8.  Finance Income and Finance Costs 8. BBWAREEER
An analysis of finance income and finance costs from continuing RERBBEEER 2 MBEBRARIKER
operations is as follows: DT
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx FHT
Finance income: 0 T UNE
Bank interest income RITA BUHA 13,340 13,606
Finance costs: MHER : \
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts RITER  BIRHEMER
and other loans ZFIE 41,483 18,859
Interest on lease liabilities HEABHS 40,377 41,627
81,860 60,486
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

9.  Directors’ Emoluments 9. EEMe

Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules,
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

Fees ik

Other emoluments: HibBi< -
Salaries and allowances ¥é KoEah
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable EH&FEH@’JF* i
Pension scheme contributions RIKES IR

An analysis of the emoluments paid and payable to the Directors during
the year is as follows:

BEEMRA - BB RQBEG5383(1)

(a)~(b) OROERAB(REEEF

BERBOIE2H AEEZESEHE
WEMT :

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

3,770 3,122

7,784 6,491

1,864 1,786

132 110

9,780 8,387

13,550 11,509

FRENRENTESCMEOWAT

Discretionary Pension
Salaries and  bonuses paid scheme
Fees allowances  and payable contributions Total
‘ ﬁﬁ& BARER BiKg
ne )41 BB TR Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET THERT TR TER
2022
Executive Directors: BTES:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing BRI iea 445 3,384 796 - 4,625
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing Bk (e 375 315 25 - 715
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing BAKEE 315 2,771 684 67 3,843
Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing AZfzt 315 1,308 359 65 2,047
1,450 7,784 1,864 132 11,230
Non-executive Directors: FHTEE:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERAE 375 - - - 375
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam BT AE 375 - - - 375
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun* BRiRE B " 375 = = = 375
Mr. LEE Ka Lun* ERELET 445 - - - 445
Dr. LO King Man* ESXEL" 375 - - - 375
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung* Bl 375 - - - 375
2,320 - - - 2,320
3,770 7,784 1,864 132 13,550
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8.

Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

2021

Executive Directors: HITES !
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing [EIKBL e
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing B B8 A
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing ARk EE
Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing®r  BZE&Ex+"

Non-executive Directors: FHTES
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERAE
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam =YY vt
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun* RAEHEL
Mr. LEE Ka Lun* X
Dr. LO King Man* EExEL”
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung* Bk

A Appointed on 1 November 2021
*  Independent Non-executive Directors

REMBERME

9. ExMe(E)
Discretionary Pension
Salaries and bonuses paid scheme

Fees allowances and payable contributions Total

\ Fek BT RS RIS ‘
e e WIS ST CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TEL FHEL TET TET
398 3,295 901 - 4,594
333 305 25 10 673
278 2,679 793 89 3,839
50 212 67 11 340
1,059 6,491 1,786 110 9,446
888 - - - 333
333 - - - 333
888 - - - 333
398 - - - 398
3B - - - 333
333 - - - 333
2,063 - - - 2,063
3,122 6,491 1,786 110 11,509

There were no other emoluments payable to the Independent Non-

executive Directors during the year (2021: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 9 Directors waived emoluments

totalling HK$249,000.

A R2021%F 11 A1 BEZRE
* BUFWTES

FRTEEMHEENS TBIIENMTES
(20214 : BT °

HE2021F12A31BILFE 9%E=
WMEA 249,000/ THEE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10.

1.

Senior Management’s Emoluments

The emoluments paid to the members of senior management by band are
as follows:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

Note:

Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing was the senior management of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021 before her appointment as an Executive Director on
1 November 2021.

ma

10.

1,000,001 & 7T E 1,500,000 7T
2,000,001 7T 2 2,500,000 87T
2,500,001 BLE 3,000,000/’5%
3,000,001 87T E 3,500,0008 7T
3,500,001 7T 4,000,000 57T

MBEHRRME

SREE
EGRISE

—
2

&
ERAEXNZMEMT

it

=]
A

o
+

Number of individuals
AE
2022 2021

| = =
= | = = =

B

EHAZLTR2021F 11 A1 BEZEIARTES
CREE2021F12ANBLEEEARNEES
i& BAE -

“k:l

Five Highest Paid Employees 1. LEESFHES
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included iﬁﬂﬁi%ﬂ%?%%ﬁ@\@é’@%ﬁﬁ%
two (2021: two) Directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in (2021 F: ﬁ%) =HEFANEEH
note 9 above. Details of the emoluments for the year of the remaining B LI 9 o ANFEH R =4(2021
three (2021: three) non-Director highest paid employees are as follows: F: =R )REFMIFESEEE 2FAM

SEBOT :
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Salaries and allowances e k2R 7,728 7,566
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable B R EREIEIEA 1,510 1,748
Pension scheme contributions RREHEMERK 146 141
9,384 9,455
The number of non-Director highest paid employees whose emoluments MWeNnFUTEMNz ZEHFESES
fell within the following bands is as follows: ZANEIAT
Number of individuals
AH

2022 2021
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 & 7T 3,000,000 7 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 &L ZE 3,500,000 % 7T 2 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7L Z 4,000,000 7 7T = 1
3 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.

Income Tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2021:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a
qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
first HK$2,000,000 (2021: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this
subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2021: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable

profits are taxed at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%).

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Corporate Income
Tax (the “CIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the CIT Law, the
tax rate of the Mainland China subsidiaries is 25% (2021: 25%). Taxes
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Current — Hong Kong
Charge for the year
Overprovision in prior years
Current — Mainland China and elsewhere
Charge for the year
Underprovision in prior years
Deferred

Total tax charge for the year from
continuing operations

Total tax charge for the year from the
discontinued operation

A - BB
FABE
BEFEBERE

ma

12.

ARE — P RRE R Hopth

FARE
BEFERBTIR

FRREXBFARERR
RIEBERT 2 FARIREEE

MBEHRME

Frigs
EENCHDEBREAREBEE 2
JE &% s A A B %= 16.5% (20214 ¢
16.5%)BfE - AEE—RMBARR
O ZARFEMEHFEHEHEZ
Bl ZHBRARZERFENS &
2,000,000/ 7C(2021 4F : 2,000,000 %
T ) $28.25% (20214 : 8.25%) it & -
i 3Rl f FE FR B A1 A142 16.5% (2021 F -
16.5%):t & -

BETEARAMBELEREIOE( X
EREDREEMERZERA
o B K B Y B8 2 Bl 2 B R 15 25% (2021
% 25%) o Hfthih[Em ERTOE A 2 IR
DEASENEEERLZEER 2BAK

Szal g
K -

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT
23,130 11,851
(62) (1,014)
96,326 187,115
50 372
(2,441) 67,007
117,003 265,331
= 302
117,003 265,633
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.

Income Tax (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which major operating subsidiaries of
the Group are domiciled to the tax charge at the effective tax rate is as

follows:

Profit before tax from continuing operations
Loss before tax from the discontinued operation

Tax charge at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate
of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%)

Difference in tax rates applied for specific
provinces or enacted by local authorities

Adjustments in respect of current tax of
previous periods

Estimated income not subject to tax

Estimated expenses not deductible for tax

Effect of withholding tax at 5% or 10%
(2021: 5% or 10%) on the distributable
profits of the Group's subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China

Tax losses utilised from previous periods

Estimated tax losses not recognised

Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate

Tax charge from continuing operations at
the effective rate

Tax charge from the discontinued operation at
the effective rate
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RERBHRRWE
12. FiSHi(E

TREAEEEZLEMNE N R ML
FIER A EER AERRTELEHR
BRIEADEM 2T - ARIEEERERFE

ZRRTERITHER

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
BELCEER ZBBANEH 592,764 1,005,711
IR F R 2 BT A E 1R (34,039) (100,309)
558,725 905,402

BEBEERE16.5%

(20214 : 16.5%)5tE 2518 92,190 149,391
FERRETEA Dk E ik REE 2 B X

=R 24,405 48,381
FhiB R 2 IR EARE AR

(12) (642)
BB 2 HEHRA (26,210) (14,665)
AR 2 a2 6,265 18,838
BASERPEAREMBEK L

2B DR Z A5 R F 5%

5% 10% (20214 : 5% 3% 10%)

STEERR TR 1,174 41,820
FRBAEHEHEEE (10) (1,811)
M AR Z BT FRIEEE 19,201 24,321
BRASEEEREFE < HE 117,003 265,633
REEMERFE 2 RFELE

EBHIE 117,003 265,331
REEBMERAE 2K IHEE

EBHIE - 302

BEEARA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

13. Discontinued Operation 13. RILEEEK
On 29 January 2021, the Board came to the decision to wind down the MR20215E1 8298 ESERTRILE
operation of the securities and futures broking business. The operation ERHERONER - BENERCEK
of the securities and futures broking business, which had ceased in May ER2021FSARIERE  WELEA
2021, was classified as a discontinued operation. IR AR EERS o
The results of the discontinued operation for the year are presented FRRIMEEEBRNEEEHMT :
below:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERx TAT
(Restated)
(E7)
Turnover %%%ﬁ - 13,197
Cost of sales $HE AR = =
Gross profit EH B - 13,197
Other income and gains, net HA A R - A 191 2,054
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER - (10,373)
Administrative expenses THER (3,344) (20,433)
Impairment of receivables arising from securities BHRAEREESE 2 EK
and futures broking (note 24) BRFURE (K 24) (30,889) (92,907)
Finance income BT IA 3 11,217
Finance costs HMsER = (3,064)
Loss before tax from the discontinued operation RIEREEB BRTBIEE (34,039) (100,309)
Income tax FRiSH = (302)
Loss for the year from the discontinued operation RIS EB  FREE (34,039) (100,611)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.

Discontinued Operation (continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities associated with the discontinued

operation at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Assets

Receivables arising from securities and futures broking

(note 24)

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

Tax recoverable

Cash held on behalf of clients
Cash and cash equivalents

REMBERRME

13, RIEREEK(E)
RREARER EEEBEBCEER

Assets associated with the discontinued operation BSOS RIS B E

Liabilities

Payables arising from securities and futures broking

(note 29)

Other payables and accruals
Liabilities associated with the discontinued operation

Net assets directly associated with the discontinued

operation

The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operation are as follows:

Operating activities
Financing activities

Net cash inflow/(outflow)

Loss per share:

Basic and diluted, from the discontinued operation

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts from the discontinued
operation is based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company from the discontinued operation of HK$34,039,000 (2021:
HK$100,611,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of

BENEESENT
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FET
BE
BERAEELES 2 EUERR
(M5 24) 123,642 154,922
TBNRIE  Et R R EmEE 409 943
BEEE A = 6,190
REFEERS 2,070 3,885
RekFERBRE 5,338 3,317
131,459 169,257
BE
BERAERCEE 2 EFERR
(Mzx29 2,070 3,885
Hib e BRI R AT B 546 1,312
B HC R ERIRRE c BE 2,616 5,197
BRI MRS X EERACEEFE
128,843 164,060

BEEE

RERA/ORH)FE

BREA :

677,434,000 (2021: 677,434,000) in issue during the year.

There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the years

ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

BEEEEE

Al

RIEREXBELCRSREFBRMAT ¢

EAREE  RERELEED

2022 2021
HKS$"000 HK$'000
TER TET
2,021 124,692
- (181,759)
2,021 (57,067)

(5.0) cents 1l

(14.8) cents 1l

RIHEREEE SREABBSEHRT
RALRHEE ABHREEEERER
34,039,000 7% 7t(2021 4 : 100,611,000
BL) RFERNBEITMEFESRNG
677,434,000 f% (2021 £ : 677,434,000
IR)E@RETE -

W& E2022F12A318 1k k202145
AN BALEFEYERTECHELR

B o

2022 4 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14.

15.

Dividends

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
Final dividend for 2021: HK28.0 cents
(2020: HK26.0 cents) per ordinary share
Special final dividend for 2021: Nil
(2020: HK16.0 cents) per ordinary share
Interim dividend for 2022: HK15.0 cents
(2021: HK14.0 cents) per ordinary share

Dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period:

Final dividend for 2022: HK15.0 cents
(2021: HK28.0 cents) per ordinary share

RERBDRE
ZRE

ma

14.

2021 FRERRE - BEBAR

28.0811(2020 % : 26.07811)

2021 FERIRIRES - LB
ZEAI(20204F ¢ 16.0781)
2022 FHERE : BEBK

15.0780 (2021 4F : 14.0784l)

RIRERRRERE
ZKE :

2022 FRERE - BERK

15.07801 (2021 4 : 28.07 1)

The proposed final dividend for 2022 was recommended after the end of
the reporting period and has not been recognised as a liability at the end
of the reporting period, and it is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Earnings per Share Attributable to Owners of the Company

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 677,434,000 (2021:

677,434,000) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

Earnings:

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners

of the Company, used in the basic and
diluted earnings per share calculation
From continuing operations
From the discontinued operation

BF :
ZUNGIE 2PN LR
wAl/(EE) - BR

15.

ATEERERREE AT

REFELEXTE
REREEERTE

1 7% 3R R B &
R B
2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
TEx TR
189,682 176,133
- 108,389
101,615 94,841
291,297 379,363
101,615 189,682

2022 FHURE 2 KRR BRI EHARR%
BHEIRE  UARBREHAEREEE
RAFRDABREREERREFAE
B - HRHEE o
RATREEAEESRER
EREABFEBNRENKADRER
AEIEHER R ERNT BT IETFHRG

677,434,000 % (20214 : 677,434,000
B HBREE -

RNEBEZ 202212 A31 8 1£ &% 2021
F12RANBILFEEVERRTEEEE
LB -

FIRER RS BN THRE AT B EHT
i

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR
486,365 743,868
(34,039) (100,611)
452,326 643,257
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. W% - HERFRE
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
Freehold Plantand  fixtures and Motor  Construction
land Buildings machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BENE
XA 6Bl
¥E1h BF  BERRE  RERRG RE ERIE &it
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
itz TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn Tin TiEn

As at 31 December 2022 120225128318

At 1 January 2022: R202E1R18:
Cost or valuation KA GEE 21,652 695,723 179,732 1,781,437 14,612 186 2,693,342
Accumulated depreciation  25HFE KA

and impairment - (300,133) (127,231) (1,135,550) (13,249) - (1,576,163)
Net carrying amount REFE 21,652 395,590 52,501 645,887 1,363 186 1,117,179
At 1 January 2022, R02F1A18

net of accumulated M2t E

depreciation and RAE

impairment 21,652 395,590 52,501 645,887 1,363 186 1,117,179
Surplus on revaluation YA - 20,622 - - - - 20,622
Additions NE - 25,664 11,053 341,152 699 - 378,568
Transfers kg - - - 171 - (177) -
Transfer to investment ERARENE

properties 17 - (21,200) - - - - (21,200
Disposals HE - - (349) (6,765) (55) - (7,169)
Depreciation provided ENTERE

during the year - (29,568) (14,885) (288,079) (775) - (333,307)
Exchange realignment R (2,094) (17,883) (3,178) (45,606) (73) (9) (68,843)
At 31 December 2022, R202512A318

net of accumulated Mk 2 HE

depreciation and RAE

impairment 19,558 373,225 45,142 646,766 1,159 - 1,085,850
At 31 December 2022: R202%128318
Cost or valuation AR HE 19,558 690,179 177,495 1,882,848 11,300 - 2,781,380
Accumulated depreciation  25HFE KA

and impairment - (316,954) (132,353) (1,236,082) (10,141) - (1,695,530)
Net carrying amount REFE 19,558 373,225 45,142 646,766 1,159 - 1,085,850
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2021:

Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2021,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
impairment

Surplus on revaluation

Additions

Transfers

Transfer to investment
properties

Disposals

Depreciation provided
during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2021,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
impairment

At 31 December 2021:

Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

R2021512A31A

R202151818 :
AR (E
ZHMERRE

2

RaONF1/18
MEZFHAE
RAfE

EIl

RE

ag
BRERANE

i
ERTERE

EHZ
B20215128318

NH2EE
LA

R2021E128318
AR (E
ZHMERAE

KEFE

REMBERME

16. W% - HERFEE)

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
Freehold Plant and fixtures and Motor  Construction
land Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
iEES
XA 6 Rl
T BF  BEREE  RERRE E fRIE GE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
itz TEL TR TR FiEn TR TAT THT
21,237 640,921 173,293 1,579,106 14,431 2,626 2,431,614
- (280,984) (118,883)  (1,000,271) (12,346) - (1,412,484)
21,237 359,937 54,410 578,835 2,085 2,626 1,019,130
21,237 359,937 54,410 578,835 2,085 2,626 1,019,130
- 107,968 - - - - 107,968
- 64,930 12,160 318,656 709 315 396,820
= = = 2,644 = (2,644) =
17 - (116,800) - - - - (116,800)
= (31) (203) (5,666) = (152) (6,052)
- (28,018) (15,258) (265,906) (1,466) - (310,648)
415 7,554 1,392 17,324 35 4 26,761
21,652 395,590 52,501 645,887 1,363 186 1,117,179
21,652 695,723 179,732 1,781,437 14,612 186 2,693,342
- (300,133) (127,31)  (1,135,550) (13,249) - (1,576,163)
21,652 395,590 52,501 645,887 1,363 186 1,117,179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.

17.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Certain of the Group's buildings were revalued on 31 December 1993
by Knight Frank & Kan, independent professionally qualified valuers. The
buildings were revalued on an open market, existing use basis. Since
1995, no further revaluations of the Group’s buildings have been carried
out, as the Group has relied upon the exemption, provided under the
transitional provisions of HKAS 16, from the requirement to carry out
future revaluations of its property, plant and equipment which were stated
at valuation at that time.

Had these buildings been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, their carrying amount would have been approximately
HK$9,467,000 (2021: HK$10,784,000).

Investment Properties

Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1BZERE
Additions NE

Transfer from owner-occupied properties HEABRAME
Net gain from a fair value adjustment REBERE 2 FHE
Exchange realignment BE 5 AR

K12 831 BzEEE

Carrying amount at 31 December

Management has determined that the investment properties consist of
two classes of asset, i.e., properties held in Hong Kong and properties
held outside Hong Kong, based on the nature, characteristics and risks
of each property. The Group's investment properties were revalued at
HK$508,335,000 on 31 December 2022 based on valuations performed
by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further details of which are included in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties are included on
pages 199 to 202.

ma

16.

17.

MBEHRRME

ME - BRERRE(R)

REBETEFNI993F12A31BEK
BUEEAERGEMERAIENTE
f - ZEEFRERBARKRARMEE
B AEEH 1995 FHM BB
ERFE16R2BERRE TR &
BHAERGHETIRZME  #ERRE
ﬁﬁ*%iﬁ’mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁi

35 It SAEF DA SR AR R T I E 5
Bk HEREESA9,467,0007 7T (2021
1 10,784,000/87T) °

REME
2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M TER TET
472,897 332,649
16,172 21,286
16 21,200 116,800
6 28 1,364
(1,962) 798
508,335 472,897

EEECRESBEWEIMHE  FERE
RETHEMEBEREEE BREE
BEZMERRBEARINGEZME - R
2022F 128318 AEBZEENME
RERBYEESERGEMBERTE
RN RI#ET 2 (AEE A 508,335,000 7%
=
FEREWENCERESE=H  #—F
HBEHN G AR BHRRATE 18 -

BREAKBRENE ZE—THBIRS
199F 2028 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17.

Investment Properties (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

All investment properties were classified under Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy. During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there
were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group has assessed that the
highest and best use of its properties did not differ from their existing use.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at 1 January 2021

Additions

Transfer from owner-occupied properties

Net gain from a fair value adjustment
recognised in profit or loss

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December 2021
and 1 January 2022

Additions

Transfer from owner-occupied properties

Net gain from a fair value adjustment
recognised in profit or loss

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December 2022

R2021%F1 81 BZEREE

NE

ERAERANE

RBRETERNAFEE
7 F

=S

B2021F12 318K
20221 A1 BZEEE

NE

EREaRAmE

REBEZERTHERANATEE
AR F W

RS

R2022F12 A31 B ZBREE

REMB|MRME
17. RENEE)
NFEEER
IERENFAHERATBESERZA
i3 B E 20225 k2021412 A31H
IEFERENRRNEER 2 2 EI &R TE
Bt 2EY  TEEAFBLERZ - K
SEEHTENEZ RS MRERGEA
BERBLED R
DERRFREZRZERZANZ ATEE
fEi3H 8 9 -
Properties Properties
held in  held outside
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
REBRE REBEH
A7 ES BFEZW* &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx THET
307,830 24,819 332,649
21,286 - 21,286
116,800 - 116,800
1,364 - 1,364
- 798 798
447,280 25,617 472,897
16,172 - 16,172
21,200 - 21,200
28 - 28
= (1,962) (1,962)
484,680 23,655 508,335
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

17. Investment Properties (continued) 17. REWME(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AR EEER(E)
Set out below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key THESIEAREYMEGEMERGERT
inputs to the valuation of investment properties: REZEHEIHE :
Significant
Valuation technique unobservable inputs Range
HERM BEABUBEYE

2022 2021

Properties held in Market comparison Price per square foot HK$8,300 to HK$8,300 to
Hong Kong method HK$9,100 HK$9,100
REBRR M MiZLLEUE BYHRER 8,300/ L% 8,300/ L E
9,100 & T 9,100 7T

Price per unit of car

HK$900,000 to

HK$800,000 to

parking space HK$1,600,000 HK$1,500,000

FEM B ER 900,000 TZE  800,000/8TLE

1,600,000 & T 1,500,000 7% 7T

Income capitalisation Market unit rent per HK$19 to HK$19 to
method square foot per month HK$144 HK$144
WAE KA BRFARMSEMHES 198%E 198 TE
14438 T 144 77T

Capitalisation rate

2.0% to 4.3%

2.0% to 4.3%

B = 2.0% £4.3% 2.0%E4.3%

Properties held outside Income capitalisation Market unit rent per RMB14.7 RMB15.2
Hong Kong method square meter per month

REBRIMNGEZ2ME WAERIE BRGFHAMSEMHS AR¥147 7 AR¥1527T

Capitalisation rate 8.5% 8.5%

BALH &

BYHRER  FEUEMER  SAF
FhRmMGEMEEME AT ATS
BUASBUIOAR LA TREERR
BY% 2 NTEEKNEEM, D o EX
LR B AR LT TREEBRE
MEHDFEERAERD, L0 -

A significant increase/decrease in the price per square foot, price per unit
of car parking space, market unit rent per square foot per month and
market unit rent per square meter per month in isolation would result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.
A significant increase/decrease in the capitalisation rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the investment
properties.

HERRH IR IS - RS K
hBE ZIFOHREMEE -

The valuations take into account the characteristics of the properties
which included the location, size, floor level, year of completion and other
factors collectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various buildings used in its operations.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from
the owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments
will be made under the terms of this land lease. Leases of buildings
generally have lease terms between 1 and 10 years. Generally, the Group
is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group. There are several lease contracts that include variable lease
payments, which are further discussed below.

(@)  Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
movements during the year are as follows:

REVMBBRRMET
18. #HE
REBEREEA

AEBERREENZERTHIAEER
%) o BARANME DL — IR FUAME T U
BHELH BHEBS0F  MREZF
THBENER BT RESMER
FE - HEETHEABENT1E10
Fo—RME  AEENARAEEAIN
ATBEENBAEEEE - A THERY
BEAUEEERR  #EEWT

@ RABEE
FRAKEFEREEENRAER

At 1 January 2021
Additions
Termination of leases
Depreciation charge
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2021
and 1 January 2022

Additions

Termination of leases

Remeasurement of leases

Depreciation charge

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2022

2021 F 1818
NE

RIFHRE
FERE
R

R2021%F 12 A31H
%2021 81H

NE

RIS

EFFEHE

FERL

RS

R2022F12 A31H

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 150  ANNUAL REPORT 2022

AEEESEBEBEERAQR

2gmT -
Leasehold

land Buildings Total
HELH BF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT TERT
11,238 782,438 793,676
= 601,789 601,789
- (66,035) (66,035)
(285) (505,203) (505,488)
357 7,617 7,974
11,310 820,606 831,916
- 754,872 754,872
- (45,705) (45,705)
- (8,284) (8,284)
(276) (536,994) (537,270)
(858) (30,621) (31,479)
10,176 953,874 964,050
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during

the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 January

New leases

Termination of leases

Accretion of interest recognised
during the year

Covid-19-related rent concessions
from lessors (note 7)

Payments

Remeasurement of leases

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December

Analysed into:
Current portion

Non-current portion due for repayment
within a period of:
More than one year but less than
two years
More than two years but less than
five years
Over five years

®1 A1 BZERAEE
HE

RIS
FRD RN S IELE

REMBERRME

18. HE(HE)
REBEREBEAE)

b) MHERRE
FAHERGENREERESN

HHAL TE 2019 B M EERH

ZHERR(MET)
BN
EHENE
B 5 H

W12 A31 BZREE

DA

mENE S

EUTHRAZ HEE
EREILS -
BR—FEIRM
BBMEELRE
REME

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 43(a) to

the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all eligible rent
concessions granted by the lessors for leases of certain retail stores

during the year.

N
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
907,220 1,001,162
733,233 587,687
(49,610) (72,425)
40,377 41,662
(15,527) (14,901)
(584,428) (648,400)
(7,758) -
(40,522) 12,435
982,985 907,220
466,241 483,735
Z
F
335,654 247,936
F
177,484 173,427
3,606 2,122
516,744 423,485
982,985 907,220

BEAENIBADITRGE M
REMTE43@) FE -

ARECHATRENERARE
ALBAARTETEEEHEEN
FEREREERS -

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (151 ANNUAL REPORT 2022
AEESEBREREAERRQA

2022 4 3R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

18. Leases (continued) 18. HE(#E)
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEEERAREAE)
(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as () REmZFEZNHEEBFEL
follows: 5
2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FEx FHT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAREFE 18(b) 40,377 41,662
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZTE 18(a) 537,270 505,488
Expense relating to short-term leases 242 HIF EH B@HIFI X 100,043 80,775
Variable lease payments not included Rt ATREE B2 A E
in the measurement of lease MERE"
liabilities* 665,602 831,270
Covid-19-related rent concessions EHRALFTH2019BRFE
from lessors HEZEEER 18(b) (15,527) (14,901)
Gain on termination of leases BIEHE 2 s (3,905) (6,390)
Loss on remeasurement of leases EFEEzER 7 526 =
Total amount recognised in RER KRR IR
profit or loss 1,324,386 1,437,904
*  The Group leased a number of the retail stores and units in a shopping mall * AEEREZETEEHRNEDS
which contain variable lease payment terms that are based on the Group's DB - ZEHEEREUAEEE

&%4@%u?%ﬁﬁ&$4?$ﬂ’ﬂ%
%%EEEWE’]TE%XEE?X CS

turnover generated from the retail stores and the units in the shopping mall.
There are also minimum annual base rental arrangements for some of these

leases. DRERENH ﬁ?ﬁﬁf‘%ﬁ“%ﬁﬁ
ZHE e
(d)  The total cash outflows for leases and future cash outflows relating () EBHEELEMBEeRLAHENLE

h*ﬁﬁﬁ%’ﬁﬂ BN ARE 2
mutﬂ%(% RIAERA BT SRR M+t
38(c) & 39(b) #5E ©

to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in notes 38(c)
and 39(b), respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.

19.

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 17) consisting of
commercial properties, industrial property, residential property, roof
and car parking space in Hong Kong and Mainland China under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$11,836,000
(2021: HK$12,282,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivables by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants are as follows:

Within one year —FN

After one year but within two years —FE EEREUAR
After two years but within three years MEL FE=FNUR
After three years but within four years =FAEBEMEFEIAR

Intangible Assets

At January 2021: M2021F1 818 :
Cost (gross carrying amount) A (BRE 428 )
Accumulated amortisation S

Net carrying amount at 1 January 2021
Write-off i 85

Cost, accumulated amortisation and
net carrying amount at 31 December 2021,
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022

Upon the adoption of HKAS 38, trading rights, which are considered to
have indefinite lives because they are expected to contribute to the net
cash flows of the Group indefinitely, are not amortised.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, as the Group had discontinued
its securities and futures brokering business, the Stock Exchange and
the Futures Exchange had approved the Group's application for the
relinquishment of trading rights. Accordingly, the trading rights were
written off by the Group.

ma

18.

19.

M202151 A1 B2EmEEE

MBEHRRME

HE(#)
FEEFRHEA

AEERELEHETHEAERENE
(Mt3E17) - BERBEBRPBEARERD
EYE - TEVE  FTEVE  KEKE
B  ZEHENKRBEERHALY
HERES  YREBEERMBTTRE
TEHHEHAE - FRALEEEHERN
4 W A B11,836,0008 7T(2021 F :
12,282,000 L) * FFIEHNRE KR
RMTFES °

R2022F 128318 AEEREEEER
I BTN B E S SR EUCRERR
RERBMT :

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FAET
7,309 10,865
2,224 4,615
448 524

236 -
10,217 16,004

BYEE

Trading

rights

X5

HK$'000

TET

524
(253)

271
(271)

2021412 A31H 20221818
2022412 B 31 B ZAA »
EEHEE N RE R E

FMEB G ERE38HRE  ANRS
REAAASEERAT IR REF
B RRRAREAERE M -

BHE221FE12A31BILEE A&F
RIHRBHEER AL ER - BT
REREMEAEBRER HIE2H
oAl AEEEMBERHHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

20. Other Assets 200 HtEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Cost of membership for a seat at CGSE SREEHHERUA 1,500 1,500
Rental deposits* HEXS ™ 200,999 221,772
Deposits paid for purchases of items of property, EEWE  MERBBEEZ
plant and equipment BEffké 2,522 1,962
205,021 225,234
*  The rental deposits are related to office properties, retail stores and factories leased O NAREZHAE TEEHLREEA
by the Group (note 18(a)) and the majority of the terms of the lease arrangements H(F18() 2 HBHEERS  KEHH
are over one year. Included in this total is an aggregate amount of approximately HRBBB—F HhAANI131BERET
HK$131 million (2021: approximately HK$136 million) relating to operating leases (20214 : K136 BEABT)E—FANEHZ
expiring within one year. The Directors are of the opinion that such deposits are of KERE - EERA RABHEERHINE
a long-term nature on the basis that the related leases are expected to be renewed BEHBENZ CWERSEBRAM
upon their respective expiry dates. Accordingly, the Directors consider it appropriate BoRllt BEERREBHERENEAIE
to classify such deposits as non-current assets. MENEE °
21. Financial Assets designated at Fair Value through Other 21. EBEARLFEESAHMEZERENH
Comprehensive Income BEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHT
Listed equity investments, at fair value FRRGOIRE BRATEE
HKEC* BRAT” 1,121,797 1,515,025
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value FLETRMIRE - BRAFEE
Sure Success Holdings Limited Sure Success Holdings Limited 19,900 19,288
Golden Twin (Un Long) Catering Company Limited ~ $#% (7B SR EER AT 16,849 16,849
Hong Kong Precious Metals Exchange Limited BERBELBRIMERAT 270 287
37,019 36,424
1,158,816 1,551,449
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. Financial Assets designated at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (continued)

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these

investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received dividends
in the amounts of HK$25,383,000 (2021: HK$30,440,000), HK$206,000
(2021: HK$463,000), HK$413,000 (2021: HK$413,000) and HK$18,000
(2021: HK$12,000) from HKEC, Sure Success Holdings Limited, Golden
Twin (Un Long) Catering Company Limited and Hong Kong Precious

Metals Exchange Limited, respectively.

* On 6 March 2000, under the Schemes of Arrangements of the Stock Exchange and
the Futures Exchange and pursuant to the Exchanges and Clearing Houses (Merger)
Ordinance, the Group received 6,223,500 shares of HKEC, six exchange trading
rights in the Stock Exchange and one exchange trading right in the Futures Exchange
as a consideration for the cancellation of its 6 shares held in the Stock Exchange
and 1 share held in the Futures Exchange. As at 31 December 2022, the Group held

3,326,800 (2021: 3,326,800) shares of HKEC.

22. Inventories

Goods held for sale FEHEZER

23. Accounts Receivable

Trade and credit card receivables
Impairment A

FE MR

Accounts receivable

The Group's trading terms with its retail and e-commerce platform
customers are mainly on cash and credit card settlement while trading
terms with corporate clients and wholesale customers are on credit with
credit period generally up to 60 days. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Trade receivables are non-interest-

bearing.

FEWE 5 R (5 ARIRH

REMBERRME

21.

22,

23.

EERRLFEEF AR BRE RSN
BEE(H)

il (iR B B P RIE IS E AR AT

BEFAEMEZEKE  BAKER A%

EREBEREILE

HZE202F12831BILEE A£H
U B B% B.25,383,0007% JT(20214 :
30,440,000 7T ) * 206,0003% 7£(2021
4 1 463,000787T) + 413,000 712021
1 413,000 7T ) } 18,000 7£(2021
F 1 12,00087T) 7 BIRE B RET 0 Sure
Success Holdings Limited, 4 (7TER) #X
REEBEBARRBEECBRZMERA
ET °

*  A2000F3A6R - R AT R
BB EHEEIARR B REE (A4
Bl AEEWBFBERFT6,223,500 A%
NEBRARFER BRI HHE A
R RER AT E 2 6 BRIRHD RIEBR AT
BB ZIRR M M20226128318 *
AEEFE B R 3,326,8008%(2021 F -
3,326,800 f%) B3

BE
2022 2021
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR TET
12,112,349 11,343,277
FE W AR
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$°000
TERT TR
875,695 916,523
(57,223) (112,189)
818,472 804,334

AEERHETERETHETATPAIL

ZRGGEFEIEURE RERREE M

BEPXRPRMBRPILZZHEN

LRA-RRZUECOR - BHERA

E%&%ﬁ@/\éiﬂﬁ%ﬁ o RUWE BIRHRA
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23.

Accounts Receivable (continued)

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within 1 month 1TEAR

1 to 2 months 122EA
2 to 3 months 2ZE3fEA
Over 3 months #BiB31EA

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of accounts

receivable are as follows:

At 1 January ®n1A1A8

Impairment/(reversal of impairment) losses, AE/ CRERRE)ESE -
net (note 6) (M3 6)

Amount written off as uncollectable W REELR z 25

Exchange realignment B i, S 2

At 31 December M12A318

REMBHRRMET
23. FEWERF(E)
RIS - ERIRFREBEEZE SR
BREBREBERREITOT

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHT
700,198 737,480
70,042 47,906
25,746 16,538
22,486 2,410
818,472 804,334

YRR R EBIERESEHMT
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FHT
112,189 49,806

FE

(38,655) 60,726
(9,101) -
(7,210) 1,657
57,223 112,189

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type
and customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, accounts receivable are written off if past due for more than
one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

AEBRNERE A BERRBREETR
EOH - N ERMEEESR - BEXD
ENABRUBXER(PIMEZLE - E
mBRUARBEPREERFR) 2 B EEP
DR BRRBETE - HEERR
AR IEAR - B RREENER
REAMAESAMATESMHZAERA
AR - BRIRRARRREEMRRTE
Ble —RME  BPEE—FREAZR
R HIBIT/R B R U AR K E T LA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23.

24.

Accounts Receivable (continued) 23.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group's accounts receivable using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2022

ma

MBEHRRME

e W AR ()

TRETAKE AR EREE N RK
ERNEERRER |

#2022%€12H31H

Past due
k]
Less than 1t03 Over

Current 1 month months 3 months Total

RE S8R 1Z2318A BiB31EA A%

Expected credit loss rate BHEEREX 1.47% 3.46% 5.21% 59.25% 6.53%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BEEI42(E(T57T) 632,987 111,420 62,402 68,886 875,695
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FBEHEEEE(THT) 9,305 3,853 3,253 40,812 57,223

As at 31 December 2021

R2021%F12A31H

Past due
bt
Less than 1103 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
e PR 1EA 1E318A HiB3{EA CH
Expected credit loss rate EHEEEHEX 1.19% 2.77% 4.40% 85.78% 12.24%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BRE#2E(FHET) 674,516 92,433 32,839 116,735 916,523
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) TEHiZEEE(THET) 8,046 2,558 1,446 100,139 112,189
Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking 24, EBHFRBERK/LELEZEWER
2022 2021
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Receivables arising from securities and futures EHBEBTELRR
broking conducted in the ordinary course HEQKLEEZ
of business: FEUTBR R -

Loans to margin clients* HEEFEZ' 737,182 737,573
Impairment WA (613,540) (582,651)
Receivables arising from securities BHERAERBEEY

and futures broking FEMBR K 123,642 154,922

The loans to margin clients were secured by the underlying pledged securities,
repayable on demand and bore interest at commercial rates. No ageing analysis was
disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an ageing analysis was not relevant in
view of the nature of the business of securities margin financing. As at 31 December
2022, the total market value of securities pledged as collateral and securities held
by guarantors in respect of the loans to margin clients was HK$123,642,000 (2021:
HK$154,922,000).

Receivables from margin clients arising from the business of dealing in
securities and futures broking are repayable on demand subsequent to
settlement date.

' O RFREFPEFMIMBERE SRR
ARBRHEERRERGHGE - EFR
AERELFTRBAEZHHERRR DN
WAAEE - BUEBBRIRE DT o K20224
12A3NA ARFREFPEHUEFER
FERRRERTABZEZZATER
123,642,0007% 7T(2021 4 : 154,922,000 7%
L) °

REEFLHEEEEHR
YRR E A ER IR R

i S

FEEFHE

Big

)

FN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of receivables arising
from securities and futures broking are as follows:

At 1 January 2021
Loss allowance recognised (note 13)

At 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022
Loss allowance recognised (note 13)

At 31 December 2022

REMBERRME

24, BERBERLEEZEUIR(E)
BERBERCEEZ ERBRAZRERS
BEREEEHWT
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
12-month not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
TREERE HESERE
1218 A& ZE2HEH ZEHES
EEER FEER EEFR
(B1RR) (B8 (B3R )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET THRT THRT
W2021% 1818 - = 489,744 489,744
BREREERE(ME13) - = 92,907 92,907
202112 318K
20221818 - = 582,651 582,651
ERRERARE (H5E13) - - 30,889 SULE
M2022F12A31H - - 613,540 613,540

Receivables arising from securities and futures broking are categorised
into excellent, good and fair. Excellent refers to loans to margin clients
of which margin obligation can be met and payment of interest and
principal is not in doubt, with good quality and liquidity of collateral.
Good refers to loans to margin clients with exposures which principal and
interest are partially or fully secured by collateral with values higher than
carrying amount. Fair refers to loans to margin clients with exposures of
which loss, partial or full, has incurred and with insufficient collateral. An
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by considering
the probability of default of counterparties. The Group also takes into
account forward-looking information to reflect the debtors’ probability
of default under the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate.

BFMHERRELZBRURS D /I
& REE—K HEREHARRP
(TABITERESER - FEMALH
XA ERE - ERRNEENRBIER
HINER - REFRERFRESRHE
o BEAS R B ESIN A REEN KR
mEABAREHER  BRFRERBHER
K- —REBEAFREPEHENERER
Mo 2REKL - BERRTR < BfE
IR EERE RHETRBZEEBRZY
FEOOAREMEST - FARETEEHEZ
BRIEMEE B ARREBAEZRIBERT
MR AP R A R BRI IR O TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking (continued)

Analysis of the gross carrying amount by the Group's internal credit rating

REMBERRME

24, BERPELLEEZEYERR(H)
BRASBNBEEFRARFRDBE D 2

and year end classification: REQESNWT
As at 31 December 2022 202212 A31H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E1RER E2RER EIRER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
; FEx BT THER
Internal rating grade MEME BT AR
Excellent ke - - -
Good R1F - - -
Fair —#& - 737,182 737,182
- 737,182 737,182

As at 31 December 2021

M2021512831H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
2R F3IEER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TRET TET TET

Internal rating grade NEEETR
Excellent HE - - -
Good REF - - -
Fair —K - 737,573 737,573
- 737,573 737,573

25. Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets

Prepayments TR
Deposits Ze
Right-of-return assets REREE
Other receivables Hh R AR 3K

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default and past due amounts.
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance was assessed to be

minimal.

25. FEMFRE - HttEWERAR R EMEE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
747,005 749,352
60,439 58,488
1,494 431
6,477 14,634
815,415 822,905

BEAELNEHRZUBEESIHTEE
BB 2 TEMBR T - M2022F K
202112 A31H KGN EEEE
$@/J\ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Listed equity investments, at fair value

The above equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

27. Cash And Cash Equivalents/Cash held on behalf of Clients

An analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

Cash and bank balances fﬁ/ﬁﬁ&fﬁﬁfﬂ

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of ~ FHEEIE B DR
less than three months when acquired ﬁ}ﬁﬁ;ﬁ,ﬁﬂfﬂ\

Cash and cash equivalents RekEREE

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group's subsidiaries operating in Mainland China denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to RMB328,800,000 (approximately
RMB329,830,000 (approximately
HK$404,273,000)). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange

HK$372,136,000) (2021:

business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits as at 31 December 2022 are made for
period of 1 month, and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates.
The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent

history of default.

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed banks to
hold securities and futures clients’” monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients’ monies as “Cash held
under the current assets section of the consolidated
statement of financial position and recognised the corresponding accounts
payable to the respective clients on the grounds that the Group is liable
for any loss or misappropriation of the clients’ monies. The Group is not

on behalf of clients”

allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations.

LR RE - BA

ma

26.

FEE

27.

=Rz

MBEHRRME

BAVEEFABENUKEE

2022 2021
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR TET
14,334 10,204

L R BTIHEEE MG - MO BR
BAFEEABRNUBEE -

RERERAE REFRARE
ReRFERRAE2HMMAT :

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
727,174 671,548
21,454 -
748,628 671,548
RBEHR AKREEHEAER
BIHBRANARBREMZ B
é&ﬁﬁrmﬁz ooo%AE

329 830,0007E AR ﬁ%(ﬂ74047273,ooo
BIL)) e ARETEEAREBAEREME
B R - ARYE AR BKRE 2 SNEEE A I
NAEE EERNESERT  AEEE
B BERERETINEEB 2 BRITHAR
BHAAEME -

RITBERETRRITERFRIZZEF
EEEAE o R2022F12831BHE
HEHER s EREA1EA  LIXIAE
ZEHGERFEREDA L o BITFERER
SERFMORTENBOCERZ BT

AEERFEIRITRRBIULETRS » A
TW SR RPEEPNABERELE K
5o ASEEBUHSEPTESBNES
Wﬁ%ﬁ%Wﬁﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁTZW%f
FAERS | YHRNAEEE ERPRE

AEMBASIR 2 BEMBRRAEMT
HEEPERN - ARBETAEATF A
EEARE B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28.

29.

Accounts Payable

An ageing analysis of the accounts payable at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 1 month 1TEAR
1 to 2 months 1221EA
Over 2 months Bid2 @A
Accounts payable JETBRFR

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing.

Payables arising from Securities and Futures Broking

Payables arising from securities and futures EABEBRES
broking conducted in the ordinary course RHEKILHEEZ
of business: JERTERAR

Cash clients’ Rexgp’
Margin clients* fFRER"

REMBERME

28. EREXR
RBERR  BNERBREZZEAHZE

AT -

2022 2021

HK$’'000 HK$'000

TR THET

124,911 94,199

5,347 87,105

184 -

130,442 181,304

ERERAR/RE -
29. RERHELLELZENERR

Payables arising from securities and futures broking — #F& K EELES 2 EMNER

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an
ageing analysis is not meaningful in view of the nature of such business.

* Included in the cash client accounts payable arising from dealing in securities
conducted in the ordinary course of business is an amount of approximately
HK$1,463,000 (2021: HK$3,195,000) representing those clients’ undrawn monies
placed with the Group.

*  The margin client accounts payable are repayable on demand and bear interest at
commercial rates.

2022 2021
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR THT
1,463 3,195
607 690
2,070 3,885

EERRENEEBMLESRROTER
AR A EEBERER DN -

#

BEEBEEETENTEFBEELE ZEM
BeRPEHAL1,463,000787(2021 4 ¢
3,195,000 70) BZERFPERAEER 2K
TRERGAIE o

ERNAREFEFANREREEEREZEE

ARG B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30.

Other Payables and Accruals

Accruals fEEtIRE
Contract liabilities EHEE
Refund liabilities EFRAR
Other payables Hfth JEAT AR K
Customer gold deposits EFES

Notes:

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

KB EFZATHFMAR

Short-term advances received from customers

Sale of goods BERiHE
Customer loyalty programme BEERABEE

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver jewellery and
precious metals, and amount allocated to customer loyalty programme of the
Group's retail of jewellery business. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2022 was
mainly due to the decrease in short-term advances from customer orders of goods
at the end of the year. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2021 was mainly due
to the cancellation of customer loyalty programme during that year.

Other payables are non-interest-bearing.

The Group provides gold deposit services to its customers. Under this arrangement,
customers deposit physical gold with the Group and can withdraw the same units
of gold together with a fixed amount of fee on the maturity date. The customer
gold deposits are estimated based on the fair value of gold deposits outstanding at
the end of the reporting period. The basis of estimation is reviewed on an ongoing
basis and revised where appropriate. As at 31 December 2022, gold deposits from
customers also included approximately 800 (2021: 800) taels of gold from certain
management personnel of the Group.

REMBERME

30. HitEMRMRERE

2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i sE THET FET
111,916 68,106
(a) 75,941 84,040
1,832 720
(b) 398,557 417,214
(c) 20,901 21,295
609,147 591,375
B &
@@  AHEEFEOT
At 31 December At 31 December At 1 January
2022 2021 2021
H20225 R 20215 #2021 F
12A31H 12A31H 1A1A8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET FET
75,941 84,040 95,152
- - 13,789
75,941 84,040 108,941

ANAEBRRRINRERESBRRZ
REHBEUFE  UERSEEFAEERET
EEBZEP LHE B2 28 - 2022 F
ANAERLEEARFERETFAE
BTN D - 2021 FEREERD
MNEIBRARZFRHE T RPEBES
PR

HEMENEAARE

AEBRERPREFESRE - BELE
B BEERASETAZS REHAT
EOEREN ZEETHEER - BFF
SHERREHRHBTFE 2 ATFEBEE
et o BT EESHERT - WEFEE
BEBERT - W2022412 8318 BF
BeNMBEEASEETEEABZERY
800 (20214 : 800 ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Assets BE

Cross currency swaps RX B
Liabilities afE

Bullion contracts BEEBEHN
Foreign currency forward contracts REINEES L

The bullion contracts, cross currency swaps and foreign currency forward
contracts are stated at their fair values. The above transactions involving
derivative financial instruments are conducted with reputable financial
institutions or top bullion trading companies. As at 31 December
2022, the aggregate contractual amount of the bullion contracts was
HK$289,273,000 (2021: HK$823,931,000).

In addition, the Group has entered into cross currency swaps and foreign
currency forward contracts to manage its foreign currency risk. The cross
currency swaps and foreign currency forward contracts were measured
at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value thereof
amounting to HK$3,531,000 (2021: HK$232,000) were credited (2021:
charged) to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year.

The purpose of the above contracts and swaps entered into by the Group
is to manage the Group’s commodity price risk and foreign currency risk.
Such contracts and swaps did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

REMBERME

31.

fTEEMIA

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THET

10,008 -

5,894 12,117

6,477 -

12,371 12,117

BECBAY  RXNEMIEH RPN
AREERNFEEIE . LS RITE
%R IRGTBEERITZE®
BREXTERESBESARET R
202F 128318 E2BANZAEN
HEE (8 5289,273,0008 L (2021 4 :
823,931,000/ 7T) o

;ﬁén,
H
hm
N

BEAN - REBFT R X E ¥is H R R
INESHEREIERR - ZZERXXNE
Mis i R BONE S R A FEERTA
BRitBE - FARGEBERREA
(2021 F : MR EA T EBESPNESES
3,531,0007&7T(2021 4 : 232,00087T) ©

AEBERV RO RFEREEEEAS
EzAmERERRIMNERR - ZFAHD
R NG & SR & TR IR R A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32.

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings

Current

Portion of term loans from banks

due for repayment within
one year - unsecured

Current portion of bank loans
due for repayment within
one year - unsecured

Non-current
Non-current portion of bank
loans due for repayment
within a period of:
More than one year but
less than two years
- unsecured
More than two years but
less than five years
- unsecured

ik

RERAER—FM
HMEEZ D
EHEH - AR

ma

MBEHRME

AN-EREBEERL

AN LAY
37 - BER

FRE
AT AR T
BEZBTENL
ERE I
—E5HA
PANES
- BEA
FIE HA
SREF
- BEA

32. HERTER
2022 2021

Contractual Contractual

interest interest
rate Maturity HK$'000 rate Maturity HK$'000
R HHA Thn BNHE %A TAT

% %
22-172 2023 547,358 12-16 2022 337,962
22-6.8 2023 478,805 13-37 2022 475,727
1,026,163 813,689
22-6.8 2024 395,468 13-25 2023 229,019
44-68 2025 145,293 13-22 2024 143,000
540,761 372,019
1,566,924 1,185,708

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term loans repayable
on demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of the portion of the term
loans due for repayment after one year which contain a repayment on
demand clause and that are classified as current liabilities is expected to

be settled within one year.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's banking facilities amounted
to HK$3,089,056,000 (2021: HK$2,269,384,000), of which
HK$1,566,924,000 (2021: HK$1,185,708,000) had been utilised at the

end of the reporting period.

All of the banking facilities, including bank borrowings and bullion
loans (note 33), are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to
certain of the Group's financial ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was to breach the
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
In addition, certain of the Group’s term loan agreements contain clauses
which give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate
repayment at any time, irrespective of whether the Group has complied

with the covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

ARRITER(BRREREELEHE
o) TR B ARSI - REBLER —4F
RIMEEABSHEREEBRIRIE
RRBAE B ERRAMR—FAE

18 -

M2022F 128318 REBZRTE
& % 43,089,056,0005 7T(20214 :
2,269,384,0008 L) - RBREHREH
B H f11,566,924,00078 sT(20214
1,185,708,0007& 7T °

RAERTEE(BRERITERRESER
B(ME33))AXERTAETHHL
X ERANESHMBBIVLIEER
2o MAKEERGS - FIRREESA
REREE - WO AEBZETERE
ek B & 4a T IR AR 2B I5RE
B 2RV AVER IR TwARERE
EETHERETREENAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings (continued)

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants for
all the outstanding bank borrowings and bullion loans. Accordingly, the
Group does not consider it is probable that the bank will exercise its
discretion to demand repayment so long as the Group continues to meet
these requirements. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 43(a) to the consolidated financial statements. As
at 31 December 2022 and 2021, none of the covenants relating to drawn

down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of the bank loans at the end of the reporting period

are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar BT
United States dollar eI
Renminbi AR

=k

New Taiwan dollar

33. Bullion Loans

Bullion loans — unsecured

Bullion trading facilities BEeBR5EE
Contractual interest rate & HFI=
Original maturity JREHA

The amounts represented borrowings from banks or top bullion trading

companies and the amounts payable are pegged with bullion prices.

Certain of the bullion loan facilities are subject to fulfilment of covenants
under the Group's banking facilities. Details of which are disclosed in note

32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Bullion loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuation of
bullion prices on bullion inventories. However, the criteria for hedge
accounting were not fully met. Bullion loans were designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as they are managed and their
performance are evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management and investment strategy, and information
about the bullion loans is provided on that basis to the Group's key

management personnel.

ESBEE - SEM

REMBERRME

32. FERTERE)

AEERFEAERBRITERRECERE
ETHERHETZERRZER - Bt
AEERAERBEEETZSHTE BT
BReTEENEREEREEER - 56
AEFEERDECRR 2 E—TFEH
R A SRR 43(a) ° N20224F K
201F 128318 AEBTEERE
BEBEEZHE -

RITEFNRERRREAEATIES
RE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
1,380,810 1,147,746
73,756 -
67,908 -
44,450 37,962
1,566,924 1,185,708
33. HEEfEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR THET
3,073,102 2,029,588
5,683,173 4,148,325

0.8% -6.3%
1-8 months A

0.8% - 3.8%
1 - 7 months A

ZHRBERBTRERICBE S AR
B MENRERESBEREE -

AETESBREERABNAAKERITE
Ezm#E SFEREEMBERRMES2

B -

BEARTREERNAREESEERK
PHECBEELVE - A KRR
MEHhastRE Gt - ENESEE
ETREBRERREREMRERBE QY
BEEEEENLERR  WEEERK
NFEEFABZOMBEEE - MABZ
FEEREEZEMDRAREERIE
BrXEEBABRME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

MBEHRRME

33. Bullion Loans (continued) 33. ELBREEE)
The carrying amounts of the bullion loans at the end of the reporting ZEECBREENREBRZEREENT
period are denominated in the following currencies: Y| G AR
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Renminbi AR 1,944,711 1,265,196
United States dollar Ey 1,128,391 764,392
3,073,102 2,029,588
34. Deferred Tax 34. EEHE
Losses
available for
offsetting Depreciation
against Impairment  allowance
Decelerated future  Impairment of in excess of
Lease tax taxable  of accounts ~ right-of-use related  Withholding
liabilities ~ depreciation profits  receivable assets  depreciation taxes Others Total
TEHRK
FRBER El BRE WERHE
HESE HERERE ZE# BRAE EENE RUAENE BRH it At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000
T Tén T Tén T Thn Thr Thn ThR
Gross deferred tax assets/ 1020211418
(iabiltes) LERLREEE/
at 1 January 2021 (Bf)eE 11,298 12,569 21,448 2,614 27,979 (34:834)  (288323) 16787 (230462)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ERRMFABRR
to the consolidated HA/ Rz
statement of profitor loss  EERE
during the year 1,169 (702) (20,234) 24,953 (19,178) (547) (42,383) (10,427) (67,309)
Exchange realignment EHAE 383 9% 6 431 - (66) - 346 1,246
Gross deferred tax assets/ 12021512 A318
(liabilities) at 31 December R 2022%1A18
2001and 1 January 2002 ZERREAE/
(BE)aE 12,850 11,963 1,220 28,048 8,801 (35,447) (330,666) 6,706 (296,525)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) £MiMRA BAR
to the consolidated A/ (k)2
statement of profitor loss ~ EERE
during the year 87 (112) Al (9,664) (8,486) 1,079 (1,174) 20,640 240
Exchange realignment R (934) (249) - (1,868) - 182 - (1,117 (3,986)
Gross deferred tax assets/ 1202212 8318
(iabilites) LERBAER/
at 31 December 2022 (BR)ER 12,003 11,602 1,291 16,516 315 (34,186) (331,840) 26,229 (298,070)

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 166 ANNUAL REPORT 2022
AEESEBEBRAERAF

2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34,

Deferred Tax (continued)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset in the statement of financial position. The following is an
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial reporting
purposes:
Net deferred tax assets recognised in RAMBHARE

the consolidated statement of financial position RZBELEHIBFEE
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in TAEMBEARRERSP

the consolidated statement of financial position BRAZELERIEFEE

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$704,810,000
(2021: HK$628,683,000), Mainland China of HK$55,727,000 (2021:
HK$42,349,000) and Macau of HK$15,543,000 (2021: HK$5,242,000).
The tax losses arising in Hong Kong are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the tax losses
arose, whilst those arising in Mainland China and Macau will expire in five
years and three years, respectively, for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses of HK$768,261,000 (2021: HK$668,886,000) as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is uncertain
whether taxable profit will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the People’s Republic of China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group's subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China, the
applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

ma

34,

MBEHRME

FIEDIR ()

RERGIH - FLRTEHAEEMEED
ERBRRKRDPEHE - KT RAEEET
WIBHESR DN - WHBTBREZA

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
68,244 71,209
(366,314) (367,734)
(298,070) (296,525)

AEEREEE L2 R OAE B

A704,810,000/87L(2021 4
628,683,000/ ) WP B KEEAE
2 i T 5 18 A55,727,000% (2021

00
F 142,349,000 L) R BRMELZ
i 18 &5 18 /515,543,000 7£(2021 4
5,242,000 87L) c RBEBEEZREE
BRI ERHAEREZSELERBERD
B ZRRERTRF - M B RER
BAEEZHEEBEESSIRAFER=
FREM EETEBEKERRES
Bafl e AR EEBIREBEE —
BEMZHBAR AR REEER
CHERB A TERREBEEE
# I 4% 5£768,261,00078 7T (2021 4F -
668,886,000 % 7T ) H It & B B R E T
MIBEE °

RERBESEMESEE - RPEARILR
B 2 INERECERMINBREEES
ER B AR 10% BURTEIRSE o LR E M
2008 1 A1 BB AR - I A 72007
F12 831 BEZ&EF o 1A BIARE SN
BEEEMERLEERIAREEBT
Al e ARENBRTERE - iAEE
R EARLMBEK I ZHBRARME
BAREAES%H10% - it - NEE
BEEHZENPEAR LB 2K
BARMN2008F1 A1 BRESEZHEF
BT iR 2 B BB FE IR R

ADAIMERIER 2RO RAE
B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35.

36.

Share Capital

Authorised:
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.25 each

Issued and fully paid:
677,434,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.25 each

35.

SETE
1,000,000,000 & & A% &
0.2587T 2 Bk

BETRER
677,434,000 R SR EE
0.25B L2 LBk

ma

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 11 June
2020 (the “Adoption Date”).

A summary of the principal terms of the Scheme is set out below:

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to Eligible
Participants (as defined below) who have contributed or may contribute to
the Group and to enable the Group to attract and retain employees and
other personnel that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which
the Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer
to grant an option to subscribe for the shares of the Company subject to
such conditions as it may think fit to the following persons (the “Eligible
Participants”):

any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including
any executive director but not any non-executive director) of the

any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any individual acting in his capacity as an adviser or a consultant that
provides research, development or other support or advice to the

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of securities issued by any member of the Group or any

a.
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;
b.
C.
Group or any Invested Entity;
d.
Invested Entity; and
e.

any distributor, contractor, customer, supplier, agent, business
partner, joint venture business partner, promoter and service provider
to the Group or any Invested Entity whom the Directors consider, in
their sole discretion, has contributed or may contribute to the Group
and any Invested Entity.

36.

MBEHRME
R
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
250,000 250,000
169,359 169,359
L-gie B

RNAEBER2020F6 A1 B H A
B ) iR R T8I ([ 35181 )) -

Zt BN E R EFHEETIMT -

Zat Bl 5 E Y AKE L BRI A REE
HEBZAER2BAERR T30MH

BEINEE  AREAREERERSLIRE
HARERASERBEABREZEAE
RBIREERAFEEZERREMA

BEZHE EFSAERARCENER
REERET - T2ERBERANTALIE
BR2EADRHBRENED  ARB
ARABeD

a. ARA - AEFEHELRSEMEKE
ERMNEREE(TRmAZBARE
EE BREMATES  BETEE
ERFFRITES)

b. AAR - HAEMMERRFEMEE
ERNEMFNTES(BRBULFE
BITER)

¢ ERBREHEAA  RAEBRER
RERRREHRART  ARSEMI
FEZNEMAL

mo

\

d. AEEEMKERRREMRETRE
AR - HAREE IR E AR
SEMBREBRAEITZERZEM
BAAN K

e. EE2RENBEARCEAARLY
AEEREMREERBAELR
ZAEESEAREBRNENDH
B AERE - BP - ftER - KR
XBRN  REXBEH  HERR
FREpLrER o

Ty HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the total
number of the Company’s shares in issue as at the Adoption Date (such
total number of issued shares being 677,434,000 shares). As at the date
of approval of these financial statements, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme is 67,743,400 shares, representing

10% of the shares in issue.

The total number of the Company’s shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each Eligible Participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of total number of shares of the Company in issue. Any
further grant of options in excess of the 1% limit shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval in general meeting with such Eligible Participant
and his close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or his associate
(as defined in the Listing Rules), if the Eligible Participant is a connected

person (as defined in the Listing Rules), abstaining from voting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period commencing on such date on or after the date
on which the option is granted as the Board may determine in granting
the option and expiring at the close of business on such date as the Board
may determine in granting the option but in any event shall not exceed
10 years from the date of grant (which is the date of offer of grant if the

offer for the grant of the option is accepted).

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable

on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board provided
always that it shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately

preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

Subject to the termination provisions set out in the Scheme, the Scheme
shall be valid for a period of 10 years commencing from the Adoption

Date.

No share option has been granted under the Scheme since the Adoption

Date.

37. Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 84 and 85 of the consolidated financial

statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for wholly-foreign-invested
enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries which
are established in the People’s Republic of China has been transferred to

reserve funds which are restricted as to use.

ma

36.

37.

MBEHRME

RS EI(4)

RIEZE R A E BRI SR
2 BREREEITERN TET AR
BipaE - & HETBRBBARDRNEAE
H2 BT BB 10% (ZBETH
n 85 677,434,000 %) o R ZRET % 4R
RALEBE - RIBZETEI A BTG
B B67,743,4000% - BB BITRH M
10% °

BERAERBDEANEM 12 AR
itz B ( BB T8 R R TTELH S
) TIATEB BT REETZAR
AR RE - MEEBADACSHITRN
BEN1% - WE—FREBRENHE
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BEAEER LR K (HZEER
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BERRBZATEIRAZATE - NEE
SR HBLIER  RERH BEREE A
FEKAFRATE  EEESSRLB
RS BORTE 2 B HE R A8 R JE
w o ERNERERT - mREEREEE
(BMRHFE L BREZOER - M&BR
REDRERZ)EFTABBI0F -

REBRENZNARRHIZEN AH
(BREZA)EF30H NEESR - ZREK
HRBRENRLAZ1.00/87T -

BRENTEERESSETE  H%ITHE
BAZLRTIRENRRE : ()RDE
£ B E A T B (AR X AT 3R At
ERE) ()R ERRE S B AR5 @
EISER RSl Gl ACN G T 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 38. #&&
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from (a)
operations
Note
BT
Profit/(loss) before tax: BRELADER(EHE) :
From continuing operations REBEEEER
From the discontinued operation RER | HEEER 13
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs HBER
Finance income BIIEUA
Dividend income from listed ERRE 7 RN
investments 6
Dividend income from unlisted FLETREZREBA
investments 6
Net loss on disposal of items of HEME  #ERREER
property, plant and equipment FIEE
Net gain on disposal of derivative HEMTEERT AT K
financial instruments 7
Written off of intangible assets A EMH 19
Net loss/(gain) on bullion loans EEARATEBEEAE
designated as at fair value through ZESBRERIER/(KH)
profit or loss 7
Net fair value gain on investment REME 2 R TREFRE
properties 6
Net fair value loss/(gain) on bullion BEREATEEIERE
loans designated as at fair value ZESBEENATEA
through profit or loss /%ESTQ/(” i) 6
Net fair value gain on financial assets BRATEEABENMBEAE
at fair value through profit or loss Z NFEEF RS 6
Net fair value loss/(gain) on derivative TESMIAZA ?Ffﬁ%‘
financial instruments — transactions Eﬂﬁ/(qﬁlﬁn SEapa
not qualifying as hedges EBRLRS 6
Covid-19-related rent concessions HAAL TR 2019EBHREES
from lessors Bz e ZR 18(b)
Gain on termination of leases BIERE 2 W 18(0)
Loss on remeasurement of leases STEHEZBE 18(c)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - MBRREZINE
equipment 16
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREAECITE 18(a)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of — EUERFURECRERER) - FE
accounts receivable, net 23
Impairment of receivables arising from é’c*%&ﬁﬂf‘f@ﬁ%iz%u&ﬁ%?&
securities and futures broking (B 24
Write-down of inventories to net }Miﬁf S Z A FEE
realisable value 7

Increase in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in accounts
receivable

Decrease in receivables arising from
securities and futures broking

Increase in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets

Decrease in cash held on behalf of
clients

Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable

Decrease in payables arising from
securities and futures broking

Changes in derivative financial
instruments

Increase/(decrease) in other payables
and accruals

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

T»{b
FEHWETAZ/DE’J /()

L N
ﬁﬁﬂﬁ 4 P B S E A
BEZEM
KREFRERSZAD
R0,/ CR >
JX%%H]Hi%%«%E}XEZTE’ﬁEE%(
HESRTAZS

4T SR A E
PG DS

wems/ (R 2B

REMBERRME

e R M

ERAELEMBREZHE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAT
592,764 1,005,711
(34,039) (100,309)
81,860 63,550
(13,343) (24,823)
(25,888) (30,889)
(637) (888)
6,607 5,025
(12,416) (20,407)
- 271
138,560 (17,276)
(28) (1,364)
121,116 (16,025)
(336) (570)
(9,284) 4,947
(15,527) (14,901)
(3,905) (6,390)
526 =
333,307 310,648
537,270 505,488
(38,655) 60,726
30,889 92,907
6,149 10,661
1,694,990 1,826,092
(1,162,809) (2,442,113)
(113,035) 16,522
391 410,844
(31,161) (300,475)
1,815 481,404
(108,253) 72,043
(1,815) (571,167)
12,416 20,407
(75,411) 80,874
217,128 (405,569)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDI

AEESEEEBRERA

38. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 38. MAHEEHREXRME(E)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities: (b) BMEETBHELEZ2EEEH:
2022
Interest-
bearing
bank Lease Bullion
borrowings liabilities loans
TERTER HEaE ELBRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT
At 1 January 2022 202241718 1,185,708 907,220 2,029,588
Changes from financing cash flow ~ BEBLHEEF 387,479 (544,051) 903,951
New leases Mg = 733,233 =
Foreign exchange movement HNEE £ (6,263) (40,522) (120,113)
Interest expense FMERX - 40,377 -
Interest paid classified as NERRERERE
operating cash flows HEAFE = (40,377) =
Termination of leases mIEEE - (49,610) =
Remeasurement of leases BHEHE = (7,758) =
Covid-19-related rent concessions A% F#1 2019 F ik
from lessors RSB EEER - (15,527) =
Net loss on bullion loans designated 8 BZ A FEELE
as at fair value through profit REZESBEE
or loss FER - = 138,560
Net fair value loss on bullion loans  #EEAEAFEEE
designated as at fair value RECESBEEN
through profit or loss ATEREFEE = = 121,116
At 31 December 2022 R2022F 128318 1,566,924 982,985 3,073,102

e

Al
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38.

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

(b)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

(continued)
2021

At 1 January 2021

Changes from financing cash flow

New leases

Foreign exchange movement

Interest expense

Interest paid classified as
operating cash flows

Termination of leases

Covid-19-related rent concessions

from lessors

Net gain on bullion loans
designated as at fair value

through profit or loss

Net fair value gain on bullion loans
designated as at fair value through

profit or loss

At 31 December 2021

®2021%1A1H
BERSREEE
HHE

INEEE)

FERAZ
NERRERERE
HEMHFIE
RIFHRE
AL T8 2019 78k
RERBZASER
BT BRATEETE
BEVESBEE
FE
BEARRATEETE
BEZESEBEEN
NEEEFRE

R2021%12A31H

REMBERME

38. SEREREBRMEE(E)
(b) REFHELZEE2E: (H)

Interest-
bearing
bank
borrowings
Interest- arising from
bearing securities
bank and futures Lease Bullion
borrowings broking liabilities loans
&7
HEgLES
| zite |
FARBITER RITER HEARE ELBER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET TET T
899,929 180,000 1,001,162 1,002,135
285,131 (180,000) (606,738) 1,032,725
- - 587,687 -
648 = 12,435 28,029
- - 41,662 -
— = (41,662) -
- - (72,425) =
= = (14,901) =
- - - (17,276)
- - - (16,025)
1,185,708 - 907,220 2,029,588

BEESBEBEBRARRASA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

(c)

(d)

Total cash outflows for leases

The total cash outflows for leases included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows is as follows:

Within operating activities KEEEBN
Within financing activities MEEEA

Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$754,872,000
(2021: HK$601,789,000) and HK$733,233,000 (2021:
HK$587,687,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for buildings.

(i) During the year, the Group received listed shares classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$3,933,000 (2021: Nil) as partial settlement of accounts
receivable.

39. Commitments

(a)

(b)

The Group had the following capital commitments for the property,
plant and equipment at the end of the reporting period:

EEIFORREVS 3

Contracted, but not provided for

The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet commenced
as at 31 December 2022. The future lease payments for these
non-cancellable lease contracts are HK$33,003,000 (2021:
HK$44,120,000) due within one year and HK$69,442,000 (2021:
HK$156,427,000) due in the second to fifth years, inclusive. As
at 31 December 2021, the Group also had future lease payments
for non-cancellable lease contracts of HK$6,964,000 due after five
years.

REMBERRME

38. SERSREBRMEE(E)

(c)

(d)

(b)

HER SR HAE

AAEARERERNEER SR
AT

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT FET
806,022 953,707
544,051 606,738
1,350,073 1,560,445

TEFRERS

i)y FR AEEREFHE
THNFERAREERMEE
BENFERSEND A
754,872,000 7T (2021
#:601,789,00087T) &
733,233,000/8 (2021
F 1 587,687,000587T) °

iy & R XN & B I 3
3,933,000 L&y E TR 1H
(2021 : TET)  £F
BB AERATEER
AERNMBEE - ERE
WD 4EE -

AEBPNBERARNDE - Rz R

REEAREWT -
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$°000
TET THET
16,899 11,544

MN2022% 128318 X"&EB A
HMARBNSERESY - 25
THHHEAEANMARBER
18 433,003,000 7C(2021 4 :
44,120,000 7T ) X — F R 3
Hi . 69,442,000/ JT(20214F :
156,427,000 T ) R E & F
IF(EEEREME)IE - 52
2021128318 "AEERRF
BEEHO T REEES KRR
FHER 746,964,000 T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

40. Connected and Related Party Transactions 4. BEALRZ
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (a) KREREGEMBREREMIHF
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following 2R NREBNFERNERGE
material transactions with connected and/or related parties during ATEERBE ZGFETUTE
the year at mutually agreed terms: AR5
Nature of transactions Relationship 2022 2021
RH5ME B& HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHT
Lease payments for the lease of a retail shop  Certain Directors who have beneficial
interests in the property
HETEEHZHERT ETESNZYFHREEwER 3,300 3,300
Lease payments for the short-term lease of A related company in which a Director
quarters of a Director has beneficial interests
HEEEFEE v RBHE L BEFE —REERBEnEm BB 900 900
Consultancy expenses for the provision of A related company in which family
image consultancy services to the Group members of two Directors have
beneficial interests
mAEEREPREN RS2 ERRE ﬁ%i%Z%ﬁ%ﬁXﬁ!ﬁﬁ?Ef =
pd: ) 1,507 1,038
All of the above related party transactions also constitute continuing FmBBEATRZMEK LTHEA
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing %JFEAEFWQEZTH‘“WL 25 o b
Rules. The above transactions are exempted from the reporting, RHRE ETRAE 14A 331K ER R H
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’ W FEER AERBURRHEZR
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules. E e
(b) Emoluments of key management personnel of the Group (b) ZEEXEEEAEMS
The aggregate amount of emoluments paid and payable to key FRNERRENTFEEEEBAEZ
management personnel during the year, including the amounts paid e B BEENRERTAR
and payable to the Company's Executive Directors, is as follows: RIMITES &8 &M
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FHET
Fees wne 1,450 1,059
Salaries and allowances o REM 42,125 43,765
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable EH&JT%“HWJ\ AT 8,590 11,762
Pension scheme contributions RIKEEH SR 1,066 1,086
53,231 57,672
Further details of Directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to ;§$M§3§_5§$%ﬁ%ﬁé\ﬂﬂ%
the consolidated financial statements. WRMFES °

CHOW SANG SANG HOLD\NGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (174  ANNUAL REPORT 2022
BEESBEBEBRARRASA 2022 4 %



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41.

Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2022
Financial assets

Financial assets included in other assets

Financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Cash held on behalf of clients

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable
Payables arising from securities
and futures broking
Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals
Customer gold deposits
Derivative financial instruments
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Bullion loans
Lease liabilities

HHEE

BREAMAE JAHAE
BEARLTEEARML
SARENTBAE

FEWBR
%ﬁ&ﬁﬂmi‘%?iz

JE W BR K
BRERMNE - KK
B REMEENSB

BE
BRATEEAREN
MBEE
TEERIA
REFHASRS
REREARE

BEBaR

Fid Gt

SEEZ

ERERK
ZABER
B

7

b
£
B
it

f

@

5B
I
f 18
&

I k> S HF TN S 04> S Stk ST

i B S R SR 24 PR S A S
mﬁﬁ@%lﬂ? E‘Otﬂt%ﬁi—‘#

FEt g =4 =3 k)

REMBERRME

4. RERNIEZERMIA
REBSHR - ZER 2 &/ T AREEN
T
Financial
Financial assets
assets at fair designated
value through at fair value
profit or loss- Financial  through other
mandatorily assets at comprehensive
designated amortised  income-equity
as such cost investments Total
BAFEE ERBRAT
N L  EESAEH
HHEE - REERA 2EUERN
BEHIEE Gkt MBEE - .
RULER BHEE BRHERE CX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER ThR
- 202,499 - 202,499
- - 1,158,816 1,158,816
- 818,472 - 818,472
= 123,642 — 123,642
- 66,916 - 66,916
14,334 - - 14,334
10,008 - - 10,008
- 2,070 - 2,070
- 748,628 - 748,628
24,342 1,962,227 1,158,816 3,145,385
Financial liabilities at
fair value through
érofit or loss
AFEETA
BENEKEE
Designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial Held for amortised
recognition trading _ cost Total
RREZE T BRERALE -
RERLER BIFEE ZBBaE EX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER ThR
- - 130,442 130,442
- - 2,070 2,070
— — 448,482 448,482
20,901 - - 20,901
— 12,371 - 12,371
- - 1,566,924 1,566,924
3,073,102 - = 3,073,102
- - 982,985 982,985
3,094,003 12,371 3,130,903 6,237,277
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (176
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41.  Financial Instruments by Category (continued) 41. RERSEZERMIA(E)
2021
Financial assets B®EE
Financial
Financial assets
assets at fair designated
value through at fair value
profit or loss- Financial through other
mandatorily assets at  comprehensive
designated amortised income-equity
as such cost investments Total
BATEE BERBRAT
FTABER {BEE AL
HBEE - REERA 2EYEN
BHlEE Bl E) HBEE -
AR HKEE RHRE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT T
Financial assets included in other assets BREEMEE MBEE - 223272 = 223272
Financial assets designated at fair value BERRATEB AR
through other comprehensive income 2ENENIBEE = = 1,551,449 1,551,449
Accounts receivable FEUER - 804,334 - 804,334
Receivables arising from securities ERRHEREEEY
and futures broking R - 154,922 - 154,922
Financial assets included in BELBMATE - EffEl
prepayments, other receivables ERRAMEENTS
and other assets BE = 73,122 = 73,122
Financial assets at fair value through BATEETABREN
profit or loss HBEE 10,204 = = 10,204
Cash held on behalf of clients REPHERS - 3,885 - 3,885
Cash and cash equivalents RehERBES - 671,548 - 671,548
10,204 1,931,083 1,551,449 3,492,736
Financial liabilities BEEE
Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
BATEEA
Bana%aR
Designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial Held for amortised
recognition trading cost Total
I IRRER R REHRAAE
BEALER FFEE ZHBaR CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TR
Accounts payable FEfTRIR - - 181,304 181,304
Payables arising from securities EERHEREEEL
and futures broking FERERR = = 3,885 3,885
Financial liabilities included in other BREEMENERR
payables and accruals [EsIAER 2 BB E = = 385,438 385,438
Customer gold deposits XPEE 21,295 - - 21,295
Derivative financial instruments {TESMIA - 12,117 - 12,117
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STERTER = = 1,185,708 1,185,708
Bullion loans EERREE 2,029,588 - - 2,029,588
Lease liabilities MEER - - 907,220 907,220
2,050,883 12,117 2,663,555 4,726,555
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the Group’s

financial assets and liabilities approximated to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of accounts receivable,
receivables arising from securities and futures broking, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, cash held on
behalf of clients, cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, payables
arising from securities and futures broking, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, customer gold deposits and bank borrowings
due for repayment within one year approximate to their carrying amounts

largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the

fair values:

The fair values of other assets and bank borrowings due for repayment
after one year approximate to their carrying amounts, which have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group's
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings, bullion
loans and customer gold deposits as at 31 December 2022 were assessed

to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices. The fair values of the unlisted equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income have been estimated using
the income capitalisation method and asset-based method. The valuation
requires the management to make estimate about the capitalisation rates.
Management believes that the estimated fair value resulting from the
valuation technique, which is recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position, and the related change in fair value, which is recorded
in other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they were the

most appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The fair value of bullion loans and customer gold deposits is based on

open market prices of bullion.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with reputable
financial institutions or top bullion trading companies. As at 31 December
2022, derivative financial instruments represented bullion contracts,
foreign currency forward contracts and cross currency swaps which are
measured based on bullion market prices, forward pricing and swap
pricing, respectively (2021: bullion contracts which were measured based
on bullion market price). The carrying amounts of the bullion contracts,
foreign currency forward contracts and cross currency swaps are the same

as their fair values.

ma

42,
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AEEEEERFZSHRBRBRES
BESRRFIUTESRBT A - 12022
F12ANB  TEERTEEELES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable input to the
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity

analysis:
Valuation
technique
fRER M
As at 31 December 2022
®2022512A31H
Unlisted equity investments Income
designated at fair value capitalisation
through other comprehensive method
income
HEERZRATEEAEM WAE R E

FERENIF EMROHEE

Asset-based method

EEERZE

As at 31 December 2021

R2021512A318

Unlisted equity investments Income
designated at fair value capitalisation
through other comprehensive method
income

EERERATFEEARM WABARLE

FEBREHNIF EHRHEE

Asset-based method
BEERE

Significant
unobservable input

BEABUBEYE

Capitalisation rate

ERMcR

N/A
TER

Capitalisation rate

BAi R

N/A
TER

REMBERRME

42,

TRMIAZAVEERAVEESR(E)

TEIHAERTIAGEZERBEUNEE
BEREERECHREN -

Range

gE

3.8% to

43%

3.8% %
4.3%

N/A

NER

3.8% to

4.5%

3.8% %
4.5%

N/A
TEA

Sensitivity of
the input to fair value

FEHAVEEZRRE

1% increase/decrease in
capitalisation rate would
result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$199,000
B R,

D 1% B EH AT
EBERYD#1h0199,000 % T

N/A
TEA

1% increase/decrease in
capitalisation rate would
result in decrease/increase

in fair value by HK$193,000
EAR{pLRE N,

B 1% BEHATF

{BER D,/ H0193,000 57T

N/A
TER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2022

Financial assets designated at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 December 2021

Financial assets designated at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDIN

R2022%12A31R8

RERRDFERA
Hi 2R %
BE

BAYFEEFARZN
MBEE

TESRIE

M2021512A31H

e BRRYFERA
Hi 2R %

BRFEEFARZN
MBEE

k& @&

IR AR

REMBERRME

42, @MIAZAVEERAFEESR(E)

APEEER

TR2AEESMTAY ATRE}2
24 -

BAVEEHECEE:

Fair value measurement using

RANTEE 2D EETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERH S EAATRE EARUBE
HE £ g5
(& 51) (#RA12) (& R13) EH)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TET
1,121,797 - 37,019 1,158,816
14,334 - - 14,334
- 10,008 - 10,008
1,136,131 10,008 37,019 1,183,158
1,515,025 - 36,424 1,551,449
10,204 - - 10,204
1,525,229 - 36,424 1,561,653
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments 42,

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the year are

as follows:

Financial assets designated at fair value through

other comprehensive income:
At 1 January

Total gain recognised in other comprehensive

income

At 31 December

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2022

Bullion loans
Derivative financial instruments
Customer gold deposits

As at 31 December 2021

Bullion loans
Derivative financial instruments
Customer gold deposits

ma

MBEHRRME

TRIAZAVEERAVEESR(E)

APEESER(E)
FABBIIZAFHEEFELENT

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx FHT
EEREATEESARM
FERENTHEE
®n1A1A8 36,424 32,193
REMEEBEFERZ
Wi 458 595 4,231
®12A318 37,019 36,424
BEATEEFEZAE
Fair value measurement using
BHUTEE 2 AL EEFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERMIE BAUBE EBEAHUEER
HE £ g
(&A1) (#R5A12) (&R 513) it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR THT
M2022%12831H
ELBIEE 3,073,102 = - 3,073,102
TEERMIA - 12,371 - 12,371
XFGE& 20,901 - - 20,901
3,094,003 12,371 - 3,106,374
M2021%E12831H
ESBIEE 2,029,588 = = 2,029,588
TESmIA - 12,117 - 12,117
XPiEe 21,295 - - 21,295
2,050,883 12,117 - 2,063,000

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities.

FR BBEERMBAE AR LR
B2 cRYERTFEEFEEY  TEE
AHELARR3 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
borrowings, and cash and bank deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
accounts receivable and accounts payable, which arise directly from
its operations.

The Group’'s overall risk management policies focus on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to reduce potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by management under the policies
approved by the Board and it identifies, evaluates and monitors
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating
units.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
equity price risk and commodity price risk. The Board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
detailed below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings with floating
interest rates.

For Hong Kong dollar and United States dollar floating-rate
borrowings, assuming that the amount of liabilities outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year, a 50-basis point increase/decrease in interest rates at 31
December 2022 and 2021 would have decreased/increased the
Group's profit before tax by HK$5,886,000 and HK$4,385,000,
respectively. The sensitivity to the interest rate used is considered
reasonable, with all other variables held constant and before any
impact on tax.

The Group's policy is to obtain the most favorable interest rates
available without increasing its foreign currency exposures. In
addition, the Group monitors the level of interest rate exposure and
considers utilising hedging instruments should the need arise.

REMBERME

43. MEERERRRRBE

(a)

BREBREE

AREZIRERMTABRERTE
FERERRITER - HELH
TAZTERZDRAEE X
E88% - AREBE THMUTE
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{20 FE M BR TR B FE A9 R X o

AEBERAREERRIHE
ﬂm%Z%uﬁMHvﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HAE BB ERIRER 2 BETF
YE-BEREENHEEBRES
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REB7LBEEMNBERAE  AH
%*ﬂﬁ&%?%%@ﬁo

AEESRTAMEL 2T E2ARE
RAERR SIERR  FER
% RPETER - RiDEBER
LERERER EZSRHYMA
2TX%#L EEEENTRRZ
I

FI &R
AEBRTSMNEEB AT 2R
pIERAEBLIHIEFELZ
RITEFEMR -

RABTRETZBFNEERME -
BN REHRERZAEEETD
REEEEZR - FER20224F
%2021 12 A31 B &,/ 5
SO0MEE2Z - # 5 BlE D /% A
& BB B AT £ 5,886,000 8 7T &
4,385,000 70 ° fEFTA E & 8
BETE T ATAREYEZR 2
BRT  REBRAYFAFEZ
HRETVEEE -

S B 2 BRSNS INELSNE R
IR T FREE M o prsh -
AEEERNEREBAGERFE - R0
FEREERALEHTA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly arising from
sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than the
units’ functional currency. Management conducted periodical review
of exposures and requirements of various currencies, and used cross
currency swaps and foreign currency forward contracts to manage
certain of its foreign currency exposures on significant and recurring
future commercial transactions. Hedging is only considered for firm
commitments.

The Group's assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollar, Renminbi and United States dollar. Currency risk is
managed by partly financing non-Hong Kong dollar assets with
loans denominated in the relevant currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the Renminbi
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
profit before tax arising from Renminbi denominated financial
instruments and the Group's equity.

2022

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens {5 7T 5 AR #8255
against the Renminbi

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens {7 7t 5 A R g
against the Renminbi

2021
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens — flfi& 7t 5 AR #EE55
against the Renminbi

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens {7t 5 A R # h1ag
against the Renminbi

REMBERRME

43,

BRERERBERBER)

(a)

Increase/
(decrease)

Renminbi rate

ARBER

#m,/ (ML)

%

(5)

M EBEE (5

SNEE R

FEBZRHGERERTEREE
BEMAEI &I 2 B
AZEE - EEERTRAEE MR
S REBEIT TSR AR
N EBEHRRPINESNEREH
BEAREEHERRBAERSGZET
%%E@°$%E@ﬁ%$%%ﬁ
TTHH o

AEBCEERABIZNET
AREEETREN - ERIMER
BITERUIMNEER BT LIERT
BEETHORE -

TRETRALME S G2
ZBERT  AEERRSHR 2K
BAEF (R ARSHENSRT
REL) RAKENESHARK
EXAERIEEE)  BURE

Increase/

(decrease) Increase/
in profit (decrease)
before tax in equity
BRBE AT R RS,
#,/ Gr) (R2)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FTExT
2,639 370,452
(2,639) (370,452)
1,634 393,211
(1,634) (393,211)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The accounts receivable and receivables arising from securities and
futures broking represent the Group’s major exposure to the credit
risk arising from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these financial assets in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group's retail
sales of jewellery and watches and the transactions completed on
e-commerce platform are usually transacted on a cash basis, via
popular credit cards or through reputable and dispersed department
stores and online sales platforms. The Group’s credit sales to
corporate clients and wholesale customers are generally on credit
terms within 60 days. The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk with respect to its retail business as it has a large
number of diversified customers. For accounts receivable arising
from the wholesale of diamonds and precious metals, the Group
trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties and
bullion banks. The Group's receivables from margin clients arising
from the ordinary course of business of dealing in securities are
secured by the underlying collaterals. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has its credit
control policy to minimise the credit risk. In addition, all receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and overdue balances
are followed up by senior management.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

REMBERME
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(a)

BREBEE ()

ERER
BURRFRESMAEREELZ
FEAER I ARERNRZ HEF T
BOMEAZIEERERAR &5
RBRRENGEE MBRART UL F
PBEECKREE ~NEECKE
FEGETEHEREFHET AN
TR ZBENRE  BBER
ERRIBEREBRE AN A
ERAIRMEHEFRRTRS -
AEERCERP R ERPHET
ZEEHE—RK0BAZRE
T - ARTEXRBRARED
BEP  BIBSAETZEER
o pEANECBHEEL R
Wik AEEEBEERANEE
BrE=ERSHENR D - IK
BREERERTEAEBREL L
AR E P RIUABRIC 7 E
R o AR E BHE R YURR
R BRI WRB R BB
RIAREEERR - 15 - AR
WERRERIOZHEER - BHs
HBERREERABRME -

REEBRRFRD GRS

TERBEAEENESEBCR @ 55
EEEERESEERRE  BRIEE
BRBAKARENEESEME
£ BATRIBUAHER - &
R12ANBZERPBEESEA
g%o%ﬂ%i%%%ﬁé%%@
Wa(g o

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (183 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BEEESEERARRDA

2022 4 3R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

Accounts receivable*

Receivables arising from
securities and futures
broking
- Doubtful**

Financial assets included in
other assets
- Normal**

Financial assets included in
prepayments, other
receivables and other
assets
- Normal**

Cash held on behalf of
clients
- Not yet past due

Cash and cash equivalents
- Not yet past due

S
BED AR
B2 mhEs

- FRE*
BREAMERY
BBAE

_ E%‘w*
BRERMNFE -
At RBER R

EMEENMHEE

- Eg
KEPHERS
i
BERFAES
- BE8
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43. HEEREEAERBKE(E)
(a) BBEBREZ(E)
EEERE (&)
REERRFERD GRS (E)
®2022%F12HA31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECL
1218 A ?E_,Hﬁ )
REFR ERENEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
RN F1RR BIRR Bl r% &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER THER THR
- - - 875,695 875,695
- - 737,182 - 737,182
202,499 - - - 202,499
66,916 - - - 66,916
2,070 - - - 2,070
748,628 - - - 748,628
1,020,113 - 737,182 875,695 2,632,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

Accounts receivable*

Receivables arising from
securities and futures
broking
- Doubtful**

Financial assets included in
other assets
- Normal**

Financial assets included in
prepayments, other
receivables and other
assets
- Normal**

Cash held on behalf of
clients
- Not yet past due

Cash and cash equivalents
- Not yet past due

*  For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note

S
BEDHEELR
Bt 2wl

TR
BAERNERY
Hisaz
_ E%‘q**
BATRENIE
AR
AR AE

_ Eﬁ%‘w * %
REFRBRE
- HARS

ReREARE
- AR

23 to the consolidated financial statements.

** The credit quality of the receivables arising from securities and futures
broking, financial assets included in other assets and financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered

to be “doubtful.

REMBERME

43. HHEBREERBERBEEE)

(a) BBEBREZ(E)
/E/f?_/ﬁ B (&)
REBEBRRFERD GRS (E)
®2021%F12H31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECL
12fHA R ‘
BEFE SHBREEEHE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1[RE F2MRE F3[RE BlbnE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT TAT THEL THET
- - - 916,523 916,523
- - 737,573 - 737,573
223,272 - - - 223,272
73,122 - - - 73,122
3,885 - - - 3,885
671,548 - - - 671,548
971,827 - 737,573 916,523 2,625,923

*x

N5 B fE A AL 7 = AT A PR R AR SR A
RE - UREEEAERNER R
RERE B RKME23

WS R AL ESE 2 RRERR -
BERAMAENSBEELER R
BNHA - AthRART R LA E
M BEELRBHNE Y EERBER
HEMHEEZ FERR B TR
BABEM  AZSEMBEEZER
HERRAIER] BRI ZEHH
BEZFREERGAITHEE]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43.

REMBERRME

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued) 43. HEEREEAERBE(E)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HEEREZ(HE)
Liquidity risk B E DR
The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash AEBERTHEZESNERES
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the REBAERARWKE AKX
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash SEEFREESRENR SRS
flows. The responsibility of the Group’s treasury department is to R B ARBEEBKHBAZE
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility TEBEBERRTEEEESZHE
through the use of banking facilities in order to meet its liquidity B R EE 2 FIE T - DR
requirements both in the short term and long term. The Group EHEHERRARSHELENK - K
maintains significant flexibility to respond to opportunities and EEEBRREEDHE B AE
events by ensuring that committed credit lines are available. All EEHEE  #RHRHREELALE
debts of the Group (other than lease liabilities) as at 31 December BN EIE . 2022512 A31
2022 would mature within three years. B AEEMAEEEEARR
SR =FNEIE -
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end RBEHK - AEB 2P AER
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted BETREARTRFIEAE 2 3B
payments, is as follows: AR
2022
No fixed
terms of 1 year 2 years 5 years
repayment/ or less or less or less
repayable 3 months but over but over but over Over
on demand orless 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years Total
EEER
B4/ E% 130T 28gUT  SEIUT
EXEE AAINT E3EAML  B1ENE  E2FAL SENL At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tén T Tén T T Tén
Accounts payable FERTERR 23,785 106,657 - - - - 130,442
Payables arising from securities ~ FFRBERLEL
and futures broking EREN 2,070 - - - - - 2,070
Financial liabilties included BATEBENSNR
in other payables and accruals  [ETTEE 2B ER 132,999 315,483 - - - - 448,482
Customer gold deposits RFR4 20,901 - - - - - 20,901
Derivative financial instruments ~ FT4 2RI A - 5,894 - 6,477 - - 1231
Lease liabilities HERR - 131,646 365,300 349,740 182,967 3,640 1,033,293
Term loans subject to repayment  ZZREEEZ 2
on demand clause THER 547,358 - - - - - 547,358
Other interest-bearing bank Hthit S RITER
borrowings - 169,888 351,663 415,508 148,649 - 1,085,708
Bullion loans REBRE - 2123360 949,742 - - - 30110
721,113 2,852,928 1,666,705 711,725 331,616 3,640 6,353,727
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43.

REMBERME

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The fair values of these listed
equity investments are affected by market forces and other factors.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as financial assets designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income (note 21) and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 26) as at 31
December 2022. The Group’s listed investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and are valued
at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The
majority of the listed equity investments are held for non-trading
purposes.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the
purpose of this analysis, the impact with respect to the financial
assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
is deemed to be on the fair value reserve.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued) 43. HHEEREEAERBCR(H)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) BIREKREZE)
Liquidity risk (continued) HEEZERE(E)
2021
No fixed
terms of 1 year 2 years 5 years
repayment/ or less or less or less
repayable 3 months but over but over but over Over
on demand or less 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years Total
EfE(E
R/ BR VEGUT  253NT  SERNT
ZREE 3EAINT E3EAME  E1ENE B2ENE SEME At
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEn FAn FEn TEx Thn Fhn TEx
Accounts payable ERER 94,159 87,145 - - - = 181,304
Payables arising from securities ~ ERLAEELES Y
and futures broking EREHN 3,885 - - - - - 3,885
Financial liabilties included BAEEMERENR
in other payables and accruals  [EFTIEE ZBIBEE 141,508 243,930 - - - - 385,438
Customer gold deposits ZFRE 21,295 - - - - - 21,295
Derivative financial instruments ~ fT&£HT A - 1217 - - - - 12,117
Lease liabilities &8k = 152,145 369,817 265,198 181,213 2,173 970,546
Term loans subject to repayment  REXEREZZ
on demand clause THER 331,962 - - - - - B
Other interest-bearing bank Hfrst 8 RTER
borrowings = 135,131 354,872 235,547 144,933 = 870,483
Bullion loans AEEB[EE - 1,287,502 742,086 - - - 2009588
598,809 1,917,970 1,466,775 500,745 326,146 2,173 4,812,618
Equity price risk RERE G

B BERRERNES 2 ATE
BERBROESKERBERNEREE
HREHM TR ER - HE LM
BOBEZAFEESTHENER
HihAZFE - AEER20225F
12ANBHAERETAEAT
BEFAEBEENENTEEE
(21 REBEAFEBESAERE
BB 7% & E (KT sk 26) 2 85I A% 17
BRERMAZBRDERRE - K&
Bz EiRE R RRES
RGFTE™ » UREBRATRME
FHE - KEBH EMRMITE TIEE
FEER®R -

TRERERBERR 2 REE
8 RAEEMEHTE R AL
ARBET ZRERMNETELNTEER
B10%EH 2 HRE - RADMN
ME  WEEREATEETAR
EERENHBEEZ AETE
gﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ@i@ﬁﬁﬁ%\%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

43. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued) 43, BHEEREEEERBK(E)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) BIREREZE)
Equity price risk (continued) R EEEE(E)
Carrying Increase/
amount decrease Increase/
of equity in profit decrease
investments before tax in equity
RGIRE 2 BRBE AT A B
REE #m,/ WP #m/mL
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TER FTER
2022

Investments listed in Hong Kong: REB LM ZEE
Financial assets designated at fair 15 A AT EE

value through other FPAE M2 E K
comprehensive income B EE 1,121,797 = 112,180
Financial assets at fair value BATEETABRZN
through profit or loss R E 9,737 974 =
Investment listed in Shenzhen: WA LR 2R E
Financial asset at fair value BATEEFABRZN
through profit or loss R E 4,597 460 =
2021

Investments listed in Hong Kong: ~ R&EB EMZIRE :
Financial assets designated at fair 15 AKX ATFEE

value through other FPAE M2 E
comprehensive income MEBEE 1,515,025 - 151,503
Financial assets at fair value BRTEEF ABRN

through profit or loss BsEE 10,204 1,020 -
Commodity price risk B B 15 AR
The Group is engaged in the sale of jewellery including bullion FEBRFHERE  REESE
products. The bullion market is influenced by global as well as Eme B2BMHEXERURME
regional supply and demand conditions. A significant decline HHERERTE - EEBERAK
in prices of bullion could adversely affect the Group's financial AL AR S B 2 BT SR 4B B A 7
performance. In order to reduce the commodity price risk, the T2 RREAMERER  RE
Group uses bullion loans as well as derivative financial instruments, BFERAECBEEURESEEY
such as bullion contracts, to reduce its exposure to fluctuation in ZMEERIA  URESSBE
the bullion prices on bullion inventories. The bullion price exposures BRRBHEEBTE 2 RBAE
are monitored by management. EE@%?E@EE%Z@ TP
For the bullion loans and bullion contracts, assuming that the NECEEERESBAYMS
amount outstanding at the end of the reporting period was BRENBERRBER 2 CEIRE
outstanding for the whole year, a 10% increase/decrease in EFEERER  ELBMER2022
market prices of bullion at 31 December 2022 and 2021 would FR2021%1283188% M,/ 5
have decreased/increased the Group's profit before tax by D10% - BA R, EIMAE
HK$336,827,000 and HK$286,564,000, respectively. The sensitivity B BB AT % 71 336,827,000 7 7T &%
to the market prices of bullion used is considered reasonable, with 286,564,000/8 7T ° EFTA E b &
all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax. This L KA AN B E
information has not taken into account potential financial impact ZERT  AEBRRUMAES
on other financial statement line items. BhELHREDNBERE o LB

WEZEHEMYBRKIAR 2E
ERBERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(b) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business and

to enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group regards equity attributable to owners of the Company as
its capital and manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and business
strategies. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, raise and repay
debts or issue new shares. The Group is required to comply with
certain externally imposed capital requirements set out in certain of
its banking facility agreements. Additionally, a subsidiary formerly
engaged in securities broking, which is a regulated entity under the
SFC, and a subsidiary which is a member of the CGSE, are required
to comply with respective minimum capital requirements imposed
by the SFC and the CGSE. During the two years ended 31 December
these subsidiaries complied with respective
minimum capital requirements imposed by the SFC and the CGSE.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2022 and

2022 and 2021,

2021.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
borrowings to total equity. Total borrowings include interest-
bearing bank borrowings and bullion loans. Total equity comprises
all components of equity attributable to owners of the Company.
The Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable
level. The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting periods were as

follows:

Total borrowings BieE

Total equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Gearing ratio

NI 2PN AR £

REMBERRME

43. HHEREERBERBE(E)
(b) EBAXEE

AEBRELAER T BABRARE
AEBPFEREXEB N Uk
PBREZBALE  UXHHEER
REMBR 2 BEE

AEEBARREE ABLEZS
HER  WIREEM R R E TSR
SEERHARERE  WHHE
mﬁ%oﬁﬁ%iﬂﬁ§$ i
AN & B AT g B 1) IR SRR A5 2 B
8 IR EREERBEITHR -
AEEBRETEETRITHE S
Fi# 2 & TFIMNEB AT © BEob -
—%WE AN EBHCLER
ﬁﬁ%@%%Zxﬁﬁgg'M
& XHBARIASREES S
B8 ZERREBTEESRS
REBSLERZEBERKERNR
m,#&imniﬁmmiuﬂ
mEﬁWMEF ZEWBA
BTRESRSREBIHE Eam
Z?ﬁé$ﬁm HEZ20022EK
202112 A31HILEE - KEE

ERELY B RELRFLE
et

AEERBERBRELE(NEEE
g ) B E§ZK cBEER

EHERTERRECEREE - 4
BaBEAR W%ﬁA%E%ﬁZ
AR - AEEZBEAKER
BELEAFERIEKT - RERE
HRZEAGELENT -
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$ OOO
4,640,026 3,215,296
11,890,543 12,753,120
39.0% 25.2%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44,

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The following tables set out details of financial instruments subject to
offsetting at the end of the reporting period.

Assets
Accounts receivable

Liabilities
Accounts payable

REMBERRME

44. EHEMBEERMBEE
TREFINBERRZEENRZERT

HEFg o
2022
Gross
amounts of
recognised  Net amounts
financial  of financial Related amounts
liabilities assets  not set off in the consolidated
setoff  presented Statement of financial position
Gross in the inthe FRERGEUBRRRPEHZ
amounts of  consolidated consolidated RELE
recognised  statement statement of Cash
financial  of financial financial Financial collateral
assets position position instruments pledged  Net amount
REEHE  RGRUE
RR & VL
CRANE CEANE  RHEZHE BEARE
EEAR REAE BEFE $RIE it it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TAn TAn TEn TEn
EE
e 819,102 (630) 818,472 - - 818,472
Gross
amounts of
recognised  Net amounts
financial  of financial Related amounts
assets liabilities  not set off in the consolidated
setoff  presented Statement of financial position
Gross in the inthe FAERGRUBRRRPEHZ
amounts of  consolidated consolidated RBLE
recognised  statement statement of Cash
financial  of financial financial Financial collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged  Net amount
REERE  RERUE
RRETES bViEL
CRANE CRANE  2HZHE BEARE
afE4E EEAR AEFE $RIA g it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TAn TAn TEn TEn
ff
ANk 131,012 (630) 130,442 - - 130,442
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44,

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

Assets
Accounts receivable

Liabilities
Accounts payable

REMBERME

44. EHUMBEERMBEEE)

2021
Gross
amounts of
recognised  Net amounts
financial ~ of financial Related amounts
liabilities assets  not set off in the consolidated
set off presented  Statement of financial position
Gross in the inthe RARGARBBRARPESEL
amounts of  consolidated  consolidated RE2E
recognised  statement of  statement of Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral
assets position position  instruments pledged  Net amount
RERIE  WNEEHHK
HRAEDHH A%
BRRAE CEEIRE  2R0E BERRS
BEDE Al REFR ERIE gl i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAR TAL TAL TAL TAL
B
R 805,437 (1,103) 804,334 - - 804,334
Gross
amounts of
recognised  Net amounts
financial  of financial Related amounts
assets liabilities  not set off in the consolidated
set off presented  statement of financial position
Gross in the inthe RENGAMBRARPEELZ
amounts of  consolidated  consolidated EEEA
recognised statement ~ statement of Cash
financial ~ of financial financial Financial collateral
liabilities position position  instruments pledged  Net amount
REEEE  NRAUE
AR EH A%
BRIENE <CEINE  2RHE BEARE
BELE BELE BETE $RIA gl i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAR TAL TAL TAL TAL
a8
ANk 182,407 (1,103) 181,304 - - 181,304
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45.

46.

Events after the Reporting Period

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 31 January 2023, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “HK Purchaser”)
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a group of related
parties (the “HK Vendors”), pursuant to which the HK Vendors had agreed
to sell, and the HK Purchaser had agreed to purchase, a building situated
at Hong Kong at a total consideration of HK$116,000,000.

On the same day, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(the "PRC Purchaser”) entered into two sale and purchase agreements
with a related party (the “PRC Vendor”), pursuant to which the PRC
Vendor had agreed to sell, and the PRC Purchaser had agreed to
purchase, two parcels of land located in PRC at a total consideration
of RMB7,175,000 and RMB2,954,000, respectively (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,307,000 and HK$3,420,000, respectively).

Further details of the transactions are contained in the Company’s
announcement dated 31 January 2023.

Apart from the above events, there were no other significant events
occurred after the reporting period and up to the date of this annual
report.

Comparative Amounts

Save as disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to
the current year's presentation. The Directors consider that such
reclassifications allow a more appropriate presentation of the Group's
financial performance and/or better reflect the nature of the transactions/
balances.

ma

45,

46.

MBEHRME

BERREE

WEHR®E - N2023F1 8318 AR
AZEEEENBRAR(IEAE S ) HE
—HEAEAT(EBEAR DI LEEW
Bl ABESRELEREEES
REWE-—BUNRES2YE  BREA
116,000,000 % 7T, ©

RB - ARRzEEZENRBAR(F
BEHE—ZBEEAL(HEES])
NN EE RS Bt FEEFRE
HERFEEH RS UWRERMIEBLAP
Z2IH o BREHBIAARE7,175,000
TR AR #2,954,0007T(H BIEERL
8,307,000 7T % 3,420,000/ T) °

BBERHE—F2FE  EHRARAH
HAE2023F1A31BZRER

bR B BRI - RIS HEMBERFR
AHY ERMEREREL -

~

EEyF

Bz e B BRI 4 FTIREESN - BT
BHFCRENDBUNAARERE Z 2T
HR - BEERREH DRI REE W
AEENMBRER SEERBRR S,/
BB -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47.

Statement of Financial Position of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves (note)

Total equity

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing AXKE
Director L

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDI

=

REMBERRME

47. ELQTRMBEMRRE

BREARAINBFERR M BRRNEKZE

BT
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEL
ERBEE
RKIB AR Z = 2,616,081 2,905,656
RBEE
B8 349 343
e kERES 2,676 1,813
BREEE 3,025 2,156
RBEE
Hib IR R EFTIHE 6,653 6,359
BRI 99 76
BRyaE 6,752 6,435
RBEEFE (3.727) (4,279)
EEFE 2,612,354 2,901,377
g
BEEITRA 169,359 169,359
it (P 3E) 2,442,995 2,732,018
MR 2,612,354 2,901,377
Winston CHOW Wun Sing AR
Director 5F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEMBHRRNT
47. Statement of Financial Position of the Company (continued) 47. AP THBHRAR(E)
Note: BiaE
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: AAEIREZBENT
Share Contributed Retained
premium surplus profits Total
gy BAER REEF &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTHET TET TET
At 1 January 2021 73/:\20\2/1 F1A18 1,060,356 975,582 971,711 3,007,649
Profit and total FNEFREH
comprehensive income Wz i
for the year i - - 103,732 103,732
Dividends declared and FANEIRREMNKRE
paid during the year - - (379,363) (379,363)
At 31 December 2021 ®2021%F12 8318
and 1 January 2022 }2022%141H 1,060,356 975,582 696,080 2,732,018
Profit and total FREFRER
comprehensive income Wz ke s
for the year \ - - 2,274 2,274
Dividends declared and FAE R RAFRE
paid during the year - - (291,297) (291,297)
At 31 December 2022 2022912 A31H 1,060,356 975,582 407,057 2,442,995

The Company’s contributed surplus arose in 1992 as a result of the
Group's reorganisation and represents the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares allocated under the reorganisation scheme
and the then consolidated net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act, the contributed surplus is distributable to
shareholders under certain circumstances.

RARRIONFELEZBANBBRE R
SEEMA - NREEANEERRZ AR
B EEERLENBARER 2GR E
ERECEETE -

REQRNE  BETHERT - BARKRA
AIETRR °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48.

Particulars of Subsidiaries

Information about subsidiaries is as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

48.

Issued ordinary

REMBERME

W 308
WBRAZERDT :

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
RI,/ ERTZERE/ AR frdh
8 AR & R AR A BRER DL TEXEH
Direct Indirect
HE e
Acclaim Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$600,000 - 100  Investment holding
HERRAA REERRES 600,000 7T REER
Best Choice Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Property investment
B 18T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Bullion Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100  Investment holding
Dealers Limited
BAEELHERADF BB 5,000,000 % 7T REZR
Chow Sang Sang (China) People’s Republic of  HK$1,500,000,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
Company Limited* China/Mainland China and watches
BEE(FR)EEERDA * mEARMNME,  1,500,000,000 7T RERBRHEE
LN
Chow Sang Sang Commodities Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Dormant
Limited
BAEEEmERAF EE 5,000,000 7T TEEX
Chow Sang Sang Corporate Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Sale of corporate
Gift Limited gift products
BEECEERBRAR Bt 1,000,000 7T PERMIEE
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic of RMB10,000,000 - 100  Diamond polishing
(Guangdong) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China
BAEEER(BER)BRAR REARAEME, 10,000,000 TARE ERITE
Bk
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic of US$10,000,000 - 100 Diamond trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China
AEEER(EB)BRAR hEARAME/ 10,000,000 %75 EBLHEE
Bk
Chow Sang Sang Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 - 100 Group financing
AEERBER A B8 15,000,0008 7T SERE
Chow Sang Sang Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100  Investment holding
BEEHEERAF 0 5,000,000 REZRK
Chow Sang Sang Holdings (BVI) British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
Limited
BAEEEE(RBERARES) KBRS 50,000 % 7T REER
BRAR
Chow Sang Sang Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$250 - 100  Investment h\olding
REEEBBRRA Bt 25078 7T REZRKR

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 195 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BEEEEE

RABER QA

2022 4 3R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48.

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

48.

Issued ordinary

ma

MBEHRME

HE QRS ()

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
RI,/ ERTZERE A8 frdh .
=1 B3 AES ERTES RERDL TEEK
Direct Indirect
HE i3
Chow Sang Sang International Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100 Property investment
(Shunde) Limited Mainland China
B BRR (B ) B IR A R NV al= NG 28T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Investments Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100  Investment holding
Limited
EEEREBRAR B 2,500,000 % 7T REZER
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of
(China) Limited marketing services
and
investment holding
BEEEKRE (PER)BRAR i 18T TR SRR
K&k
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 - 100 Retail of jewellery
Company Limited and watches
BEERBESTAERRAA BB 30,000,000 KRERERTE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of HK$275,307,500 - 100 Manufacture and
(Foshan) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BAELRE (L) AR REARLNE, 275,307,500 RERERHE
BIRRE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Pte Ltd Singapore SG$2 - 100 Dormant
EApIIEsd 28T Tmax
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of RMB20,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BAEEKE(FB)BRAR hEARAME, 20,000,000 TARE KRERERHE
LalETPN 2
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of HK$24,400,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Shaanxi) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BAEEREST(RE)BRAR hEARANE 24,400,000 7% 7T KRERERHE
LalETPN =
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery British Virgin Islands/ US$50,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
(Taiwan) Limited Taiwap
BEERETROBRAR EBRBRHS A 50,000 % T KREHE
Chow Sang Sang Manufacturing British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
International Limited
BEEEEHHEEARAR KBRS 17T REER
Chow Sang Sang Nominees Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Provision of property
nominee services
BAEERBABRAR BB 1,000,000 77T REMERIE AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48.

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

48.

Issued ordinary

ma

MBEHRME

HEB QRS ()

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
RE,/ ERTEZERE/ A28 frdh
8 AR & B aEfRA BRER DL TEEK
Direct Indirect
HE i3
Chow Sang Sang Property British Virgin Islands US$30,000 - 100  Property investment
Holdings (BVI) Limited (redomiciled from
Netherlands Antilles)/
Hong Kong
RBER RS 30,0003 T MERE
(BERERNIIE),/
b
Chow Sang Sang Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Property investment
AEEEXEBRAR a5 10,000,000 & 7T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Securities broking
BAEEBSFERAR EE 10,000,000 %7T BHEL
Emphasis Jewellery Company Limited Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Retail of jewellery
HERAEARLDA )l 25,0002 7T RETE
Foshan Shunde Jinpeng Jewelry People’s Republic of RMB 1,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Company Limited* China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
LmEER S ERE a5 hEARLME, 1,000,000 TARE RERERHE
EREMERA* B
Hong Kong Gemological Research Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Gemological
and Authentication Centre research and
Company Limited authentication
BEREAMAREEDLERAE & 100,000 7T EARERETE
The Future Rocks Company Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 80 E-commerce
platform and
investment holding
o 100,000 % 7T ETHEFEK
REER
The Future Rocks (Guangdong) People’s Republic of HK$65,500,000 - 80 E-commerce
Company Limited* China/Mainland China platform
AREFABER)BERARE* hEARANE 65,500,000 7 7T ETHEYA
FBIRRE
Tsin Chuk Kam Manufactory Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ US$100,000 - 100 Processing of
Mainland China jewellery
TREREBRBRAA EEBEARES,/ 100,000 7T KEMT
Hh B A e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48.

49,

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

48.

Issued ordinary

REMBERME

B RS ()

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
RE,/ ERTEZERE/ A28 frdh
8 AR & B aEfRA BRER DL TEEK
Direct Indirect
HE i3
World Commercial Sales Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100 Wholesale of
Company Limited precious metals
R BITERAE] BB 2,500,000 7T BB
338.Net Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Dormant
B8 2B Tmex

*  These companies were registered as wholly-foreign-invested enterprises under the
law of the People’s Republic of China

Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2023.

49,

* WERADREREARANEARERZ
2OERELE
REMBRRZME

N AT HBRRN202343 23 HEE
e A REETE -

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 198  ANNUAL REPORT 2022

AEEESEBEBEERAQR

2022



PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows:

ENRFER

AEEFENIBYEFFOT

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE 1 B SR & A& BEEE BE R
(Sqg. ft. approx.)
(REFEFR)
Hong Kong
o
#229 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 6357 Rental/own use  30,632* Commercial Short
FNEEETUE 229 SR atE ey =y [ES 5]
* G/F & M/F, 326-328 Castle Peak Road, N.K.I.L. 2507 & 2177 Rental/own use  2,790* Commercial Medium
Kowloon
" hRESILIE 326 E 328 i TERIE HE/ a8 A EES e
#* G/F & 1/F, 99-101 Wuhu Street, HH.ILL. 472, 471 & Own use 2,345* Commercial Medium
Hunghom, Kowloon 447 s A
F NIRRT 99 E 101 TR 112 B EES F
Roof, G/F & 1/F, 432 Prince Edward Road N.K.I.L. 2266 R.P. Rental/own use  1,788* Commercial Medium
West, Kowloon
NBEATEAAR FHT 1 ERKE i g=p [EES H
Shop B, G/F, 428-430 Prince Edward Road N.K.I.L. 2267 R.P. Rental 1,078* Commercial Medium
West, Kowloon & 2268 R.P.
NBEA THER 428 = 430 ST B 4 gl [EES T
Flat A, 11/F and Roof, 199 Nam Cheong N.K.I.L. 1230 s.A.R.P. Rental 551* Residential Medium
Street, Kowloon & 5.B.ss.2
NEEEH 195 N ABEXRSE Repi! (Ees H
2/F, Flats A & B, 3/F, 4/F, 5/F & Flat A, 6/F, K.I.L. 6642 Rental/own use  10,784* Commercial Short
231 Nathan Road, Kowloon
BERIE 2315218 3 EARBE ey =y [EES 5]
A1 SER6IEAR
Units A1, A2, A3, A4, A6, A8, A11, A13, N.K.I.L. 3515 s C, Rental/own use 53,337 Industrial Medium
1/F, Units A1, A2, A3, A4, Ab, A8, A13, D&F
2/F, Unit A4, 8/F & Unit A3, 10/F,
Block A, 489-491 Castle Peak Road,
Kowloon
BESILE 489 E 491 SR AE 118 AT i =p= I¥ H

A2 A3 A4 A6 A8 A1T AI3E "
21BA1 A2 A3 A4 A6 A8 AI3E -
BEMERI0BAIE
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

ENRFER

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE 1t ER 55 8 Rz BEER BE R
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(RATFAR)
Hong Kong
BH
Car Ports No. 7 & 22 on G/F, Car Ports No.  K.I.L. 10223 Rental/lown use  N/A Car park Medium
26 & 57 in Basement, Ho On Mansion,
107-109 Austin Road, Kowloon
BRI @ 107 & 109 SR LE T &AL LVl T B i
7 % 22 SR RSEEARL 26 ] 57 5%
Car Parking Space No. B162 in Basement, R.P. of K.I.L. 4208 Rental N/A Car park Long
Balwin Court, 154-164 Argyle Street,
Kowloon
BEDREH 1S4 E 164 REZMBE A TE B 3
B162 SRE L
* G/F-3/F, 691-693 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 2444 s AR.P.  Rental/own use 9,890* Commercial Medium
& 2444 R.P.
"REBIE 691 E 693 F T E 318 HiE,/ 8 A [GES i
* 85 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, Lot No. 3640 in Own use 2,702 Commercial Medium
New Territories D.D. 120
PHATABILDKE 85 Rl BHA [EES H
" Shop B, G/F, 70-78 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po Town Lot Own use 2,089* Commercial ~ Medium
Tai Po, New Territories No. 28
PHAKBERIETOE 78R B A 8A [EES F
Shop No. 305, G/F, Lok Hin Terrace, 350 Chai Wan Inland Rental 175* Commercial ~ Medium
Chai Wan Road, Hong Kong Lot No. 149
EBLIEIE 350 FEF AT 305 57 H [EES F
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

Description

BE

Lot Number Use

R A%

ENRFER

Gross
Floor Area

BEER

Type
BE

Lease
Term

A

Mainland China
B KB

East of Guangzhu Highway, Licun
Management Zone, Licun District,
Lunjiao Town, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province

BRABILTIEEE GEESNERE
& TR R

154077-014 Rental

ki

(Sq. ft. approx.)
(RATFAR)

123,700

Industrial/
commercial

T%/B%

Medium

# Unit No. 1-1, Fulihua Mansion, No. 150
Qinghui Road, Daliang Town,
Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province

" EREHILTIBEREAREEER 150 5
EBERE1HZ

134092-003 Own use

=pi

1,906

Commercial

[GES

Medium

16/F, Block B, R&F Yingtai Plaza, Section 2,
No. 100 Huangpu Avenue West,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province
BEREBEMTANREHAER 100 5% 2 &
ENERESBE16[E

2310-7-50 Own use

=i

23,686

Commercial

[GES

Medium

Car Parking Space Nos. 200 and 201,
2nd Basement, R&F Yingtai Plaza,

Section 2, No.100 Huangpu Avenue West,

Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province

ERA RN AT RERAEE 100 5 2 B

ENBFRESE 2E 200 & 201 SREL

2310-7-50 Own use

=pi

N/A

TEH

Car park

B

Medium

o
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

Description

BE

Lot Number
R SR &

Use

Jich=

ENRFER

Gross
Floor Area

BHEER

Type
BE

Lease
Term

A

Mainland China
B KR

Unit Nos. 1601-1602, 16/F, Block B,
Vanmetropolis, No.1 Tangyan Road,
High-tech District, Xian City, Shaanxi
Province

PR & 7O % T =0 27 [ R LB 1 SR AT R
BIFRI B FE 16 /€ 1601 2 1602 =

10501060004-17

Own use

=pi

(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFFR)

5,025

Commercial

[GES

Medium

Car Parking Space No. D010, 1st Basement
and Car Parking Space No. F061,
2nd Basement, Vanmetropolis,
No.1 Tangyan Road, High-tech District,
Xian City, Shaanxi Province

PR & 7O % T =0 27 [ RSB 1 SR AT R
BB 1 EEE DR 010 R
BT 2 BEEFE 061 SREAL

10501060004-17

Own use

B

N/A

R

Car park

B

Medium

No. 3 Xinxi 4th Road North, Lunjiao Town,
Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province

BEREABLUTIRERBHENE 4 B 3 5%

164084-189

Own use

B

583,225

Industrial

%

Medium

Taiwan

=¥ |

Units 1-2, 7/F, No. 21, Sec. 6, Zhongxiao E.
Rd., Nangang Dist., Taipei, Taiwan

AERtMEBREEZERK 6 &
2050718182 By

0568-0000

Own use

=i

6,847

Commercial

[GES

Freehold

KAKRE

Car Parking Space Nos. 132 and 133 in
B5, No. 21, Sec. 6, Zhongxiao E. Rd.,
Nangang Dist., Taipei, Taiwan

AERltmEERBAZERKE 6 &
215%™ 5 8 132 & 133 $REAL

0568-0000

Own use

EH

N/A

Car park

B

Freehold

KAKRE

Location of branches
DT B

*  Saleable area
EAEE
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DEFINITIONS
B=

Board
-

Companies Act

NEDE

Company

UN/NC

CGSE
TREEHS

Director(s)

ES

ESG
RE - #HEeRER

FY
2F

Futures Exchange

B

Group
AEHE

HKEC
B

HKEx ESG Guide
BRITRE - g RERESI

Hong Kong
BB

Listing Rules
FARAl

Macau

JRP

Mainland China or Mainland
N

Model Code

£78)

T?L'—

the board of Directors

EXg

Bermuda Companies Act 1981
BRE1981 FRRE

Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited

BAEEEERRARA R

The Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society
TREEHS

the director(s) of the Company
/NG =

Environmental, Social and Governance
RE - HEREAR

the full year, twelve months ended 31 December

2E CHZE12A31BIETZEA

Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited

BAHERSAARRAA

the Company and its subsidiaries

Z/NSIDSE )= YN

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited

BERGREEMARR

Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules published
by the Stock Exchange
BRAAEMEER ETRAME - +ECGRE - e REREEES)D

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEEBERITHE

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B ES EHRA

the Macao Special Administrative Region of the PRC
R ENRFIR RITTER

PRC excluding, for the purpose of this annual report (unless otherwise
indicated), Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

REC BRAFRME - RXEREMEIN  TEEES  RFIRGE

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FRAMS AR T ETAEFETESR HHRLETR
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DEFINITIONS
B=

PRC or China
[

SFC

et
Az m 85

e
FIEHEER

Stock Exchange
B 32 P

Taiwan

PANN it
==

H
T¥EE
2H
THEE

%
%

the People’s Republic of China
I AR KB

Securities and Futures Commission

ErlHEEHERLEE

same store sales growth
RIEHEE &K

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEMARSMARLIDE

Taiwan region of the PRC

AR

the first half of a year, six months ended 30 June

F¥EE BHE6A30BILNEAR

the second half of a year, six months ended 31 December

TEEE  HE12831BIEAEA

percent
Bt
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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

Financial Calendar

Announcement of 2022 interim results: 25 August 2022
2022 interim dividend payment: 23 September 2022
Announcement of 2022 annual results: 23 March 2023

Closure of register of members for
annual general meeting:

25 May to 31 May 2023
(both dates inclusive)

Annual general meeting: 31 May 2023

6 June to 8 June 2023
(both dates inclusive)

Closure of register of members for
final dividend:

2022 final dividend payment: 21 June 2023

Share Information
Stock code on The Stock Exchange of 116
Hong Kong Limited:

Board lot size: 1,000 shares

Bermuda Principal Share Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

Telephone:  +852 2980-1333

Facsimile: +852 2810-8185

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Investor Relations

Corporate Affairs Department

27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Telephone:  +852 2991-0366
Facsimile: +852 2730-9683

Email: ir@chowsangsang.com

RERE

BB
N2022 FHEIRE - 20229 8A25H

k32022 FHEIRE - 202249 A23H

NH2022F2FEE - 2023F3 A23H

FEPRERMD B 202345 A25H
B FE £5A31H
(BFRAEFAD) : (RIEERMX)

BRAFAS 2023%F5H31H

HiEHERMBP 20236 A6 1
T FE £6A8H
(RERE) : (BEEEWK)

IKEE 2022 FRAMLE ¢+ 2023F 6 A21H

R ER

REBBEZ AR 116
UNGIWA LA

BFEREN 1,000

BREROBFRTARE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

ERERODBFEEAR
FEEERARAR

BEEBRE 6%

BEREBPOI7E

BTah 0 +852 2980-1333

BH : +852 2810-8185

E I : is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

REEBHE

TEEBE

EBENERDE
KERHT LR 2748

BTah 0 +852 2991-0366
BH : +852 2730-9683
EH : ir@chowsangsang.com


mailto:is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
mailto:ir@chowsangsang.com

www/sc.org

MIX

Paper from
responsible sources

FSC™ C174551




	COVER 
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CONTENTS
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
	ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD
	DEFINITIONS
	INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS
	BACK COVER

